
 
 
 
 

 
AGENDA and Notice of a Joint Meeting with 

the Newport City Council & 
the Plastic Bag Community Plan Task Force 

 
The City Council of the City of Newport and the Plastic Bag Community Plan Task Force 
will hold a joint meeting on Monday, October 15, 2012 at 6:00 P.M. in the Council 
Chambers, City Hall, located at 169 S.W. Coast Highway, Newport, Oregon 97365. A 
copy of the agenda follows. 
 
The meeting locations are accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for 
accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City Recorder 541.574.0613. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order 
of the agenda, and discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the 
work session and/or meeting. Action items that do not require a public hearing may be 
moved up earlier in the meeting. 
 
JOINT CITY COUNCIL & PLASTIC BAG COMMUNITY PLAN TASK FORCE MEETING 

AGENDA 
Monday, October 15, 2012 - 6:00 P.M. 

City Council Chambers 
 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form 
and give it to the City Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to 
the City Council Chambers. Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be 
called upon during the Public Comment section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to 
specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is discussed by Council. 
 

I. Pledge of Allegiance with Coast Guard Color Guard 
 

II. Presentation of Sailor of the Quarter 
 
III. Call to Order and Roll Call 

 
IV. Additions/Deletions and Approval of Agenda 

 
V. Public Comment 

This is an opportunity for members of the audience to address Council regarding 
any item not listed on the agenda. Comments will be limited to three minutes per 
person with a maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their 
time to others. 



 
VI. Consent Calendar 

The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature 
 considered under a single action. Any Councilor may request an item on the 
 consent calendar be removed and considered separately. 

 
A. Approval of Minutes from the City Council Work Session and Regular Meeting 

of October 1, 2012 (Hawker) 
B. Report of Accounts Paid – September 2012 (Marshall) 
C. OLCC License Approval – Bridges Restaurant and Lounge 

 
VII. Officer’s Reports 

A. Mayor’s Report 
1. Public Arts Committee Appointments 

B. City Manager’s Report 
1. Monthly Departmental Updates 
2. Project Management Report 
3. Gas Tax Report 

 
VIII. Discussions and Presentations 

Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations and 
discussion of potential future action items. 

 
A. Pacific Marine Energy Center – Presentation by Kaety Hildenbrand 
B. LINT Team- Rob Bovett Letter 

 
 

7:00 P.M. 
 
IX. Public Hearings 

A. Amendments to the Transportation System Plan Element of the Newport  
Comprehensive Plan along with Implementing Provisions in the Newport 
Zoning Code 

B. Repeal and Replacement of Ordinance No. 2018, Vacating a Portion of SE 
First Street – Continued to November 5, 2012 at Applicant’s Request 

 
X. Action Items 

Citizens will be provided an opportunity to comment on action items after staff 
 has given their report, and applicants, if any, have had an opportunity to speak. 
 (Action items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or 
 ordinances.) 

A. Consideration of Resolution No. 3615 Regarding Utility Fees (Voetberg) 
B. Consideration of Tourism Facilities Grant Timeline (Voetberg) 
C. Consideration of Recommendations from the Plastic Bag Community Plan 

Task Force (Hawker) 
1. Presentation by Charlie Plybon 
2. Recommendation from Task Force 



 
XI. Council Reports and Comments 

 
XII. Public Comment 

(Additional time for public comment – five minutes per speaker) 
 

XIII. Adjournment 





October 1, 2012 
Noon 

Newport, Oregon 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 
 
Councilors present: McConnell, Brusselback, Beemer, Roumagoux, Allen, Sawyer, and 
Bertuleit (arrived at 12:05 P.M.).  

 
Staff present: Voetberg, Hawker, Tokos, Gross, Miranda, Protiva, and Paige. 
 
Media present: Dave Morgan, News Lincoln County. 
 
Audience present: Stan Pickens and Bob Ward. 
 
1. McConnell asked that the order of the agenda be reversed so that the discussion on 
 tourism facility grants is held first. Council concurred. 
 
2. McConnell reported that the Newport Sea Lion Docks Foundation had made an e-
 mail request regarding availability of a second round of tourism facility grants. He 
 noted that OMSI had also inquired about availability of these funds. It was noted that 
 $300,000 remains in the fund, and that if Council is interested in offering a second 
 round of grants, the calendar would need to be developed; the Committee would 
 need to be reactivated; and a timeline would need to be developed. McConnell noted 
 that Council should, during the next budget session, discuss how to keep the fund 
 going. Allen noted that other groups may wish to weigh in on this discussion. Pickens 
 distributed a handout regarding the sea lion docks and the proposal of the Newport 
 Sea Lion Docks Foundation. He (Pickens) made a brief presentation that included 
 potential funding sources. Ward explained the need for funding prior to next year, 
 noting that the in-water work has to be completed between November and March. He 
 (Ward) noted that the group is only asking for $25,000, and asked whether they 
 could attend the October 15 City Council meeting with an ad hoc request for 
 matching funds for the in-water work, rather than to follow the normal process, as the 
 timing would be such that the in-water opportunity would be missed. McConnell 
 suggested a loan from the fund to be repaid pursuant to a yet to be developed 
 memorandum of understanding. Ward suggested allowing the in-water work as a 
 retroactive grant match. Beemer noted that this request is one-tenth of what others 
 have been granted, and further that this is a good thing that the city should determine 
 a way to accomplish this year. Allen noted that the city has a process and does not 
 usually allow exemptions. He added  that, at this time, no decision has been made to 
 move forward and whether exemptions should be allowed. He stated that the 
 following decisions need to be made at a regular Council meeting: whether to utilize 
 the remainder of the funds; the timeline if a decision is made to move forward; and 
 whether any exemptions would be allowed. McConnell asked that staff develop a 
 second round timeline, and ask that Nicole Morris contact the Committee to 



 determine whether the members are still interested in serving; and that this item be 
 placed on the agenda of the next regular meeting. It was noted that the monies are 
 currently budgeted in contingency. Voetberg suggested that Council think about 
 possible upper limits on grants. 
 
3. McConnell noted that an update on the status of City Council goals has been 
 included as a part of the City Manager’s quarterly reviews. He added that today is 
 the time to discuss the goals and determine the status, and the key people working 
 toward fulfilling the goals, as the goals are an important part of the annual 
 evaluation. It was noted that a goals update is not permitted as an executive session 
 agenda item. McConnell asked that between now and the end of the year, the goals 
 be delineated for the new City Council, as the next quarterly review will occur in 
 January. It was agreed that input from outgoing Councilors is important for this 
 quarterly review. Council reviewed the status of goals, by department, as presented 
 in the packet. 
 
 A. Fire Department. A discussion ensued regarding volunteer recruitment and 

 retention. Paige noted that volunteers fall into three categories, and some fill two 
 or three roles within the ranks. He noted that he is hoping for more volunteers to 
 participate in the shift program. Brusselback asked about the cost of equipping 
 and training volunteers, and Paige noted that the cost to equip is approximately 
 $3,000 - $4,000, and training is approximately $2,000 - $3,000. Paige reported 
 that call pay is $5 per call, and the stipend is $50 for a 12 hour shift. He added 
 that this is not a budget issue, but more one of getting interested people with time 
 to devote to volunteering. Paige reported that he is talking with the Depoe Bay 
 Fire District about collaboration and sharing of resources. McConnell expressed 
 hope that Paige would continue to work hard on volunteer recruitment. Paige 
 noted that the best help would be for OCCC to offer a Fire Science program. 
 Paige reported that the department had formed a volunteer recruitment and 
 retention committee. McConnell suggested encouraging Coast Guard personnel 
 to volunteer. 

 
 B. Police Department. Miranda reported that the Police Department has a good 

 volunteer corps, and suggested that Councilors thank volunteers when possible. 
 Miranda displayed the new “Neighborhood Watch” signs. He reported that the 
 accreditation process is 94% complete, and the goal is to have it finished by the 
 end of the year with receipt of the accreditation occurring in January or April. 
 Voetberg reported that the Lexipol policies will help the department with any 
 claims, and also with standardization. McConnell asked about department 
 staffing. Miranda reported that the department is currently fully staffed although 
 one person is in training. He noted that if a list of potential hires was developed 
 today, by the time it was needed, many of the people on the list would have 
 already been hired by other departments. A discussion ensued regarding over-
 hiring. McConnell reported that he will be participating in the KCUP radio show on 
 Wednesday, and would like to have Rob Murphy and Tony Garbarino appear with 
 him to talk about emergency preparedness and efforts the city is making in that 
 regard. 



 
 C. Public Safety. Voetberg reported that the transition to Willamette Valley 

 Communication Center has gone well. Miranda reported that on January 9, 2013, 
 calls will go directly to Salem. Miranda reported that Lincoln City wants to join 
 WVCC, but that it wants back-up. A discussion ensued regarding a dispatch 
 center on the coast, and back-ups in the event of a disaster. McConnell asked 
 who the city’s representative is on the WVCC board, and whether that person has 
 a voice. Miranda reported that he is the city’s representative to the WVCC board, 
 and he believes he is listened to. 

 
 D. Airport. Voetberg reported that Lance Vanderbeck has been named Airport 

 Operations Manager, and that Terry Durham has been named FBO Manager on 
 a temporary basis, and that both are doing a fantastic job. He added that the two 
 have received high praise from the Airport Committee. Voetberg reported that a 
 recent FAA inspection found two items needing improvement, and both had been 
 addressed successfully. He added that the airport is operating to FAA standards. 
 Brusselback asked how long the temporary appointments will last, and Voetberg 
 noted that historically the airport has had someone functioning in the position of 
 Airport Director, and that he wanted flexibility if is determined that the airport 
 needs the position of Airport Director. Allen asked whether, after the assessment 
 period, other employees would be needed, and Voetberg responded that, with 
 the exception of summer/seasonal help, he did not believe so. Allen asked 
 whether there had been follow-up with Butler Aviation, and Voetberg reported 
 that representatives from Butler will try to be here during the third week of 
 October. McConnell reported that Senator Betsy Johnson cannot say enough 
 good about the airport. McConnell asked whether Ted Jones is providing project 
 support to the airport, and Voetberg reported that the airport has received more 
 grant money in the last three or four months than any time in the past. McConnell 
 noted that there will be affordable rental cars soon. 

 
 E. Library. Voetberg reported that surveillance cameras and new light fixtures have 

 been installed at the Library. McConnell suggested enhanced security, and 
 Voetberg stated that the RFID system will slow losses. 

 
 F. Finance Department. Voetberg reported that the Finance Department is adjusting 

 to the new financial software which allows department heads to make appropriate 
 financial decisions. McConnell asked when the new water billing system will be 
 implemented, and Voetberg reported that the utility billing component is a few 
 months out. McConnell recommended including more information in the next 
 utility bill about  what is being done with the additional utility fees that are being 
 collected. 

 
 G. Parks and Recreation Department. Protiva reported that this was a good summer 

 with visitors, but that the locals and youth are back in the building. He noted that 
 maintenance was the focus during the last quarter, and that a water heater had 
 been replaced at the Recreation Center, and that circuit boards will soon be 
 replaced. He stated that the Senior Center is doing well. He stated that there 



 should be a discussion regarding an aquatic facility. Allen asked about the 
 projected longevity of the pool, and Protiva reported that the building is likely 
 sound, but the physical structure of the pool is really poor. A discussion ensued 
 regarding the status of organizing a foundation to support recreation, and Protiva 
 reported that a lot of paperwork had been completed and an attorney had been 
 consulted. Sawyer asked whether the pool could be rebuilt at its current location, 
 and Protiva noted that the site needs to accommodate a warm water pool and a 
 cool water pool. McConnell suggested putting the issue out to the voters again. 
 McConnell asked whether there had been an increase in programming and use 
 of the Recreation Center. Protiva reported that he is focusing on more special 
 events, but that there has been a small increase in programming. Voetberg noted 
 that the current operating model is similar to the YMCA model, and that he had 
 asked Protiva to develop four events to bring revenue to the Parks and 
 Recreation Department to help offset the cost of programs. It was noted that the 
 offer of free classes to annual pass holders has yet to make a change in the 
 number of annual pass holders. Bertuleit asked whether there is a timeline on the 
 equipment and facilities repair and replacement and Protiva noted that would 
 occur this year. A discussion ensued regarding the adoption of parks, and Protiva 
 reported that several people have adopted aspects of parks, but that the 
 agreement is not palatable. Gross noted that he is working with Ocean Pulse on 
 a model agreement that would initially be used at the skate park. Allen asked how 
 much Coast Park is used, and it was reported that it gets heavy use. 

 
 H. Economic Development. McConnell noted that this matter is on this evening’s 

 agenda. He added that the city continues to work with the City Center Newport 
 Association regarding the corner at Hurbert Street and Highway 101. Gross 
 reported that CCNA is looking at a kiosk/pavilion. Bertuleit noted that Bellingham, 
 Washington provides kiosks for posting community notices. McConnell 
 suggested talking with HMSC regarding inexpensive interpretive sign vendors. 

 
 I. Community Development. Tokos reported that the packet contains updated 

 information regarding goals assigned to the CDD. 
 
 J. Water. Bertuleit asked how soon the new water treatment plant would be fully 

 operational. Gross reported that it is fully operational now; acceptance testing is 
 underway; and the old plant is in the process of being shut down. A discussion 
 ensued regarding timing for a ribbon cutting, and it was agreed to have a ribbon 
 cutting on November 5, from 10 A.M. until 2 P.M., and that Council attend rather 
 than holding a formal work session. McConnell suggested getting additional 
 information in utility bills regarding the use of revenues from the increased utility 
 fees. Allen asked when this information would show up on the actual water bills, 
 and it was noted that this is a long-term goal. 

 
  K. Wastewater.  No discussion. 
 
 L. Stormwater. No discussion. 
 



 M. Streets and Transportation. McConnell suggested letting residents know what the 
 gas tax revenuess are being used for. Gross agreed to report on the use of gas 
 tax monies at the next meeting. Gross reported that gas tax monies have been, 
 or will be, used for projects including the Big Creek Road repair; the annual street 
 overlay program; and pedestrian and sidewalk improvements. McConnell asked 
 whether separate goals need to be developed for parks maintenance and facility 
 maintenance. Gross reported that parks maintenance is understaffed. He noted 
 that he plans to develop a parks CIP within the next year. McConnell reported 
 that groups are performing ongoing work (similar to adopt-a-park) and they 
 should be recognized for that work. He added that formalized agreements should 
 be developed, and signs erected recognizing the adopting group. 

 
 N. Communications. No discussion. 
 
 N. Human Resources. No discussion. 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 2:16 P.M. 
 
 
 
 





October 1, 2012 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 

 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Beemer, Allen, Bertuleit, Brusselback, 
McConnell, Roumagoux, and Sawyer were present. 

 Staff present was City Manager Voetberg, City Recorder Hawker, Community 
Development Director Tokos, Public Works Director Gross, Public Works Senior Project 
Manager Jones, Fire Chief Paige, Police Chief Miranda, and Assistant Finance Director 
Brown. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 The City Council and audience recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

McConnell noted that Council had received a revised copy of the staff report for 
Action Item B. at the work session earlier. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
 The consent calendar consisted of the following item: 
 
 A. Approval of City Council work session and regular meeting minutes of September 
  17, 2012. 
 
 MOTION was made by Roumagoux, seconded by Brusselback, to approve the 
consent calendar with the changes to the minutes as noted by Allen. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

OFFICER’S REPORTS 
 
 Mayor’s Report. McConnell read a short letter from the Friends of the Oregon Coast 
Aquatic Center regarding the recent half-marathon. 
 McConnell reported that he had received a letter from the Oregon Forest Resources 
Institute inviting folks to participate in a field trip and informational session regarding 
Oregon forestry issues. 
 McConnell reported that he had received a letter from Benjamin Baggett, with the 
Lincoln County Land Trust, regarding a housing information survey that will be 
conducted among larger local employers. Voetberg noted that Baggett will be at City 
Hall from 1 – 4 P.M., on Thursday, and that he also plans to visit satellite work sites. 



 McConnell reported thanked Nicole Morris and Hawker for their work on the city 
employee barbecue, noting that there was a big turnout. 
 McConnell reported that he attended a recent meeting of FINE. 
 McConnell reported that he had taken a field trip with the state parks beach ranger 
and hiked to homeless camps. He added that there is a lot of garbage at the camps, and 
they need to be cleaned up before winter. 
 McConnell reported that he had attended City Hall Week and met with mayors and 
coastal caucus members. A brief discussion ensued regarding potential transient room 
tax legislation. The LOC indicated that it would support TRT legislation if the opportunity 
presents itself. 
 McConnell reported that he had attended a recent meeting of the Airport Committee, 
and that it was positive and complimentary of staff. 
 McConnell reported that he welcomed the Port Director’s Association Conference to 
Newport and gave an overview on how the city and port are working together. 
 McConnell reported that he had attended the HMSC candidate luncheons. 
 McConnell reported that he had attended the City Center Newport Association 
annual meeting at which potential plans for Deco Park were discussed. Voetberg noted 
that the city is not a member of CCNA, but is within the district, and asked whether 
Council thought the city should join. It was the consensus of Council that the city 
become a member of CCNA. Allen noted that he is not inclined to go forward with the 
membership; but that it is not a big enough issue to make an issue of. 
 McConnell reported that there is extra emergency money available through the 
Oregon Emergency Management office, and that HMSC is working on interpretive signs 
along the evacuation route from HMSC to Safe Haven Hill.  
 McConnell reported that he was interviewed by a Japanese National Television crew 
on Thursday regarding the planned tsunami memorial. 
 McConnell reported that he had attended the recent Plastic Bag Community Plan 
Task Force meeting. 
 
 City Manager’s Report. Voetberg reported that Hawker had received the Recorder of 
the Year Award from the Oregon Association of Municipal Recorders. 
 Voetberg reported that the capital project update is included in the packet. 
McConnell noted that he liked the second part of the report regarding projects in the 
design and analysis phase, and asked whether some of the projects are possible due to 
the utility rate increases. Gross noted that the CIP was based on extra revenue that was 
part of that increase. Gross added that he is hoping to bid projects sooner next year in 
order to get the best bids from contractors. McConnell asked whether Ash Street will be 
completed before the rainy season. Gross reported that easements are being signed, 
but that there is a truck in the right-of-way that needs to be moved before work begins. 
 Voetberg noted that the plan was to have a quarterly financial report at the next 
meeting, but that may be postponed until the first meeting in November. 
 Voetberg reported that Council typically holds only one meeting in December, and he 
recommended that the meeting be held on the third Monday – December 17. 
 McConnell thanked department heads and Voetberg for their work on Council goals, 
noting that the first quarterly review of goals, which occurred at today’s work session, 
revealed that a great amount of work had been done toward realizing the goals. 



 It was announced that the next Town Hall meeting will be held on October 29, 2012, 
at Mo’s Annex, at 6:00 P.M. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS/RECOGNITIONS/SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
 McConnell proclaimed the month of October as Jewelry Collection Month in the City 
of Newport as a benefit for the Food Share of Lincoln County. Priscilla O’Brien accepted 
the proclamation on behalf of BeJeweled and encouraged folks to donate jewelry.  

McConnell proclaimed the week of October 1 – 8, 2012 as Oregon Days of Culture. 
 McConnell proclaimed the month of October as Tsunami Preparedness Month in the 
City of Newport. He thanked the Police and Fire Departments and the volunteers who 
organized the emergency preparedness workshop this weekend. He reported that 
HMSC is holding a tsunami drill on October 11, evacuating people to Safe Haven Hill, 
and then on October 18, using the alternate route to OCCC. 
  

DISCUSSION ITEMS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
 Safe Haven Hill. Tokos reported that the issue before Council is a discussion 
concerning interim steps that the city can take to improve pedestrian access to the Safe 
Haven Hill tsunami assembly area, while the city awaits a decision from FEMA on its 
grant application to fully improve the site. He added that DOGAMI has confirmed that 
Safe Haven Hill will remain a designated assembly area on its new tsunami evacuation 
route maps, which are to be released later this year, and it is reasonable for the city to 
invest resources to improve access to the site. He noted that such investments should 
be made with full knowledge that the expenses will not be reimbursed by FEMA should 
the city’s grant application be approved. He stated that the city and URA budgeted 
$200,000 to improve pedestrian access to Safe Haven Hill; worked with community 
partners to develop a plan for what those improvements should entail; and submitted a 
grant application to FEMA for a portion of the construction costs. FEMA has determined 
that the project is eligible for pre-disaster mitigation funds. He added that just under 
$15,000 has been expended on a geotechnical investigation of the site, and that the 
analysis includes construction recommendations. He noted that the city’s grant 
application to FEMA includes a proposal for supplemental analysis to address 
outstanding questions concerning the proposed improvements and how the site is likely 
to respond to a Cascadia event. The supplemental analysis will cost approximately 
$16,000, and would be addressed if the grant is approved. He recommended interim 
improvements to make the top of the hill more accessible. Interim work could include: 
leveling the top of the hill; cleaning the top of the hill; replacing the gate; targeted 
grading and clearing of paths on north side; directional signage; and related clearing on 
streets that feed to the hill. It was noted that some of the work could be absorbed 
internally, and that HMSC has agreed to participate. Tokos noted that if Council is 
inclined, he could bring a more specific list of work to a joint meeting of the URA and 
City Council. A discussion ensued regarding the liquefaction and erosion factors of the 
hill. It was noted that because the property is owned by the State of Oregon, an 
intergovernmental agreement must be developed. A discussion ensued regarding 
funding and the potential grant match. It was noted there is approximately $45,000 - 
$50,000 that could be used now, and still have a match intact if the FEMA grant is 



awarded. Beemer, reported that he is the chair of Tsunami Evacuation Task Force, and 
that he appreciates what staff has done. Allen asked how much of the $200,000 set 
aside for the match should be utilized outside the FEMA grant, and Gross noted that he 
is reluctant to use any of it because he doesn’t know what to expect, although it is 
reasonable to proceed with rudimentary work. He added that adjustments can be made 
later when the true costs are available. 
 Michael Wilkinson reported that he lives on a boat in the marina and may not feel the 
shaking of an earthquake. He suggested that Council consider an audible alarm, and 
added that during the Japanese earthquake, he heard the sirens the city provided. He 
noted that he looks forward to joining the HMSC evacuation drill on October 11. 
McConnell asked whether Wilkinson had had discussions with the Port of Newport 
regarding emergency planning, and suggested the city continue working with the Port on 
signage and drills. Sawyer reported that NOAA alert radios are inexpensive and very 
valuable. Maryann Bozza, from HMSC, expressed appreciation for the city’s support. 
Sawyer asked how long it would take to develop and IGA with ODOT, and Tokos noted 
that it would be about four weeks. MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by 
Roumagoux, to direct staff to begin working on the IGA with ODOT, and to schedule a 
joint meeting between the City Council and URA for follow-up. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 Public Hearing and Possible Adoption of Ordinance No. 2042 Repealing and 
Replacing the Economic Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan. McConnell 
opened the public hearing at 6:55 P.M. Tokos delivered the staff report, noting that the 
issue before Council is consideration of whether it is in the public interest to rewrite the 
Economic Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan to implement recommendations 
of the recently completed Commercial and Industrial Buildable Lands Inventory and 
Economic Opportunities Analysis. He reviewed in detail the proposed recommendation. 
Brusselback asked for a time estimate on establishing a northside urban renewal 
district, and Tokos noted that it would take approximately 24 months. Allen noted that 
the general fund would be impacted by this district. Tokos reported that a full 
assessment would be necessary. Tokos noted that the other significant 
recommendation is the need for a business recruitment function that is not currently 
occurring, but if changes are adopted, the TAC would put together a work plan for that 
function to consider during the next budget cycle. McConnell noted that there are no 
guidelines regarding how revitalization might occur at underutilized property on Highway 
101. It was noted that a discussion was also needed regarding what kinds of businesses 
the city would be interested in recruiting. Tokos noted that there is some direction built in 
as to how URA should approach those issues. 

McConnell called for public comment. 
Patrick Wingard, representing DLCD, stated that he supports the proposal to adopt 

the economic opportunities analysis and commended staff and the TAC. He noted that 
the report is very insightful about the city, its opportunities, and challenges, and that he 
and his colleagues had reviewed the document. 

Allen stated that he would like more clarity in paragraphs two and three of the 
ordinance findings. Council concurred. 



McConnell closed the public hearing for Council deliberation. 
MOTION was made by Roumagoux, seconded by Beemer, to read Ordinance No. 

2042, an ordinance that repeals and replaces the Economic Section of the Newport 
Comprehensive Plan, with the changes recommended by Allen, by title only, and place 
for final passage. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. Voetberg read the 
title of Ordinance No. 2042. Voting aye on the adoption of Ordinance No. 2042 were 
Allen, Beemer, Bertuleit, Brusselback, McConnell, Roumagoux, and Sawyer. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 Notice of Award Big Creek Sewer Project. Gross reported that the issue before 
Council is approval of an award of the Big Creek Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
to CG Contractors, LLC, in the amount of $234,985. He explained the project and its 
need. MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Bertuleit, that the City of Newport 
Public Works Department issue an award for the Big Creek Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project to CG Contractors, LLC, in the amount of $234,985, and direct the 
City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the City of Newport. The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Notice of Intent to Award the 2012 Pavement Overlay Project. Gross reported that 
the issue before Council is approval of a notice of intent to award the 2012 Pavement 
Overlay Project to Road and Driveway Company in the amount of $144,146.30. He 
reviewed the project, and stated that he will give a gas tax report at the next meeting. 
MOTION was made by Sawyer, seconded by Beemer, that the City of Newport Public 
Works Department issue a notice of intent to award the 2012 Pavement Overlay Project 
to Road and Driveway Company, in the amount of $144,146.30, and contingent upon no 
protest, authorize award and direct the City Manager to execute the contract after seven 
days on behalf of the City of Newport. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Consideration of Real Estate Purchase Agreement for a Northside Fire Station. 
Paige reported that the issue before Council is whether to enter into a purchase and 
sale agreement to purchase a building and property for a new northside fire station at 
225 NE 73rd Street. He noted that there is an identified need for a fire station in the north 
part of the department’s response area, and that this building has been identified as 
being located in the optimal area for a northside station. He reported that it is a 
contemporary building that could be immediately used as a fire station; it is properly 
zoned; and has utilities. He added that an appraisal of the building was performed that 
established a fair market value under the current market conditions of $275,000. The 
purchase and sale agreement is before Council. He noted that there is no penalty for 
early payout and that payments can be budgeted over five years or paid earlier. Allen 
noted that he had questions that were e-mailed to the city attorney today. Allen asked 
whether the utility costs listed under the fiscal notes were a response to the question of 
operational costs. Paige indicated that this number is indicative of projected costs for 
trash removal, water, and basic utilities. Sawyer asked whether an alarm system would 
be needed, and Paige noted that would be optional, but was not budgeted. Allen noted 
that the issues he has raised need to be resolved. Allen noted that Christy Monson, the 
City Attorney, had responded to Allen and Voetberg with additional recommendations, 
and that Allen had replied to Monson with additional comments. Allen noted that he 



would like to ask Bonnie Saxton, the property owner, for clarification on some issues. 
Allen referred to the purchase and sale agreement, and particularly whether an addition 
could be made to Section 14 as follows: “Seller’s representations contained in this 
agreement shall expressly survive closing,” and Saxton replied that she had no problem 
with this recommendation, but that the deed would go to the city on closing. A 
discussion ensued regarding the incorrect ORS Chapter 93 citations appearing in 
various documents. It was noted that the ORS citations should be updated, but Saxton 
noted that they are not likely relevant to this transaction. A discussion ensued regarding 
language in the warranty deed not reflecting current language from the ORS. Allen 
noted that there are other questions from Monson regarding insurance and taxes. 
Saxton noted that the property taxes would be waived when the property is in the city’s 
name. It was noted that Monson had reported that the trust deed requires the city not to 
remove or demolish any property on the property and asked whether that is that 
acceptable to the city. It was noted that Monson wrote that the trust deed requires 
adequate insurance and reminded staff to check with the city’s insurance provider 
regarding this coverage. Saxton noted that the purchase and sale agreement says she 
provides the initial insurance. In summary, it was recommended that the language from 
the revised ORS Chapter 93 should be included; the sale and purchase agreement 
should include the additional language in Section 14 as previously indicated; and the 
language in the purchase and sale agreements needs to be amended to delete Section 
3.3 regarding financing. MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Roumagoux, that 
the City Manager be authorized to purchase the building and real estate described in the 
purchase and sale agreement, for $275,000, under the terms and conditions as 
described in the purchase and sale agreement, and as amended. Included in this motion 
is the authorization for the City Manager to sign other required documents for the 
closing of the sale; and to approve the satisfaction of any contingencies, such as 
inspections, as specified in the agreement with the changes as discussed. The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Approval of Automatic Aid Agreement. Paige reported that the issue before Council 
is consideration of whether the city should formalize an automatic aid agreement with 
the Depoe Bay Rural Fire District. He added that the north part of the Fire Department’s 
response area is a long distance from a fire station, and in some cases, a Depoe Bay 
fire station would be closer. The automatic aid agreement would provide additional 
equipment and staffing for emergency incidents in the north part of Newport’s response 
area and the south part of Depoe Bay’s response area. MOTION was made by Sawyer, 
seconded by Beemer, that the City Manager be authorized to sign an automatic aid 
agreement with the Depoe Bay Rural Fire Protection District on behalf of the City of 
Newport. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Acceptance of AIP21 Grant. Voetberg reported that the issue before Council is 
consideration of the acceptance of the AIP21 grant award for the Runway 16/34 
rehabilitation design and construction. He reviewed funding sources. MOTION was 
made by Brusselback, seconded by Sawyer, that the City of Newport (confirm the city 
manager’s) accept(ance) on S the AIP21 grant award for Runway 16/34 rehabilitation 
design and construction, from the FAA, in the amount of $6,311,424, and acknowledge 
the City Manager’s execution of the contract on behalf of the City of Newport. Allen 



reported that there is an issue that needs to be clarified. He added that the document 
indicates that the city will accept the grant, and what occurred is that the grant was 
accepted on September 24 because that was the deadline; so to be more accurate, 
rather than accept the grant, it should be to confirm the City Manager’s acceptance, on 
September 24, of the AIP grant 21. The motion was amended and the motion and 
amendment carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Authorization for Design Services with Precision Approach Engineering for Runway 
16/34 Pre-Design Services. Voetberg reported that the issue before Council is 
consideration of authorization of Precision Approach Engineering for pre-design 
services for the Runway 16/34 rehabilitation. Allen asked whether the city’s match is 
spread over two fiscal years, and Voetberg confirmed that it is. MOTION was made by 
Bertuleit, seconded by Sawyer, that the City of Newport authorizes Precision Approach 
Engineering (PAE) to proceed with pre-design services for the Runway 16/34 
rehabilitation project for an amount not to exceed $475,000. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 Bertuleit reported on a recent meeting of the Airport Committee. He noted that staff is 
progressing and doing a great job, and airport users are happy. He added that staff is 
pursuing additional rental cars and additional business development at the airport. A 
brief discussion ensued regarding the airport getting an international designation, and 
Voetberg reported that the process is extensive, and would involve moving a customs 
person to the airport. 
 Bertuleit reported that he attended LOC Conference, and will report on it at an 
upcoming meeting. 
 Roumagoux reported that the employee barbecue was excellent. 
 Roumagoux reported that she had attended the recent LOC Conference and the 
breakout sessions were really helpful.  
 Beemer reported that he attended a meeting with Paige, Murphy, Rampley and 
volunteers and the Depoe Bay Fire District to discuss collaboration, merger, etc. He 
added that he will keep Council apprised. 
 Beemer reported that he attended the employee barbecue. 
 Beemer reported that he attended a Chamber of Commerce luncheon at which 
Council candidates spoke. 
 Beemer reported that an emergency preparedness workshop was held last 
Saturday, and that it was well attended. 
 Brusselback reported that he had also attended the Chamber luncheon and listened 
to Council candidates. 
 Brusselback reported that he had attended a meeting of the Plastic Bag Community 
Plan Task Force. He added that the Task Force will meet again on October 11, and 
bring a recommendation to Council at its October 15 meeting. McConnell noted that 
other motions, than the motion currently on the table, may be presented. 
 Allen reported that he attended a FINE meeting on September 18, at which there 
was a discussion about the NMREC test berth site and the PEMEX grid connective site. 
It was noted that the Mayor had extended an invitation to Kaety Hildenbrand and Brenda 



Batten to make a presentation to Council regarding their activities including the most 
recent selection process that is underway. 
 Allen reported that he had attended a recent meeting of the Port’s task force 
regarding Highway 20 and John Moore Road, and had forwarded the draft meeting 
notes to Council. He noted that the next meeting will be held on October 10. 
 Allen reported that he attended a Bureau of Ocean Energy Management/Oregon 
Task Force meeting regarding renewable energy issues in the outer continental shelf. 
 Allen reported that the Oregon Wave Energy Trust conference was held immediately 
after the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management meeting. 
 Allen reported that he attended the Coastal Oregon Marine Experimental Station 
board meeting. He added that he is ex officio on behalf of the city to this group. He 
noted that he had invited Gil Sylvia to make a presentation to Council. 
 Allen reported that he had attended a luncheon with candidates to replace George 
Boehlert. 
 Allen reported that he attended a recent YBEF meeting regarding marine related 
activities. 
 Allen reported that he attended the legal issues workshop at the League of Oregon 
Cities Conference. 
 Allen reported that he had taken a boat tour to the NEMREC test site off Yaquina 
Head to look at the Sentinel. 
 Allen reported that the Plastic Bag Community Plan Task Force would be meeting 
again to formulate recommendations. He noted that there were issues about 
representation and membership, hoped that his earlier e-mail had provided clarity. 
 Allen reported that the next Territorial Sea Plan Advisory Committee meeting will be 
held on October 9 at OCCC.  
 Sawyer reported that a new round of CERT training began last week with 23 
participants. He thanked Melanie Nelson, from the Fire Department, for coordinating the 
CERT training. 
 Sawyer reported that the Coho/Brant neighborhood should be added to the tsunami 
evacuation drill to be held on October 11. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:18 P.M. 
 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder    Mark McConnell, Mayor 



Name Check Issue Date Check Number GL ACCT Amount

Aboveboard Electric, Inc 9/6/2012 17585 303-3320-6115 $160.00

Allstart Auto Electric, Inc 9/6/2012 17586 304-3420-6112 $125.00

Alsea Bay Power Products 9/6/2012 17587 303-3310-6114 $104.27

Anderson, Tim 9/6/2012 17588 401-4160-6026 $337.50

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECH, INC. 9/6/2012 17589 304-3410-6114 $165.01

Barrett Business Srvices, Inc 9/6/2012 17591 402-4220-6009 $2,828.05

Bendel, Amy 9/6/2012 17592 401-4160-6026 $341.60

Berning, Stephanie 9/6/2012 17593 401-4150-4302 $19.52

Blumenthal Uniforms & Equipmnt 9/6/2012 17594 101-1070-6407 $530.00

Booth, Richard W. 9/6/2012 17595 401-4160-6414 $1,176.00

BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC 9/6/2012 17596 304-3410-6408 $11,247.26

Calhoun and DeJong, Inc. 9/6/2012 17597 402-4220-6114 $136.03

Carson Oil Co 9/6/2012 17598 101-1070-6403 $14.41

Cascade Fire Equipment Company 9/6/2012 17599 101-1090-6114 $23.97

CBS OUTDOOR 9/6/2012 17601 403-4310-6207 $11,385.00

Charter Communications 9/6/2012 17602 303-3315-6206 $61.99

Cheek, Rebecca 9/6/2012 17604 401-4160-6026 $114.10

Clemons, Julia E.R 9/6/2012 17605 401-4160-6026 $72.10

Cline, Kathy 9/6/2012 17606 401-4150-6201 $23.32

Coast Street Dry Cleaners 9/6/2012 17607 101-1070-6030 $26.90

Coast Telecomm 9/6/2012 17608 101-1090-6508 $564.00

Coastal Arts Guild 9/6/2012 17609 101-1055-6030 $160.00

Coastal Paper & Supply 9/6/2012 17610 101-1100-6101 $202.55

Coastal Refrigeration 9/6/2012 17611 101-1035-6113 $146.00

Copeland Lumber 9/6/2012 17612 302-3210-6522 $27.00

Dell Marketing L.P 9/6/2012 17613 101-1025-6508 $39.95

Devils Lake Rock Company 9/6/2012 17614 601-6110-7024 $9,963.00

E2 Electric, Inc 9/6/2012 17615 101-1090-6014 $1,473.00

Eldridge, Sheryl 9/6/2012 17616 101-1100-6202 $76.59

Emerald Springs 9/6/2012 17617 101-1050-6402 $24.00

Englund Marine Supply 9/6/2012 17618 304-3410-6508 $17.81

ESRI 9/6/2012 17619 301-3120-6306 $2,000.00

Fastenal Company 9/6/2012 17620 302-3210-6419 $7.87

Global Equipment Company 9/6/2012 17621 101-1070-6502 $319.26

Government Ethics Commission 9/6/2012 17622 101-1010-6225 $455.27

Graymont Capital Inc. 9/6/2012 17623 304-3410-6408 $3,798.00

HD Supply Waterworks, LTD 9/6/2012 17624 303-3320-6523 $8,789.00

J.C. Market 9/6/2012 17625 101-1090-6216 $44.44

Lazerquick 9/6/2012 17626 101-1030-6516 $243.96

Lincoln Glass Company 9/6/2012 17627 101-1035-6113 $57.50

Mackey, Lori 9/6/2012 17628 401-4160-6213 $72.00

Malloy, Jason 9/6/2012 17629 101-1070-6203 $347.60

CITY OF NEWPORT

MONTHLY DISTRIBUTIONS

Sep-12



Microflex Corporation 9/6/2012 17630 304-3410-6504 $295.30

Miranda, Mark 9/6/2012 17631 101-1070-6216 $120.00

Mulder Sheet Metal, Inc 9/6/2012 17632 303-3320-6523 $1,800.00

NEWPORT AUTO PARTS, INC 9/6/2012 17633 304-3410-6112 $270.28

Newport Electronics 9/6/2012 17634 101-1090-6111 $16.96

Newport Rental Service, Inc 9/6/2012 17635 402-4210-6102 $157.50

Newport Signs 9/6/2012 17636 403-4310-6516 $60.00

News Lincoln County 9/6/2012 17637 401-4130-6207 $25.00

Northwest  Management 9/6/2012 17638 101-1052-6030 $718.75

Northwest Land Surveying, Inc. 9/6/2012 17639 101-1035-6028 $2,006.25

Northwest Vending Co 9/6/2012 17640 402-4220-6406 $99.07

NW Natural 9/6/2012 17641 303-3310-6109 $293.78

OBOA 9/6/2012 17642 404-4410-6216 $350.00

Ocean Tire Factory 9/6/2012 17643 303-3320-6112 $1,403.60

OFDDA/OFCA JOINT CONFERENCE 9/6/2012 17644 101-1090-6216 $304.00

Oregon Apparatus Repair, Inc 9/6/2012 17645 101-1090-6112 $2,660.13

OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY-Cashier 9/6/2012 17646 303-3310-6216 $35.00

PAIGE, PHIL 9/6/2012 17647 101-1090-6202 $64.60

Pape Machinery, Inc 9/6/2012 17648 303-3320-6114 $3,551.32

Peak Internet 9/6/2012 17649 402-4210-6206 $141.98

Pioneer Printing, Inc 9/6/2012 17650 101-1070-6208 $614.88

Pioneer Telephone Cooperative 9/6/2012 17651 101-1090-6204 $541.20

Platt Electric Supply 9/6/2012 17652 304-3410-6111 $620.32

Power Chrysler, Dodge, Jeep 9/6/2012 17653 101-1090-6112 $1,068.16

Precision Approach Engineering 9/6/2012 17654 402-4210-6025 $4,942.13

ProBuild Newport #609 9/6/2012 17655 304-3420-6115 $1,222.14

PROGRESSIVE OPTIONS 9/6/2012 17656 101-1010-6231 $1,000.00

Public Works Supply, Inc 9/6/2012 17657 402-4210-6415 $57.35

Quality Printing Service 9/6/2012 17658 101-1055-6208 $265.93

Red Rose Catering 9/6/2012 17659 101-1010-6481 $26.00

Regal Forms Inc. 9/6/2012 17660 101-1070-6218 $2,670.00

Riedl, Christopher 9/6/2012 17661 401-4160-4304 $80.00

SCHEMBRI, LAURIE 9/6/2012 17662 401-4160-6026 $1,734.95

Seal Rock Water District 9/6/2012 17663 402-4210-6411 $1,547.18

Setere & Sons LTD 9/6/2012 17664 304-3410-6408 $819.00

Sherwin-Williams 9/6/2012 17665 402-4210-6419 $703.32

Solomonson, Mary 9/6/2012 17666 401-4160-6026 $198.75

Staples 9/6/2012 17667 301-3110-6402 $427.58

Steen's Master Lube 9/6/2012 17669 101-1035-6112 $197.95

Stitchin Post, The 9/6/2012 17670 101-1090-6504 $25.00

Stone, Elizabeth 9/6/2012 17671 401-4150-4302 $152.84

Syn-Tech Systems, Inc. 9/6/2012 17672 402-4220-6092 $125.00

T&L Septic & Chemical Toilet 9/6/2012 17673 101-1090-6102 $249.00

Taoist Tai Chi Society 9/6/2012 17674 401-4150-4302 $677.50

Thompson's Transfer & Disposal 9/6/2012 17675 101-1035-6107 $63.90

Tokos, Derrick 9/6/2012 17676 101-1400-6202 $75.46

TP Freight Lines Inc 9/6/2012 17677 304-3410-6114 $356.03



Tradenet 9/6/2012 17678 601-6110-7018 $8,950.00

Traffic Safety Supply Co., Inc 9/6/2012 17679 302-3210-6516 $1,543.15

True-Cut Engraving, LLC 9/6/2012 17680 401-4110-6414 $57.00

United Grocers 9/6/2012 17681 101-1090-6401 $488.84

VerizonWireless 9/6/2012 17682 402-4210-6205 $546.36

West Coast Linen 9/6/2012 17683 402-4220-6101 $27.28

Wire Works LLC 9/6/2012 17685 101-1070-6112 $366.95

Xerox Corporation 9/6/2012 17686 101-1070-6209 $630.63

Lincoln County Clerk 9/7/2012 17687 101-1025-6051 $161.00

Oregon Employment Department 9/7/2012 17688 402-4220-5250 $3,983.00

ABECO 9/14/2012 17690 402-4220-6402 $6.25

Aboveboard Electric, Inc 9/14/2012 17691 101-1035-6113 $1,466.62

Allen and Sons, Inc 9/14/2012 17692 601-6110-7018 $4,979.57

Allstart Auto Electric, Inc 9/14/2012 17693 304-3420-6112 $1,864.00

Alsea Bay Power Products 9/14/2012 17694 303-3310-6114 $921.51

AT&T 9/14/2012 17695 402-4210-6204 $290.92

Barrelhead Supply, Inc 9/14/2012 17696 101-1090-6401 $732.86

Barrett Business Srvices, Inc 9/14/2012 17697 402-4220-6009 $1,866.45

Batteries Northwest 9/14/2012 17698 303-3320-6112 $88.95

BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC 9/14/2012 17699 303-3315-6408 $3,726.00

Brown,  Alan Tire Center 9/14/2012 17700 304-3420-6115 $55.06

Bullfrog Enterprises 9/14/2012 17701 101-1050-6208 $430.00

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17703 303-01114 $87.48

Carquest Auto Parts Stores 9/14/2012 17704 304-3420-6115 $59.54

CASELLE 9/14/2012 17705 101-1050-6302 $1,398.00

Century Link 9/14/2012 17707 403-4310-6204 $3,457.70

Chase Park Grants 9/14/2012 17708 304-3430-6034 $3,650.52

Coastal Paper & Supply 9/14/2012 17710 101-1035-6401 $2,635.19

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17711 303-01114 $56.15

Complete Wireless Solutions 9/14/2012 17712 101-1070-6030 $60.00

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17713 303-01114 $33.01

Detroit Industrial Tool 9/14/2012 17714 303-3320-6508 $206.97

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17715 303-01114 $88.28

Dish Network 9/14/2012 17716 402-4220-6234 $17.00

DMV Driver & Motor Vehicle Ser 9/14/2012 17717 101-1070-6225 $11.50

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17718 303-01114 $43.25

Employment Relations Board 9/14/2012 17719 101-1010-6006 $500.00

Englund Marine Supply 9/14/2012 17720 304-3420-6115 $271.35

Factory Matress Outlet 9/14/2012 17721 101-1090-6507 $620.00

Fastenal Company 9/14/2012 17722 101-1090-6506 $105.70

GC Systems, Inc 9/14/2012 17724 303-3350-7014 $800.00

Industrial Welding Supply, Inc 9/14/2012 17725 304-3410-6111 $9.50

LEAF 9/14/2012 17726 402-4210-6209 $130.29

Light Source 9/14/2012 17727 402-4210-6111 $336.00

Lincoln Co Parole & Probation 9/14/2012 17728 101-1035-6113 $1,375.00

Lincoln County Print Shop 9/14/2012 17731 101-1020-6208 $180.00

Lincoln County Public Works 9/14/2012 17732 101-1035-6403 $9,801.09



Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17733 303-01114 $45.45

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17735 303-01114 $69.17

New Horizons 9/14/2012 17736 101-1020-6216 $6,312.00

NEWPORT AUTO PARTS, INC 9/14/2012 17737 304-3410-6112 $1,521.67

Newport Diesel & Marine Co Inc 9/14/2012 17738 101-1090-6112 $2,296.75

Newport Glass Company, Inc 9/14/2012 17739 101-1035-6030 $183.50

Newport Plumbing, Inc 9/14/2012 17740 101-1090-6113 $9.50

Newport Rental Service, Inc 9/14/2012 17741 302-3210-6108 $47.42

News-Times 9/14/2012 17742 101-1020-6222 $3,511.15

OAWU 9/14/2012 17743 303-3320-6216 $795.00

OCPDA 9/14/2012 17744 101-1400-6216 $95.00

Oregon Emergency Man Assn. 9/14/2012 17745 101-1070-6216 $224.00

Oregon Fire Service Office Administrator 9/14/2012 17746 101-1090-6213 $30.00

Oregon Quality Lighting 9/14/2012 17747 403-4310-6752 $36.00

Overhead Door of Eugene Springfield 9/14/2012 17748 101-1070-6030 $954.08

Pacific Coast Plumbing, Inc 9/14/2012 17749 101-1035-6113 $200.90

Pacific Tire & Brake 9/14/2012 17750 301-3120-6112 $430.87

Peak Internet 9/14/2012 17751 101-1090-6206 $111.88

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17752 303-01114 $91.21

Pioneer Telephone Cooperative 9/14/2012 17753 402-4210-6204 $367.92

Platt Electric Supply 9/14/2012 17754 402-4220-6112 $157.45

Power Chrysler, Dodge, Jeep 9/14/2012 17755 402-4220-6112 $210.38

ProBuild Newport #609 9/14/2012 17756 101-1090-6113 $208.81

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17757 303-01114 $68.18

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17758 303-01114 $42.60

Sherwin-Williams 9/14/2012 17759 303-3320-6115 $264.55

SMITH, TED J 9/14/2012 17760 101-1100-6202 $151.80

Staples 9/14/2012 17761 101-1050-6402 $1,122.25

Staples Advantage 9/14/2012 17762 101-1070-6402 $383.34

Statewide Environmental Svcs 9/14/2012 17764 306-3640-6030 $1,288.00

Stitchin Post, The 9/14/2012 17765 101-1070-6030 $40.00

TCB SECURITY SERVICES, INC. 9/14/2012 17766 101-1070-6218 $3,750.00

Thompson's Sanitary Serv., Inc 9/14/2012 17767 403-4310-6113 $1,969.98

Thompson's Transfer & Disposal 9/14/2012 17768 304-3410-6107 $230.40

TimeMark, Inc 9/14/2012 17769 301-3120-6215 $258.74

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17770 303-01114 $35.95

United Grocers 9/14/2012 17771 101-1090-6413 $44.38

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17772 303-01114 $41.08

USAMOBILITY 9/14/2012 17773 402-4210-6205 $32.50

VerizonWireless 9/14/2012 17774 401-4120-6205 $1,106.04

Vern Wiles Construction 9/14/2012 17775 303-3320-6030 $875.00

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17776 303-01114 $46.40

West Coast Linen 9/14/2012 17777 101-1090-6101 $14.72

Western States Elect Const. 9/14/2012 17778 101-1090-6113 $764.19

WW Construction 9/14/2012 17779 101-1090-6113 $4,993.50

Xerox Corporation 9/14/2012 17780 101-1050-6209 $686.86

Utility Refunds 9/14/2012 17781 303-01114 $50.99



A Work Safe Service, Inc 9/20/2012 17782 304-3420-6032 $60.00

Alsea Bay Power Products 9/20/2012 17785 303-3310-6114 $1,607.90

Analytical Laboratory & Consul 9/20/2012 17786 303-3310-6029 $320.00

Aronson Security Group 9/20/2012 17787 101-1100-6113 $3,521.36

Associated Cleaning Serv., Inc 9/20/2012 17788 403-4310-6101 $7,028.00

Barrelhead Supply, Inc 9/20/2012 17789 303-3320-6508 $74.54

Barrett Business Srvices, Inc 9/20/2012 17790 402-4220-6009 $3,093.06

Blumenthal Uniforms & Equipmnt 9/20/2012 17791 101-1070-6407 $2,562.74

Braxling & Braxling, Inc 9/20/2012 17792 303-3320-6523 $3,808.44

Carquest Auto Parts Stores 9/20/2012 17794 301-3110-6229 $13.52

Carson Oil Co 9/20/2012 17795 402-4220-4321 $4,311.67

CBS OUTDOOR 9/20/2012 17796 403-4310-6207 $7,065.00

Central Coast Excavating, Inc 9/20/2012 17797 402-4210-6111 $517.50

Central Lincoln P.U.D 9/20/2012 17798 101-1900-6103 $17,664.16

Central Oregon Coast Training Officers A 9/20/2012 17799 101-1090-6213 $510.00

Centro de Ayuda 9/20/2012 17800 101-1100-6207 $50.00

Certified Folder Display Svc. 9/20/2012 17801 403-4310-6042 $9,959.00

City County Insurance  Service 9/20/2012 17802 101-1900-6030 $1,500.00

Copeland Lumber 9/20/2012 17803 302-3210-6501 $5.75

Cruise Master Engraving 9/20/2012 17804 101-1090-6504 $53.87

Daily Journal of Commerce 9/20/2012 17805 402-4210-6008 $396.75

David Gorton 9/20/2012 17806 601-6110-7025 $3,675.00

Day-Timers, Inc 9/20/2012 17807 301-3120-6402 $45.98

Demco 9/20/2012 17808 101-1100-6402 $604.22

DAS STATE 9/20/2012 17809 101-1090-6506 $1,005.00

DMV Driver & Motor Vehicle Ser 9/20/2012 17811 101-1090-6222 $279.50

Dooley Enterprises 9/20/2012 17812 101-1070-6417 $3,345.00

EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUCT, INC 9/20/2012 17815 101-1090-6416 $72.15

Englund Marine Supply 9/20/2012 17816 303-3320-6523 $213.54

Exercise Equipment Northwest 9/20/2012 17817 401-4150-6114 $365.99

Greater Newport Chamber of Crc 9/20/2012 17818 403-4310-6207 $1,529.65

Haines, Jeff 9/20/2012 17819 401-4160-4302 $95.00

Hawker, Margaret 9/20/2012 17820 101-1020-6222 $8.50

HD Supply Waterworks, LTD 9/20/2012 17821 303-3320-6523 $3,994.76

Idea Print Works 9/20/2012 17822 401-4160-6413 $214.40

Industrial Welding Supply, Inc 9/20/2012 17823 302-3220-6403 $5.00

International Association of Fire Chiefs 9/20/2012 17824 101-1090-6213 $249.00

Iron Horse Group 9/20/2012 17825 302-3220-6031 $3,322.50

Itron, Inc 9/20/2012 17826 304-01243 $620.08

J.C. Market 9/20/2012 17827 101-1035-6405 $11.98

John B. Lehrer, MD 9/20/2012 17828 302-3220-6030 $175.00

Keady, Kay 9/20/2012 17829 101-1010-6405 $50.00

King Office Equipment & Design 9/20/2012 17830 101-1050-6502 $162.89

KPPT-AM/KPPT FM 9/20/2012 17831 401-4150-6207 $200.00

LGPI 9/20/2012 17832 101-1010-6006 $970.50

Lieder, Ted Construction 9/20/2012 17833 101-1035-6113 $12,256.60

Lincoln County Public Works 9/20/2012 17835 402-4210-6403 $3,823.03



Lincoln Glass Company 9/20/2012 17836 101-1035-6113 $95.00

Movie Licensing USA 9/20/2012 17837 101-1100-6512 $290.00

NEWPORT AUTO PARTS, INC 9/20/2012 17838 304-3410-6114 $18.49

Newport Diesel & Marine Co Inc 9/20/2012 17839 303-3320-6114 $2,107.21

Newport Electronics 9/20/2012 17840 101-1090-6413 $21.95

NW Natural 9/20/2012 17842 303-3310-6109 $347.40

Ocean Tire Factory 9/20/2012 17843 101-1070-6112 $3,478.65

ODOT 9/20/2012 17844 303-3320-6225 $1,319.17

On Display Advertising 9/20/2012 17845 403-4310-6207 $8,800.00

OREGON COAST TODAY 9/20/2012 17846 403-4310-6207 $920.00

Oregon Fire Chiefs' Associatio 9/20/2012 17847 101-1090-6216 $85.00

Peak Internet 9/20/2012 17848 402-4210-6122 $141.98

Portland State University 9/20/2012 17849 601-6110-6027 $107.25

ProBuild Newport #609 9/20/2012 17850 101-1090-6414 $574.13

Quality Printing Service 9/20/2012 17851 304-3440-6215 $265.93

Quill.com 9/20/2012 17852 302-3210-6402 $130.17

Reeves Company, Inc. 9/20/2012 17853 101-1070-6407 $24.97

Rembold, Luke 9/20/2012 17854 401-4160-6413 $20.00

Samaritan Occupational Med 9/20/2012 17855 303-3320-6030 $65.00

San Diego Police Equipment Co. 9/20/2012 17856 101-1070-6417 $1,967.00

Satcom Global FZE 9/20/2012 17857 101-1070-6204 $36.15

Shilo Inn- Salem Suites 9/20/2012 17858 303-3320-6216 $429.00

SMITH, TED J 9/20/2012 17859 101-1100-6202 $92.40

SPEER HOYT LLC 9/20/2012 17860 301-3110-6004 $8,073.50

Spy, LLC 9/20/2012 17861 601-6110-7025 $3,675.00

Staples 9/20/2012 17862 101-1090-6402 $60.70

Staples Advantage 9/20/2012 17863 101-1070-6402 $475.76

State of Oregon 9/20/2012 17864 101-1070-6213 $40.00

Steen's Master Lube 9/20/2012 17865 101-1035-6112 $55.50

Stitchin Post, The 9/20/2012 17866 101-1090-6504 $5.00

Syn-Tech Systems, Inc. 9/20/2012 17867 402-4220-6092 $125.00

Taylor, Tad 9/20/2012 17868 101-1025-6303 $42.99

Tennis Surfacing & Maintenance 9/20/2012 17869 101-1035-6113 $235.00

Thompson's Sanitary Serv., Inc 9/20/2012 17870 101-1100-6106 $1,358.49

Thompson's Transfer & Disposal 9/20/2012 17871 101-1035-6106 $50.40

TimeMark, Inc 9/20/2012 17872 301-3120-6215 $3,211.08

Traffic Safety Supply Co., Inc 9/20/2012 17873 302-3210-6215 $2,231.78

True-Cut Engraving, LLC 9/20/2012 17874 101-1020-6402 $10.00

Uline 9/20/2012 17875 101-1070-6207 $47.96

United Grocers 9/20/2012 17876 101-1035-6113 $53.11

Valley Fire Control, Inc 9/20/2012 17877 401-4130-6113 $2,752.00

VALLEY RETRIEVER BUSLINES 9/20/2012 17878 401-4160-6413 $295.00

VerizonWireless 9/20/2012 17879 302-3210-6205 $477.14

Voetberg, Jim 9/20/2012 17880 101-1020-6235 $121.34

West Coast Linen 9/20/2012 17881 101-1090-6101 $13.90

Western States Elect Const. 9/20/2012 17882 101-1100-6113 $1,353.83

Xerox Corporation 9/20/2012 17883 101-1400-6211 $232.33



CASELLE 9/6/2012 17600 101-1050-6302 $54,025.00

Chase Park Grants 9/6/2012 17603 304-3430-6034 $30,666.00

WEST COAST TRUST 9/6/2012 17684 401-02771 $45,844.17

City of Bellevue 9/11/2012 17689 101-1090-7003 $80,000.00

Central Lincoln P.U.D 9/14/2012 17706 304-3410-6103 $56,111.75

Civil West Engineering Service 9/14/2012 17709 601-6110-6025 $30,120.70

FRANK CONSTRUCTION 9/14/2012 17723 601-6110-7024 $115,492.66

ECONorthwest 9/20/2012 17814 101-1400-6030 $31,180.00

Purchases over $25,000 reported pursuant to 2.30.060 of the Newport Municipal Code

CITY OF NEWPORT

MONTHLY DISTRIBUTIONS

Sep-12

Public Contracting Delegation of Authority



Cameron McCarthy Landscape 9/14/2012 17702 901-9120-6030 $8,785.00

Aboveboard Electric, Inc 9/20/2012 17783 901-9110-6113 $12,420.00

A-Game Courts 9/20/2012 17784 901-9110-6113 $17,604.00

Eagle Painting 9/20/2012 17813 901-9110-6113 $4,900.00

CITY OF NEWPORT - URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY

MONTHLY DISTRIBUTIONS

Sep-12













From: CommitteeApp@newportoregon.gov
To: Nicole Morris; Peggy Hawker; 
cc: svalentine@peak.org; 
Subject: Committee Application
Date: Wednesday, October 10, 2012 4:58:49 PM

Application for City Council - Email Application 
Date: 10/9/2012 
Commission/Committee of Interest: Public Arts Committee 
Name: Sue Valentine 
Address: 1505 NW Sarkisian Drive / Seal Rock OR 97376 
Workphone: (541) 272-0500 
Homephone: (541) 563-7625 
Email: svalentine@peak.org 
Occupation: Teaching Art / Graphic Design / Product Development 
Employer: ArtDreams Studio & Gallery 
 
Why do you want to serve on this committee/commission/board/task force, and 
how do you believe you can add value? I would love to be involved with helping 
in the aesthetic development of the arts, in the charming City of Newport. I have 
always wanted to be more involved in community programs. Art has been my 
life, and I feel it would be very rewarding to work on such meaningful projects. 
 
I have more than 25 years of experience in the art and design industry, as well 
as teaching those subjects. I am an artist, designer, and teacher. I always have 
plenty of great ideas, and would love to share them with you. 
 
What is a difficult decision you have made concerning issues of bias and/or 
issues of conflict of interest? ( There is not a specific experience that is coming 
to mind.) 
 
Describe the process of how you make decisions. I research all the facts. Talk to 
all parties involved. Then do what I call a P.C.I. - This is a list of all the pros, 
cons, and interesting possibilities. Some final decisions may be also based on 
good instinct. 
 
What do you think about consensus decision making? What does the consensus 
decision making process mean to you? I think it's smart, because we can share 
different view points, and brainstorm ideas together. A synergy of multiple 
energies is created by consensus decision making. 
 
Describe all other pertinent information/background for this position. I have 
served on the Newport City Center Association where I researched design and 
color information for the Deco District. I am on the board for the Yaquina River 

mailto:CommitteeApp@newportoregon.gov
mailto:/O=CITY OF NEWPORT/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=Nicole Clark
mailto:/O=CITY OF NEWPORT/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=p.hawker
mailto:svalentine@peak.org


Museum of Art. I have been involved with teaching and volunteer work for the 
Visual Art Center. I also served on many committees for four years, when I was 
teaching for Oregon Coast Community College. 
 
 





n.morris
Typewritten Text
V-C

n.morris
Typewritten Text
10/15/12





































































 

Page 1 of 2 

Memo 
To: Jim Voetberg, City Manager and City Council 

From: Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director 

Date: October 11, 2012 

Re: Department Update 

 
MONTHLY PERMIT FIGURES 
 
The following is a summary of September 2012 building and land use activity. 

 Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing 
Permits 

Construction Value Land Use 
Actions 

Sept. 10 
($1,593.07) 

22 
($1,783.04) 

6 
($746.14) 

 
$72,000 

2 
($483.00) 

YTD 108 
($103,357.75) 

197 
($25,550.31) 

40 
($11,336.08) 

 
$12,757,455 

40 
($22,217.00) 

 
Building activity was relatively light, consisting of five residential remodels, a commercial renovation, a 
residential accessory structure, and four signs.  The land use actions were a replat and property line adjustment. 
 
STATUS OF MAJOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS  
 
Port Terminal Project:  Work continues on the Fisherman’s dock.  Remaining warehouse structures have been 
torn down and in-water work on pilings and related structures will begin in November.  City to final when all 
construction is completed. 
 
Lincoln County School District:  Framing and insulation inspections completed on classrooms at the Prep 
Academy.  Sheetrock is installed and finish work is underway, but they are not quite ready for a final.  Sam 
Case Elementary gym and classroom additions are framed and enclosed.  A framing inspection was performed 
and they are beginning interior finish work.  Remodel is underway for two classrooms at the High School.  
Framing inspection completed and finish work is being performed. 
 
O’Reilly Auto Parts:  To locate on the former Big Guys Diner site.  Architect is preparing building plans and 
anticipates construction after the first of the year. 
 
Nazarene Church Outreach/Community Center:  Perimeter foundation in place for footings and the structure is 
enclosed.  Concrete slab has been poured. 
 
Walgreens:  Developer received clearance from DEQ.  Walgreens signed off on the environmental remediation 
and developer is waiting for final approval from the lender on the project financing.  Lender has an issue with the 
format of the SE 1st Street right-of-way vacation.  City and developer are working on an alternative that is to be 
presented to the City Council on 11/5. 
 
Fred Meyer:  Finish work is underway in targeted areas.  New bus shelter to be installed.  Contractor is still 
awaiting parts to finish installation of the elevator/escalator. 
 



Page 2 of 2 

SIGNIFICANT PLANNING PROJECTS 
 
Safe Haven Hill Tsunami Evacuation Improvements:  Scope of interim improvements the City intends to 
undertake while awaiting word on whether or not its grant application will be funded has been conveyed to OEM 
and FEMA..  ODOT will authorize interim work under a right-of-way permit.  Staff to provide project details at a 
joint Council/URA meeting on 11/5/12. 
 
Creation of Land Bank for Work Force Housing:  Top implementation priority of Housing Study adopted by the 
City Council on 6/20/11.  Staff is working with stakeholders to develop an ordinance to provide a framework for 
how the “Land Bank” and “Housing Fund” should function. 
 
Vacation Rental Code Update:  Endorsement applications are being collected and inspections of existing 
vacation rental and bed and breakfast operators are ongoing. 
 
Transportation System Plan Update:  Planning Commission conducted a public hearing and recommended 
adoption on 8/27/12.  Final revisions have been coordinated with key stakeholders.  City Council will hold a 
public hearing on 10/15/12. 
 
Agate Beach Street and Recreation Enhancements:  FHWA announced that project will be grant funded on 
8/2/12 in the amount of $557,696.  City is awaiting grant agreement paperwork from ODOT, who administers 
the program for our state. 
 
Territorial Sea Planning Process:  The state is continuing to work on developing viewshed maps and a policy 
framework for reviewing future wave energy projects.  Staff is assisting where appropriate. 
 
Reservoir UGB Amendment and Annexation:  Preliminary assessment of required UGB findings has been sent 
to the state and county for review and comment.  Planning Commission held a work session to receive a report 
on the condition of the reservoir dams and will await a response from the state before initiating the UGB 
amendment process.  A second, minor UGB amendment is proposed for the old quarry property at the end of 
NE 71st Street.  This is the future site of the Agate Beach storage tank.  The state and county are reviewing the 
preliminary findings and the Commission will hold a work session on that proposal on 10/22/12.  
 
Forest Park Designation:  A management strategy has been prepared, and the Planning Commission held a 
hearing and provided a favorable recommendation on designating the property next to Big Creek Road as a 
“Forest Park.”   The Parks and Recreation Committee will consider the proposal at a meeting on 10/24/12.  This 
item is tentatively scheduled for Council consideration on 11/5/12. 
 
US 101 Utility Undergrounding:  Staff met with Central Lincoln PUD who asked that the City request, in writing, 
that they initiate work on preparing an estimate for undergrounding utilities along US 101.  The letter is being 
prepared.  This may lead into a broader conversation about how the franchise agreement might be adjusted 
moving forward.  That agreement expires in December of 2018. 
 
Newport Economic Opportunity Analysis:  Council adopted the EOA on 10/1/12.  Staff is to reform the Technical 
Advisory Committee to prepare a work plan, position description, and funding recommendations for a business 
recruitment/coordinator function.  This will be timed to inform upcoming budget discussions. 
 
COMMITTEE WORK 
 
Planning Commission:  The Planning Commission held meetings on 9/10/12 and 9/24/12.  A state sponsored 
land use planning training was provided at work sessions on each of these dates.  At the regular sessions, the 
Commission considered a Conditional Use Permit from the Yaquina Bay Baptist Church and conducted a 
hearing on the Newport EOA Amendments. 
 
Parking Districts:  The Nye Beach Parking District met on 9/11/12 to discuss the status of the 3rd street sidewalk 
work, which is scheduled to be complete by the end of October.  They also approved final plans for parking 
stickers (to replace the door hangars) that exempt area residents from 3 hour parking limits.  The new stickers 
have been distributed.  Neither the Bay Front nor the City Center Parking Districts held meetings in September.  
The new electric charging station at 9th and Hurbert public parking lot in the City Center District is now 
operational. 



MEMO… 
To:  Jim Voetberg, City Manager 

From:  Linda Brown, Asst. Finance Director 

Date:  October 10, 2012 

Re:  Department Update – September 2012 

HUMAN RESOURCES: 
 
Elaine Chamberlain, our new Human Resources Representative, started on September 10th.  Elaine has 
had an opportunity to go around to each of the Departments with Peggy Hawker and meet with the 
employees regarding our new Employee Handbook.   
 
In addition, Elaine has been fielding questions from our employees regarding “Open Enrollment” and 
the High Deductible Health Plan, which the majority of the employees will be moving to on January 1, 
2013.  
 
 FINANCE: 
 
SOFTWARE CONVERSION:  On September 5th, we converted our Cash Receipts from the old software to 
Clarity.  The great news about this is our cash received by Kay at the front desk is going directly into our 
General Ledger.   We are in the process of converting our Accounts Receivable.   
 
The week of November 12th, Caselle trainers will be here, training and converting our Utility Billing, 
Business Licenses and Room Tax to Clarity.  The plan is for Court to go through the process during the 
month of December. 
 
In December, we will also be trained on software called, “Express Pay”.  Express Pay will allow the City of 
Newport to start receive credit card payments!!  It will also get our Utility Billing customers the ability to 
go online and look at their Utility Bill, as well as paying on line. 
 
AUDIT:  Our Auditors, Pauly Rogers & Associates, are in the office during the week of October 8 through 
12, doing final field work, in order to complete the audit on a timely basis.  The Audit Committee is 
meeting on October 11 to discuss the findings.   
 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:  I have attached Accounts Receivable aging, similar to what David attached last 
month.  Like David said this is a work in progress. 
 
We may be a man down, but the Finance Department is working hard to keep our goals and plans 
moving forward. 



$

FINANCE DEPARTMENT
REPORT OF DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As of………………………………………………….……………………………… 30‐Sep‐12

UTILITY BILLS: $85,153
Total Customers 4500

Total Arrears   49 1.09%
Total Deqlinquent 225 5.00%

MUNICIPAL COURT $887,573
> = 30 Days 33
> = 60 Days 36
> = 90 Days 35
> = 180 Days 7750

ROOM TAX $26,940
>  60 Days 9000
>  90 Days 900
>  120 Days 12000
>  6 Months 940
> 1 Year 4100

BUSINESS LICIENSES $13,430

MISCELLANEOUS RECEIVABLE  $117,449
Senior Center ‐ Final Payment 42,449
Naterlin Sidewalk Project 75,000

TOTAL DELIQUENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE $1,130,545



 

 

 

 

 

 
  Phil Paige, Fire Chief 
 Newport Fire Department 
 245 NW 10

TH 
ST 

 Newport, Oregon 97365 

 

 
October 11, 2012 
To: Jim Voetberg, City Manager 
Re: Monthly Activities 

 
 
While we haven’t had major incidents lately, we continue to have a lot of them. As of the end of September, we had 
logged 1,298 calls. At that rate, we could have over 1,700 calls this year.  
 
We have made draft SOG’s on Digital Imagery and Social Media. They are currently under review. These SOGs are 
based on national models and are intended to formalize the longstanding informal policy that pictures or videos 
taken on duty will belong to the department 
 
The new Spartan H&W engines have been lettered, and are being equipped with radios and equipment, and 
hopefully will be ready to go by the end of October. Our apparatus operators are scheduling time to get familiar 
with driving and pumping the new engines. 
 
The Council approved the purchase of a building to be used as a new station in the Agate Beach area at 225  NE 
73rd  street. They also approved an automatic aid agreement for certain calls between NE 100th and Cape 
Foulweather or Fogarty Creek. We’ll be working to get similar agreements in place with Toledo and Seal Rock soon. 
 
We continue to meet with the Collaboration Committee. The representatives - Brian Haggerty, Rob Pratt, Andy 
Parker and Chris Rampley - have been talking with our members to bring their thoughts to the meeting. Our next 
meeting will be October 30th in the Council Chambers at 1800 hrs. There has also been a blog set up, so people can 
ask questions about the collaboration possibilities. Offer your thoughts and learn as much as possible. 
  
Work is coming along upstairs at Station 3200, the sheetrock is hung and mudding and taping is just about 
complete. Hopefully painting will begin this week.  Once the construction and re-arranging is done, we will add an 
additional position to the volunteer staffing sign-up sheets, doubling the opportunity to sign up for the stipend 
shifts. 
 
We have started our strategic planning process for the department. This will give us a framework for moving the 
Department forward. We are taking input from our members and hope to have a copy ready for the Council 
approval in a month or two.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted 
Phil Paige, Fire Chief 
 
rmm 
 



NEWPORT FIRE DEPARTMENT
City Report September 2012

5 PERMITS ISSUED:

AUTOMATIC ALARMS: 9 0 BURN PERMITS: 0 0

MEDICAL CALLS: 93 8 FIREWORKS PERMIT: 0 0

MOTOR VEHICLE COLLISION 7 2 FIREWORKS DISPLAY: 0 0

RESCUE 0 0

MUTUAL AID RENDERED: 0 3
TOTAL INSPECTIONS: 12

MUTUAL AID RECEIVED: 0 0
VIOLATIONS: 48

AVIATION STANDBY: 0
ABATEMENTS: 14

PLAN REVIEWS: 7

OVERPRESSURE/RUPTURE: 0 0

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS: 2

CITY CITYRURAL RURAL

OCCUPANCIES of Fires and Automatic Alarms

AIRCRAFT: 0 0 PROCESSING PLANTS: 0 0

BOATS: 0 0 PUBLIC BUILDINGS: 1 0

HOSPITAL/CARE CENTER: 1 0 REPAIR SHOPS: 0 0

HOTEL/MOTEL: 2 0 RESIDENTIAL: 6 3

LABORATORIES: 0 0 RESTAURANT: 0 0

LAUNDRAMATS: 0 0

LAUNDRIES: 0 0

SCHOOLS: 0 0

SERVICE STATION: 0 0

MANUFACTURING: 0 0

MARINA: 0 0

STORAGE: 0 0

STORES: 1 0

MISCELLANEOUS: 0 0

MOTOR VEHICLES: 2 1

TAVERNS: 0 0

TRAILERS: 0 0

NATURAL COVER: 1 1

OFFICES: 0 0

UTILITIES: 0 0

VACANT BUILDINGS: 0 0

CAUSES of Fires and Automatic Alarms

PUBLIC SERVICE 18 0

1 0HAZARDOUS CONDITION

VOLUNTEER HOURS 228

FIRE CALLS: 6

PERSON INSERVICES TOURS: 150



NEWPORT FIRE DEPARTMENT
City Report September 2012

CITY CITYRURAL RURAL

ALARM MALFUNCTION: 3 0 HEATING APPLICANCE: 0 0

INCENDIARY: 0 0CARELESS SMOKING: 0 0

CHILDREN W/HEAT SOUR 0 0 PROHIBITED MATERIALS 0 0

MISTAKEN ALARM: 2 0CLEARANCE: 0 0

ELECTRICAL: 0 0
OPEN FIRES: 0 1

ENGINE BACKFIRE: 0 0

EXPOSURE FIRE: 0 0

FALSE ALARM: 1 0

REKINDLE: 0 0

SCORCHED FOOD: 1 0

FIREWORKS: 0 0

FLAMMABLE LIQUID: 0 0

SPARKS: 1 0

FLUES: 1 0

FRICTION: 0 0

UNDETERMINED: 4 3

GAS LEAK: 0 0

WELDING/CUTTING: 0 0

LOSS OF LIFE INJURY

CIVILIAN: 0 FIREFIGHTER: 0 CIVILIAN: 0 FIREFIGHTER: 0

CAUSES of Fires and Automatic Alarms



 

Memo 
To: Jim Voetberg, City Manager and City Council 

From: Ted Smith, Library Director 

Date: October  15, 2012 

Re: Library Department Update 

   
 
Professional Involvement: 
The Library Director continues to work on a committee, established by the Oregon Library Association and the 
Oregon State Library, to rewrite The Oregon Public Library Standards.  To this end, the Library Director 
attended meetings at the Albany Public Library on September 21st and at the Oregon State Library on October 
4th.   

 
 
 
Other Library News 
With funding from the Foundation, the Library is conducting its annual Card for Every Child Program.  Rebecca 
and Youth Services staff met with teachers and students from all the 2nd grade classes in Newport over the 
past month to encourage all second graders to come to the library and register for a library card.  As an 
incentive, every 2nd grader who registers for a card will receive a free bentcil as a reward. Bentcils are bent 
pencils.  The kids love them; so do staff.  

 
During the last two weeks of September students from all 4th grade classes at Newport Intermediate School 
took turns visiting the Library for guided tours, computer instruction and library card registrations.  With fewer 
and fewer libraries in the public schools, it is more important than ever for students to understand how a public 
library can help them complete their studies and meet their educational goals.  
 
 
During the month of September, Newport Public Library joined libraries nationwide, celebrating Banned Books 
Week.  Each September libraries highlight the importance of maintaining our freedom to read what we choose 
and to fight censorship each and every time it arises.  Every year libraries are challenged to take materials off 
shelves because someone, or some group, finds them offensive.  Over the years, people have challenged 
books like Huckleberry Finn and To Kill a Mockingbird.  The freedom to read is one of the cornerstones of the 
library profession.   

 
We’ve gotten a lot of help with electrical lighting issues from the City’s Building Maintenance Department over 
the past couple of weeks.  The electrical boards that run all the lights and timers throughout the building were 
recently replaced and all of our lights, including the one that lights up our name on the building now work.  The 
building crew was able to do this work themselves – we paid for the parts – saving us the cost of labor from an 
electrical company.   

 
 
 



 

Memo 
To: Jim Voetberg, City Manager and City Council 

From: Jim Protiva, Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: September 12, 2012 

Re: Department Update-September 2012 

 
 
Municipal Pool  
 

• Annual Pool maintenance shutdown - accomplished multiple tasks 
• Sold out one session of swimming lessons and started registering for a second 
• Average of 30 swimmers daily for swim team  
• Started after school recreation swims on Fridays with good attendance  

 
 

Recreation Center 
 

• Summer Activity Club concluded and After School Program began 
• Re-painting of ducts, replacement of lights and refinishing of floors complete 
• New classes include Baby & Me, Do Re Mi, and Toddler and Me 
• Had some disruption of classes and use on 8th & 9th due to floor finish fumes 

 
 

Sports Programs 
 

• Record participation in youth volleyball with 132 kids registered 
• Middle School cross country meet on the beach had over 150 kids 
• Adult coed softball league concluded (Izzy’s victorious over Newport Café) 
• A volleyball round robin tournament brought 900 people to the Rec Center  

 
Senior Activity Center 
 

• September was Senior Center Month and was acknowledged by proclamation 
• A new railing was installed around back deck and windows repaired (under warranty) 
• Received an Outstanding Program Award by ORPA for Readers Theatre 
• Hosted the Arthritis informational panel on Sept. 10th approx. 30 attended 







2 5 8 x 40 38

Newport Police Department
Monthly Statistical Review

SEPTEMBER 2012 Total CFS To Date

SELECTED CALLS THIS LAST SAME TIME This Last
FOR SERVICE  (CFS) MONTH MONTH LAST YEAR ARRESTS Year Year
RAPE 1 1 1 0 8 7
ROBBERY 0 0 1 0 3 3
AGGRAVATED ASSAULT 3 3 1 1 13 10
BURGLARY (Residential) 5 5 1 0 18 13
BURGLARY (Business) 3 3 2 0 11 8
BURGLARY (Other) 1 3 0 1 8 7
THEFT 45 45 26 20 312 267
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 4 0 11 0 34 30
FRAUD 5 9 1 1 51 46
SIMPLE ASSAULT 8 15 10 8 100 92
VANDALISM 5 13 5 1 57 52
SEX OFFENSE 1 5 7 0 21 20
NARCOTIC/DRUGS 3 10 7 1 78 75
DOMESTIC DISPUTES 27 22 16 x 177 150
LIQUOR LAWS 3 0 1 3 33 30
DUII 5 6 5 5 66 61
DISORDERLY CONDUCT 13 19 7 9 122 109
TRESPASS/PROWLER 7 8 6 4 69 62
TRAFFIC CRASH/INJURY/FATALTRAFFIC CRASH/INJURY/FATAL 2 5 8 x 40 38
TRAFFIC CRASH/PROPERTY 11 16 5 x 82 71
HIT & RUN 11 14 12 0 80 69
ANIMAL PROBLEMS 19 22 26 x 206 187
SUSPICIOUS PERS/CIRCUM 63 98 84 0 867 804
VEHICLE IMPOUNDS 4 5 4 x 70 66
ALARMS 39 28 29 x 378 339

105
TOTAL CALLS FOR SERVICE 740 844 797 7,572 6,832



Too y 7

September Overtime Hours
Shift Coverage 155
Court 33
Investigations 45
Administration 13
Training 39
Other 28
TOTAL HOURS 312

Top 5 Traffic Citation Charges
Driving Susp/Revoked       14
Speeding 12
Driving Uninsured 7
Following Too CloselyFollowing   Closel 7
No Operator License 5
TOTAL CITATIONS 73

PARKING CITATIONS     18
WARNING CITATIONS 161
TCB PRKNG CITES/WRNGS 94

Volunteer Hours 367





 

Memo 
To: Jim Voetberg, City Manager and City Council 

From: Ted Jones,PE, Sr  Proj Mgr 

Date: October 15th, 2012 

Re: Capital Projects Status Update 

 
  
 Project:  Naterlin Dr. to YBSP Sidewalks   
Project Number:  2011-010   
 Status:  Final landscaping and punch list items remain.  Lights are currently being 

wired. 
 Next Task: Close out the project. 
 Budget:  $182,417         
 Description:  Construct a network of sidewalks at the north end of the Yaquina Bay Bridge, 

connecting Naterlin Drive, Yaquina State Park, and Highway 101.      
 
 Project:  NW 3rd Sidewalks   
Project Number:  2011-013   
 Status:  Construction continues along NW 3rd from NW Lee to NW Nye.  Three (3) 

commercial driveways remain for completion and work will take place during 
normal business hours, during the workweek.    

 Next Task:  Complete commercial drives and sidewalk segments between NW Nye and 
US-101. 

 Budget:  $165,000         
 Description:  This project will extend sidewalks on NW 3rd Street from Hwy 101 to Hurbert 

Street in Nye Beach. 
 
 Project:  Hwy 101 Sewer & Water Improvements   
Project Number:  2011-008   
 Status: Obtained dewatering well permits from OWRD.  Submittal technical review is 

nearing completion.  Laskey-Clifton is continuing with mobilization and site 
preparation. 

 Next Task: Install dewatering system and start sewer installation approximately 500’ 
north of SE 50th street.  

 Budget: $1.3MM 
 Description:  This project replaces undersized and aging water pipes in the South Beach 

area, improving water capacity and pressure. In addition, sanitary sewer 
pipes are being extended allowing adjacent properties to connect to City 
services, thereby abandoning aging septic systems. The extension of water 
and sewer services in this area allows future residential and commercial 
growth in South Beach. This project is primarily funded through South Beach 
Urban Renewal. 

 
 



 Project: Street Overlays and Improvements 
Project Number:  2012-017   
 Status:  A Notice of Intent to Award was issued to Road and Driveway Company for 

$144,146.30.  Evaluation of quantities is underway. 
 Next Task:  Issue the award notice. 
 Budget:  $144,146.30 
 Description:  Repair and overlay NE 20th, NE 2nd, and NW 3rd Streets 
 
 
 Project: NE 3rd & Avery Sewer Re-alignment   
Project Number:  2010-012   
 Status:  Pre-Construction meeting held on 09 October 2012.  Existing utility location is 

underway.  Coordinating with GP Engineering staff to plan work around GP 
pressure pipeline. 

 Next Task:  Install storm sewer on NE 3rd St. 
 Budget:  $335,183.66         
 Description:  This project is to relocate a failing sanitary sewer line that is currently located 

under a house on NE 3rd Street. The sanitary sewer and an adjacent storm 
sewer line will be relocated to the west within the street right-of-way. 

 
 Project:  Big Creek Sewer Rehabilitation 
Project Number:  2010-001   
 Status:  Project awarded to CG Contractors LLC for $234,985.  Pre-Construction 

meeting held on 09 October 2012.     
 Next Task:  Planning underway for mobilization the week of 15 October 2012. 
 Budget:  $234,985 
 Description:  This project will address infiltration and inflow issues that are contributing to 

sanitary sewer backups at the Big Creek Lift Station. In addition, the 
backwash water from the new water treatment plant will be discharged to this 
system. For these reasons, the Big Creek sanitary sewer system between 
Hwy 101 and Big Creek Road will be replaced and the pipe size increased 
through pipe bursting.  

 
 Project:  Water Treatment Plant   
Project Number: 2010-010   
 Status:  Plant is producing water and 30-day acceptance testing continues. 
 Next Task:  Secure final commissioning certifications. 
 Budget:  $15,000,000         
 Description:  Construction of a new water treatment plant which will provide significantly 

increased production and quality of water for residents of Newport.   
 
 
 Project: AIP-020 RWY 16/34 Rehabilitation Pre-Design 
Project Number:  2012-094 
 Status:  Geotechnical, Surveying, Pipe Inspection, and Electrical contractors are 

mobilizing to perform field investigations and data collection.  It is anticipated 
that the work will take approximately three (3) weeks.   

 Next Task:  Monitor progress of field investigations and data collection. 
 Budget:  $500,000 
 Description:  Pre-design to rehabilitate RWY 16/34 with a FAA compliant x-section, a full 

overlay, improved drainage, lighting, and safety areas. The last major pavement 
improvement project was 30 years ago and the pavement is at the end of its 
useful service life.   

  

Project Status Memo - ATJ  10-15-12 Page 2 of 3 
  October 10, 2012 

 



Project Status Memo - ATJ  10-15-12 Page 3 of 3 
  October 10, 2012 

 

 
 Project: Ash Street Design and Construction 
Project Number:  2010-003 
 Status:  Drainage re-design complete and contract documents are being prepared. 
 Next Task:  Finalize contract documents. 
 Budget:  $557,000         
 Description:  Design and construct Ash Street between SE 40th St. and SE Ferry Slip 

Road. 
 
Projects in Design or Analysis Phase 
 
Water Treatment and Distribution 

• 2011‐018 Agate Beach Tank, Salmon Run Pump Station and Waterlines – Tank design 
complete and pump station/waterline at 75%. 

• 2012‐012 Big Creek Dam Outlet Rehab Project – construction plan preparation started 
and permits required from DSL and COE. 

• 2012‐014 South Beach SCADA Improvements – project alternative under City Staff 
review. 

• 2012‐013 Lakewood Hills Pump Station Upgrades – Field investigation underway and 
design is initiated – on going. 

• 2012‐010 Yaquina Heights Tank Rehab  ‐ Scope of Work under development ‐ NTR 
• 2011‐025 Big Creek Dam 1 and 2 – Finalizing the report. ‐ NTR 

 
Streets and Storm Drainage 

• 2012‐015 Bayfront/John Moore Drainage Upgrade – Scope of Work under development 
‐ NTR 

• 2011‐027 Infrastructure Mapping – new GPS equipment has increase the efficiency and 
accuracy of the on‐going field work.  Preparation of “Draft” maps is underway. 

• 2011‐024 US‐101 Crosswalks – Scope of work under development to facilitate 
consultant selection. ‐ NTR 

 
Wastewater Collection and Treatment 

• 2012‐008 WWTP Biosolids Evaluation – Technical memo is being prepared by 
Consultant. 

• 2011‐005 Bayside Sewer Rehab – Technical memo is being prepared by consultant. 
• 2012‐025 Big Creek Pump Station – Design workshop with City Staff and Consultant is in 

planning. 
• 2012‐024 Big Creek Force Main – engineering Scope of Work under development. ‐ NTR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  





City of Newport 
169 SW Coast Highway 
Newport, OR 97365 
P|541-574-3366 F|541-574-3301 
http://www.thecityofnewport.net/ 

Memo 
To: City Council 

From: Timothy Gross, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

Date: 10/12/2012 

RE: Update on Newport Gas Tax Usage and Revenues 

 
The City of Newport Gas tax has been collected since January of 2010. Total revenue accruals as of July 2012 
are $383,765. Street improvement projects over the past two fiscal years have been funded through three 
primary revenue sources: the City of Newport Gas Tax, the appropriations the City receives from the State Gas 
Tax, and the appropriations the City receives from the Federal Government distributed through the ODOT Fund 
Exchange program. 
 
The following chart summarizes the street projects from the past two fiscal years since the Newport gas tax has 
been budgeted. The funding sources are listed across the top and have two columns: the original amount 
budgeted and the actual amount used or proposed for that project.  
 
Unlike the City and State gas taxes which are collected monthly and annually respectively, the ODOT Fund 
Exchange money is received on a reimbursement basis. The policy of Public Works has been to submit 
reimbursement for the ODOT Fund Exchange money with whatever projects are completed first and are 
eligible.  This requires staff to adjust the allocation of funding sources accordingly. 
 
During the development of the CIP, staff has allocated revenues from the Newport Gas Tax based upon 
collections from the previous fiscal year. This ensures that the funds are actually available, and are not based 
upon projected revenues. Staff budgeted conservatively because the budget for the new fiscal year was 
completed before the total revenues from the previous fiscal year were determined. Actual Newport Gas Tax 
revenues exceed FY 2011 and 2012 budgeted revenues by $53,759. Staff plans to submit a budget adjustment 
requesting to use a portion of these funds for street projects this fiscal year as reflected in the following project 
funding summary. 
 



Total Project   Total  
Project   Newport Gas Tax  State Gas Tax  2012 Fund Exc  2011 Fund Exc  2010 Fund Exc  2009 Fund Exc  Commitments  Funding 

Project name  Number  Budget  Actual  Budget  Actual  Budget  Actual  Budget  Actual  Budget  Actual  Budget  Actual  to Date:  Sources: 
2011 Street Overlay Project  2011‐009  $108,316  $14,465  $60,581  $38,177  $35,995  $57,707  $168,748  $168,747 
Sidewalk and Bicycle Imp. (3rd 
Street Sidewalk)  2011‐013                     $15,000  $15,000  $15,000  $15,000 

Big Creek Road Landslide Repairs  2011‐003  $71,690  $132,271  $115,810  $55,229  $187,500  $187,500 
2012 Street Overlays and 
Improvements  2012‐017    $42,953               $103,661  $103,611  $32,202  $144,146  $146,564 

2012 Street Operations, 
Materials and Services  N/A  $103,611  $103,611                      $103,611  $103,611 

Sidewalk and Bicycle 
Improvements  2012‐016    $5,611  $9,389  $9,389      $5,611            $14,090  $15,000 

Hwy 101 Pedestrian Crossings  2011‐024  $46,389  $46,389  $5,611  $5,611  $52,000  $52,000 
Naterlin Drive to YBSP Sidewalk 
Improvements  2011‐010    $17,417                   $17,417  $17,417  $17,417 

$330,006  $362,717  $30,000  $30,000  $103,661  $103,611  $171,040  $115,810  $38,177  $35,995  $0  $57,707  $702,512  $705,840 

  
Completed 
Projects 

Newport Gas Tax     Spent/Committed:  $702,512 
Actual Accruals through end of FY12  $383,765.00  Reimbursed through Fund Exchange:  $154,283 

Remaining obligation:  $548,229 
Budgeted FY12  $180,006.00  Remaining Fund Exchange Amount:  $158,891 
Budgeted FY13  $150,000.00  State Gas Tax Commitments:  $30,000 

$330,006.00  Newport Gas Tax Needs:  $359,338 
Gas Tax Budgeted:  $330,006 

Unbudgeted Gas Tax Available:  $53,759.00  Budgeted Newport Gas Tax Available over current commitments:  ‐$29,332 
Newport Gas Tax Available over current commitments:  $24,427 

 



 

OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY 

FOR LINCOLN COUNTY 

225 WEST OLIVE STREET, ROOM 100 
NEWPORT, OREGON  97365 

541-265-4145, FAX 541-265-3461 
www.co.lincoln.or.us/da/ 

ROB BOVETT 

District Attorney 
 

KYLIE ANDRISA 

Deputy District Attorney 
 

JOE BECK 

Deputy District Attorney 
 

GWEN BEE 

Deputy District Attorney 
 

MICHELLE BRANAM 

Deputy District Attorney 
 

JILL WAGNER 

Office Manager 

MARCIA BUCKLEY 

Chief Deputy District Attorney 
 

JONATHAN CABLE 

Deputy District Attorney 
 

BRIAN GARDNER 

Deputy District Attorney 
 

ELIJAH MICHALOWSKI  

Deputy District Attorney 
 

NELLY WRIGHT 

Deputy District Attorney 
 

MARCIA THOMPSON 

Victim Services Supervisor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 October 11, 2012 
 

 

Newport City Council 

Newport, Oregon 
 

 

Dear Mayor McConnell, and Councilors Bertuleit, Roumagoux, Allen, Beemer, Brusselback, and Sawyer, 

 

 As you may recall, Sheriff Dotson and I visited you some time ago to express our concern about the 

City's lack of commitment to the Lincoln Interagency Narcotics Team (LINT).  LINT is our primary tool for 

the interception of bulk illicit drugs, as well as the primary entity responsible for intervening in neighborhood 

drug houses and burglary rings.  LINT is not just some cog in the ill-named and ill-fated so-called "war on 

drugs."  They perform a type of vital work that street officers cannot effectively perform.  This is a matter of 

community liability.  The Sheriff and I left your meeting feeling like we had your commitment to a restored 

LINT detective. 

 

Where do things stand right now?  Newport still has no detective assigned to LINT.  Bulk meth 

into Newport is up and, as I am told, so are burglary calls.  Yet all we have is promises of possible 

restoration of a LINT detective maybe by next Spring, depending upon staffing.  Well, staffing will never 

be at full capacity.  Like other similar law enforcement agencies, someone will always be leaving 

Newport.  Even if it were temporarily at full staffing, it is clear that LINT is the lowest priority for the 

City.  In other words, if Newport is down by one officer, the LINT detective is the first pulled.  If this 

situation remains the same at the end of this calendar year, I fear the demise of LINT. 

 

As a citizen of Newport, and as your District Attorney, I cannot remain silent while public safety 

in our community is impaired.  I would like to know what, if anything, you intend to do. 

 

As always, please don't hesitate to contact me if I can provide any further information. 

 

      Sincerely, 

       
      Rob Bovett 

      Lincoln County District Attorney 





 Agenda Item #   
 Meeting Date October 15, 2012  
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title Public Hearing on Revisions to the Newport Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance Related 
to the City’s Transportation System Plan and Creation of an Alternate Mobility Standard for US 101 in South Beach 
 
Prepared By: Derrick Tokos  Dept Head Approval:  DT   City Mgr Approval:    
 
ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:  Consideration of whether or not it is in the public interest to amend the 
Transportation System Plan element of the Newport Comprehensive Plan to set out a policy framework in support of 
an alternate mobility standard for US 101 south of the Yaquina Bay Bridge.  An alternate mobility standard is a tool that 
the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) can use to allow more vehicle trips to be generated onto US 101 
than is permissible under current state law.  It would be put in place by the Oregon Highway Commission once the City 
and County adopt the proposed amendments. 
 
In addition to amendments to the Newport Comprehensive Plan, the Newport Zoning Ordinance will be amended to 
establish a trip budget program for South Beach, citywide traffic impact analysis requirements, and citywide 
transportation improvement requirements for infill development.  Functional classification maps of the City’s road 
network and future City transportation project priorities/cost estimates have also been updated. 
 
At its August 27, 2012 meeting the Newport Planning Commission considered the proposal and provided a favorable 
recommendation.  Some changes have been made since the Commission meeting, as outlined in the summary below. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   If, after taking public testimony, the Council determines that it is in the public 
interest to adopt these amendments then it should direct staff to prepare an implementing ordinance for consideration 
at a future meeting.  
 
MOTIONS FOR ADOPTION:   
 
1(a)  Adopt as Proposed:  I move to direct staff, in consultation with the City Attorney, to prepare an ordinance 
amending the Newport Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance to incorporate the amendments as presented. 
 
1(b)  Adopt with Amendments:  I move to direct staff, in consultation with the City Attorney, to prepare an ordinance 
amending the Newport Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance to incorporate the amendments as presented, with 
the following changes ___(describe additional revisions)__. 
 
(2)  Motion Requesting Fee Resolution:  I move to direct staff to prepare a fee resolution for Council consideration that 
covers roughly 50% of the direct cost to the City of preparing trip assessment and vesting letters, such approach being 
consistent with existing City policy for establishing land use fees as set forth in Resolution No. 3486. 
 
KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:  Since 2006 the City of Newport and ODOT have been 
working to update various elements of the City’s Transportation System Plan (TSP).  A local street plan was adopted for 
areas north of the Yaquina Bay Bridge and a comprehensive update was prepared to the City’s Bike and Pedestrian 
Plan.  Both of these plans were completed in 2008.  Much of the City of Newport’s growth potential is located in its 
South Beach neighborhood.  The parties recognized that capacity limits of the Yaquina Bay Bridge and ODOT’s 
existing mobility standard for US 101 severely restrict long term growth in this portion of the City. 

Page 1 of 4 

n.morris
Typewritten Text
VIII-A



Page 2 of 4 

To address this challenge, the City of Newport has worked with ODOT and area landowners to identify improvements 
that need to be made to the transportation system in South Beach to improve traffic flow so that more robust 
development can occur.  This was done for a 20 year planning period.  The City of Newport extended its South Beach 
Urban Renewal District to provide funding within this timeframe that can be matched with state resources, and funding 
from private developers to construct the projects.  The effort assumes that the Yaquina Bay Bridge will not be replaced 
within 20 years, and this constraint is being relied upon by the state as justification for establishing an alternate mobility 
standard that will allow greater congestion on US 101 south of the bridge than is currently permitted.   
 
The City, County, and State began to work in earnest to develop the US 101 alternate mobility standard in 2009, starting 
with detailed analysis of the existing transportation system, followed by modeling of different growth scenarios 
considering realistic levels of development that are likely to occur based upon interviews with key stakeholders and 
various environmental constraints.  This analysis was packaged and presented to the public in 2011 at a series of 
informational meetings.  A joint meeting of the Newport and Lincoln County Planning Commissions was held on 
February 28, 2011, followed by an open house on May 4, 2011, a joint meeting of the Newport Planning Commission 
and City Council on June 20, 2011, and a second open house on June 27, 2011.  Direct mail notice was provided to 
property owners in South Beach for the open houses and press releases were issued to generate public interest. 
 
Community engagement in 2011 was focused largely on the issue of what the community wanted to achieve with an 
alternate mobility standard.  That feedback was then used to conduct additional analysis of the transportation system 
and to develop a proposed package of policies and standards.  This occurred through the fall and winter of 2011/2012.  
Outreach efforts in 2012 were largely focused on gauging community acceptance of the proposal and making targeted 
adjustments to the new standards based upon that feedback.  An open house was held on May 24, 2012, followed by 
work sessions with the Newport Planning Commission on June 25, 2012, July 9, 2012 and July 23, 2012.   
 
The proposed package of policies and standards include amendments to the TSP element of the Newport 
Comprehensive Plan that set out a policy framework in support of an alternate mobility standard for US 101 that 
applies to lands within the Newport Urban Growth Boundary between the Yaquina Bay Bridge and SE 62nd Street.  It 
includes direction to establish a trip budget program that divides the area into Transportation Analysis Zones (TAZs).  
Each TAZ is allocated a total number of trips that is based upon the amount of growth projected within a 20 year 
timeframe.  The City is then charged with tracking the consumption of trips in each TAZ to ensure that growth is 
occurring in line with projections and to allow for adjustments if it is not.  Functional classification maps describing the 
City’s existing and future transportation system have been updated, as have the project tables that describe the City’s 
transportation project priorities.  A new Chapter 14.43 of the Newport Municipal Code contains the details of how the 
trip budget program will work.  New Chapters 14.44 and 14.45 of the Newport Municipal Code are also proposed.  
They apply citywide, and put in place transportation improvement requirements for infill development and 
requirements for when and how traffic impact analysis is to be conducted.  Cross references and targeted amendments 
are also proposed to Chapter 13.05 of the Newport Municipal Code regulating subdivisions and partitions. 
 
While this work was being undertaken, the City completed transportation refinement plans for certain areas to address 
immediate needs.  These include the South Beach Peninsula Transportation Refinement Plan (2010), the Agate Beach 
Wayside Improvements Concept Plan (2011), and the Coho/Brant Infrastructure Refinement Plan (2012).  
Recommendations in these plans that have not yet been implemented have been incorporated into the TSP 
amendments. 
 
At a public hearing on August 27, 2012, the Planning Commission considered the proposed amendments and provided 
a favorable recommendation to the City Council.  After this hearing, Landwaves, Inc., who owns a substantial amount 
of property in the area, expressed a concern that the trip budget program outlined in NMC Chapter 14.43 did not 
clearly identify when the City would deduct trips from the budget and allocate or “vest” them with specific properties.  
The language has been revised in response to this concern, and now provides that trips will be deducted at such time as 
a land use decision is approved and vest when the decision is implemented.  For tentative and final subdivision plats, 



Page 3 of 4 

the vesting period is limited to 10 years, which is consistent with the “no changing the goal post” guarantees for plats 
outlined under ORS 92.040.  Minor replats, partitions, and property line adjustments will not receive trip allocations 
since they do not necessarily involve development.  There are many types of development projects that do not require 
approval through a land use decision making process.  In those cases, a developer may want assurances that trips are 
available before going to the expense of preparing construction plans.  This is addressed by way of a vesting letter that is 
good for a period of up to 6 months or such time as a building permit is obtained, whichever timeframe is shorter. 
 
In a October 10, 2012 letter, Landwaves, Inc. asks that the Council further revise Chapter 14.43 to take some portion of 
the vehicle trips that will become available when the state adopts the alternate mobility standard and vest those trips in 
their existing lots.  They also ask that a procedure be put in place to allow an extension to the 10 year vesting limit for 
plats.  Staff does not support these changes.  Existing lots were approved under the existing state mobility standard for 
US 101, which in the case of Landwaves, Inc. led to a settlement agreement which caps the number of trips that the 
property can generate onto the highway.  To the extent that the Landwaves, Inc. lots have a “vesting” interest in trips, it 
is to what is specified in that agreement.  Once the state adopts the alternative mobility standard, Landwaves, Inc., and 
other property owners will be able to generate more traffic onto the highway.  At public meetings early in this process 
the City, County and ODOT discussed whether or not this new batch of trips (4,862 in sum) should be allocated to 
individual properties or if they should be allocated on a first come first serve basis.  This was discussed with 
stakeholders and it was ultimately determined that a first come first serve approach was preferable in that it is easier to 
implement and ensures that trips are available to properties that are ready to develop (as opposed to being locked up in 
properties that may not develop within the 20 year planning period).  ODOT will not support allocating the new trips 
to some existing lots but not others, meaning that in order to get the alternative mobility standard adopted the City 
would have to redraft the amendments and allocate trips to all of the existing properties in the plan area.  It does not 
have sufficient budget or resources to undertake this kind of effort at this time.  As for extending the 10 year vesting 
period for plats, it is unclear if that is permissible under ORS 92.040.  Also, the proposed amendments contain a 6 
month vesting letter that can be obtained, and reauthorized, should a vesting period lapse so there is a means for a 
developer to ensure trips are available before investing resources in developing a property. 
 
The City Council held a work session on the proposed amendments on September 17, 2012.  Once the City and County 
adopt the changes (and the County has not started its process yet) the Oregon Transportation Commission will hold a 
public hearing to consider amendments to the Oregon Highway Plan. Adoption of the amendments by the 
Commission would put in place the alternate mobility standards. 
 
The Department of Land Conservation & Development was provided notice of the proposed legislative amendment in 
accordance with the DLCD requirements on July 9, 2012.  Notice of the City Council hearing was provided to 
stakeholders and interested parties in the South Beach area; public/private utilities and agencies; and affected city 
departments on October 4, 2012.  Notice of the hearing was published in the Newport News-Times on October 10, 
2012. 
 
OTHER ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL GOALS:  Completing the Transportation System Plan Update was a prior Council goal.  
 
ATTACHMENT LIST:   
Mark-up copy of proposed Transportation System Plan amendments, dated October 15, 2012 
New Municipal Code Chapter 14.43, South Beach Transportation Overlay Zone, dated October 15, 2012 
New Municipal Code Chapter 14.44, Transportation Standards, dated October 15, 2012 
New Municipal Code Chapter 14.45, Traffic Impact Analysis Standards, dated October 15, 2012 
Minutes from the August 27, 2012 Planning Commission meeting 
Public Notice for October 15, 2012 City Council hearing 
Settlement Agreement 



Page 4 of 4 

Letter from Landwaves, Inc. dated October 10, 2012 
Copy of ORS 92.040 
Resolution No. 3486 
 
FISCAL NOTES:  There will be an additional cost to the City in acquiring software to calculate trip consumption 
and in preparing trip assessment and vesting letters.  A permit fee should be adopted to recover a portion of the 
City’s direct costs in providing this service.  This would be consistent with City policy outlined in Resolution No. 
3486.  



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 1 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152a 

 

NEWPORT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN* 

Proposed changes to the Transportation System Plan are shown in underlined text for 

new language and stikethrough text for suggested deletions. Tables and Figures are 

replaced in their entirety. 

 
This Transportation System Plan (TSP) describes the individual elements that make up the 

transportation framework system for the City of Newport.  Plus, the TSP represents 

recommended project improvements and goals and policies towards establishing a coordinated 

multi-modal transportation network for the City of Newport intended to comply with Statewide 

Planning Goal 12 and the Transportation Planning Rule. 

 

The complete TSP describes in detail the various components of a transportation system, makes a 

complete analysis of those various components, and describes the process used to develop the 

plan.  The current Transportation System Plan was completed in 1997 and adopted in 1999.  In 

2008, s Several updates to the plan were adopted, including major updates in 2008 and 2012.  By 

this reference, the complete TSP as amended by Ordinance No(s). 1963 is incorporated herein.  

Where the text references “TSP,”, the reference is to the TSP as amended unless otherwise noted. 

 

However, the complete plan, including the updates, is morecontains more information than most 

individuals want to wade sort through to helpwhen looking for guide guidance the on how future 

decisions should be made to implement the plan.  This section will therefore summarize the 

projects contained in the TSP and include the goals and policies needed to assure compliance.  

Persons interested in obtaining For a more complete thorough understanding of the or 

analysisreasoning for the projects, goals, and policies should review, the full TSP documentation 

referenced in Policy 1, Goal 1 of this chapter.should be consulted. 

 

Transportation System Plans for Each Mode 
 

The transportation System Plan TSP places a strong emphasis on the preservation and improved 

operation of the Highway US 20 and Highway US 101 corridors.  The City of Newport views 

Highway US 101 and Highway US 20 as the most important arterials in the multi-modal 

transportation network and likewise recognizes the importance of these facilities as statewide 

facilities per the Oregon Highway Plan.  In implementation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 

the associated Transportation System Plan, the City will strive to maintain the function of these 

facilities to meet their statewide as well as regional needs. 

 

The Transportation System Plan comprises all the improvements in the Middle Alternative, as 

developed during the TSP process.  The Middle Alternative has been identified as the preferred 

alternative, which includes transportation improvements that support the identified goals and 

objectives and the adopted and acknowledged Comprehensive Plan.  The preferred alternative 

recommends $77 million in capital improvements over the next 20 years ($31 million in surface 

transportation improvements).  The following describes the recommended projects for each mode 

contained in the preferred alternative.  For further specifics on the projects, refer to the complete 

Transportation System Plan. 

 

The transportation System Plan TSP was amended in 2008 to add a North Side Local Street Plan 

to support commercial development and redevelopment activity within the area bounded by 12
th
 

Street on the north, John Moore/Harney Drive on the east, the Pacific Ocean on the west, and the 

Yaquina Bay on the south.  The 2008 amendment included a more comprehensive Pedestrian and  
 

*Added by Ordinance No. 1802 (1-4-99); Amended by Ordinance No. 1963 (8-18-08) and Ordinance No. 

XX (X-X-12). 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 2 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152b 

 

Bicycle Plan for the entire City.  In February of 2010 a refinement plan was prepared for the 

South Beach Peninsula to identify transportation and related improvements to SE Marine Science 

Drive, SE Ferry Slip Road, SE Pacific Way, SE 25
th
 Street and SW Abalone Street, needed to 

support marine research and industrial development anchored by the new NOAA pacific marine 

operations center. The TSP was last amended in 2012 to address needed system improvements 

south of the Yaquina Bay Bridge, in Newport’s South Beach Area, including an infrastructure 

refinement plan for the Coho / Brant neighborhood situated west of Highway 101 and north of 

SW 35
th
 Street. 

 

The City has concentrated recent efforts on addressing transportation and land use issues in the 

South Beach area (south of the Yaquina Bay Bridge) where a significant amount of the City’s 

new development is anticipated.  A combination of anticipated 2030 levels of land development 

in South Beach and increasing background traffic volumes along US 101 will result in greater 

congestion levels, particularly during the summertime peak. However, traffic growth is likely to 

be high enough that other times of the year will also experience significant congestion.  The City 

has an adopted South Beach Urban Renewal Plan that includes street improvements which will be 

critical new components of the system. However, due to limited State transportation funding for 

bridge improvement or replacement, the capacity of the Yaquina Bay Bridge is expected to 

continue to be the major constraint in the operation of the transportation system south of the 

bridge.  Because of this, the City and ODOT worked together to identify a transportation system 

and management strategy that will support future growth in South Beach, one that includes 

alternative mobility standards for US 101, strategic improvements to the state highway, and a 

variety of improvements to both the local roadway system and the pedestrian and bicycle system.  

The improvements are discussed further in the Transportation Planning in South Beach section.  

The local and state actions and improvements that are identified for South Beach constitute the 

reasonable limits of what can be done to improve congestion on US 101, short of building more 

capacity into the Yaquina Bay Bridge. The City is committed to finding long-term solutions 

sufficient to address the existing capacity and structural limitations of the existing structure that 

affect the bridge’s ability to carry vehicles and pedestrians.  To this end, the City will continue to 

engage ODOT, Lincoln County, and its other regional partners in conversations regarding future 

project planning and funding that would lead to improvements to, and possibly replacement of, 

the Yaquina Bay Bridge. 

 

Roadway Improvements 
 

The roadway improvements include new roadway construction, focusing primarily on a north-

south arterial to be constructed in stages.  The majority of the projects include reconstruction or 

making minor improvements to existing roads in order to increase traffic flow.  for extensions and 

improvements to existing facilities as well as the development of new facilities. The 

recommended roadway improvements are listed in Table 1 and Table 2 and are discussed in more 

detail in the Transportation System Plan.  Table 2A identifies the recommended projects based on 

the north side local street plan amendment. Table 1 identifies project location, description and 

priority for projects in the local roadway system. As indicated by headings in Table 1, the projects 

listed are identified by the 1997 TSP, as well as updates to this plan in 2008 and 2012.  All 

project cost estimates are shown in 2011 2012 dollars; cost estimates for projects from the 1997 

TSP (and 2008 update) have been redone adjusted for projects that have been altered or partially 

implemented.  Projects Costs for projects yet to be implemented have been adjusted to account 

for inflation.  

 

  



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 3 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152c 

Table 1:  Roadway Improvement Projects (replaces tables 1, 2 and 2A) 

Project Description Functional 

Class 

Sidewalks Bicycle 

Lanes 

Priority  Estimated 

Cost ($2012)
1
 

Source 

New Roadway Projects or Extensions 

NE Harney Street between NE 

3
rd

 and Hwy 20 

Minor 

Arterial 

Yes Yes High $824,000 2012 

Cost 

Estimate 

North-South Arterial – Phase 

IB 

(between NE 7
th

 St and NE 

32
nd

 St) From 1997 TSP 

Minor 

Arterial 

No No Medium $3,720,000 

 

1997 

TSP 

Extend NW Nye St to Ocean 

View Dr From 1997 TSP 

Minor 

Arterial 

Yes Yes High $240,000
 

1997 

TSP 

Connect SE 1
st
 St (between SE 

Douglas and SE Fogarty) 

Local Yes Yes  

(one 

side) 

Low $250,000 

 

1997 

TSP 

Extend NE Avery St (between 

NE 71
st
 St and NE 73

rd
 St 

Local Yes No Low $369,000 2012 

Cost 

Estimate 

Extend SW Abbey St to SW 

Elizabeth St 

Collector Yes No Medium $141,000 2012 

Cost 

Estimate 

Extend NE 5
th

 St (between NE 

7
th

 Dr and Newport Heights 

Rd 

Local No No Low $1,680,000 2012 

Cost 

Estimate 

Extend NW Biggs to NW 60
th

 

St and Extend NW 60
th

 St to 

US 101 

Collector Yes No Low $102,000 1997 

TSP/199

5 Cost 

Estimate 

Extend NW Harney Dr 

(between US 101 and Ocean 

View Dr) 

Collector Yes Yes Medium $452,000 1997 

TSP/ 

1995 

Cost 

Estimate  

Extend SW Abalone from SW 

29
th

 Street to SW 35
th

 

Street/US 101 

Collector Yes Yes High $2,315,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Ash Street at SE 40
th

 Street, 

extend to approx. 1,200 feet 

south 

Collector Yes Yes Medium $1,473,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

New SE 50
th

 Street segment 

extending from existing road 

Collector Yes Yes Low $1,565,000 2012 

South 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 4 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152d 

Project Description Functional 

Class 

Sidewalks Bicycle 

Lanes 

Priority  Estimated 

Cost ($2012)
1
 

Source 

to South Beach State Park 

entrance 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

New road from SE 50
th

 Street 

to SE 62
nd

 Street at US 101 

Collector Yes Yes Low $5,017,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

Extend SW 28
th

 Street south 

from SW 27
th

 Street to connect 

with SW Brant Street 

Local Yes No Low $554,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Construct SW 35
th

 street from 

US 101 to SE Ferry Slip Rd 

Collector Yes Yes Medium $653,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Improvements to Existing Roadways 

Reconstruct NE 3
rd

 St 

(between NE Eads St and NE 

Harney Dr)  

Local Yes No Medium $243,000 1997 

TSP 

Extension of 60
th

 east of 

Highway 101 to connect with 

Hazel Ct and the improvement 

of hazel down to NE 57
th

 

Street  

Collector Yes No Low $94,000 1997 

TSP 

Widen US 101 to five lanes 

(NE NE 31
st
 Street to North 

City Limits) 

Principal 

Arterial 

Yes Yes Low $13,000,000 1997 

TSP 

Widen US 20 to five lanes 

(John Moore Rd to US 101) 

Principal 

Arterial 

Yes Yes Medium $1,730,000 1997 

TSP 

Add travel lanes on US 101 

from Yaquina Bay Bridge to 

SE 32
nd

 Street and restrict 

westbound movements at 

Pacific Way to emergency and 

transit vehicles only. 

Principal 

Arterial 

Yes Yes Medium $659,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

Add travel lanes on US 101 

from SE 40
th

 Street to South 

Beach State Park/New SW 

50
th

 Street 

Principal 

Arterial 

Yes Yes Low $1,602,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

Add travel lanes on US 101 

from New SE 50
th

 Street to 

SW 62
nd

 Street 

Principal 

Arterial 

Yes Yes Low $799,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 5 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152e 

Project Description Functional 

Class 

Sidewalks Bicycle 

Lanes 

Priority  Estimated 

Cost ($2012)
1
 

Source 

Widen and pave SE Ash Street 

from Ferry Slip to SE 40th 

Collector Yes Yes High $506,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

Add eastbound through lane to 

receive traffic from second 

southbound through lane at SE 

40
th

 and US 101 

Collector No. No. Medium $161,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

Widen SE Ferry Slip to three 

lane section from SE Marine 

Science Dr to SE 29
th

 St   

Minor 

Arterial 

Yes Yes Medium $547,000 2010 SB 

Peninsul

a Plan 

Widen and pave SW 27
th

 St 

from SW Brant St to SW 

Abalone St 

Local Yes No High $145,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Widen and pave SW 27
th

 St 

from SW Coho St to existing 

improvements 

Local Yes No Low $101,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Widen and pave SW 28
th

 St 

from Brant to Abalone slope 

(with pedestrian. stairs down 

embankment) 

Local No No Low $303,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Widen and pave SW 29
th

 St 

from SW Coho St to SW 

Brant St 

Local No No Low $229,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Widen and pave SW 30
th

 from 

SW Brant St to SW Abalone 

St 

Local Yes Yes High $311,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Widen and pave SW Coho St 

from SW 29
th

 St to SW 30th St 

Local Yes Yes Low $186,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Widen and pave SW Brant St 

from SW 27
th

 to SW 30
th

 St 

Local Yes No High $707,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

North Side Local Street Plan Street and Roadway Projects   

Improve to 2-lane NE Benton 

Street from NE 8th Street to 

NE 10th Street  

Local Yes No High $316,000 2008 

North 

Side TSP 

update 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 6 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152f 

Project Description Functional 

Class 

Sidewalks Bicycle 

Lanes 

Priority  Estimated 

Cost ($2012)
1
 

Source 

SW 9th St/ NE Benton St 

Connectivity Enhancement; 

Pedestrian xing and signage 

improvements from Abbey to 

NE 11th to facilitate corridor 

as a local parallel route to US 

101 and access between US 20 

and the bay front. Consider all 

way stop at 9th/Hurbert. 

Local   High $34,000 2008 

North 

Side TSP 

update 

Improve to 3-lane urban 

standard NE 1st Street from 

US 101 to US 20 to provide 

westbound-to-northbound 

bypass of intersection of US 

101 with US 20.  

Local Yes Yes High $557,000 2008 

North 

Side TSP 

update 

Improve to 2-lane urban 

standard SW Neff Street from 

US 101 to SW 2nd Street to 

add system connectivity. 

Local Yes Yes High $515,000 2008 

North 

Side TSP 

update 

Improve to 2-lane urban 

standard SW 7th Street from 

SW 2nd Street to SW 

Elizabeth Street to add system 

connectivity. 

Collector Yes Yes Low $19,200,000 2008 

North 

Side TSP 

update 

Alternative Port Access Road 

Improvements; Evaluate 

improvements to SE Benson 

Road and/or SE John Moore 

Drive to improve access to 

waterfront area 

Collector 

(Benson) 

Arterial 

(John 

Moore) 

  Medium/ 

Low 

Planning study 

needed to 

determine 

alignment and 

cost 

2008 

North 

Side TSP 

update 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 7 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152g 

Transportation System Management/New Traffic Signals 

 

Transportation System Management is a traffic control tool that attempts to maximize the 

efficiency of the existing transportation system without additional roadway capacity.  TSM 

projects can be characterized as being low-capital cost alternatives that can be implemented in a 

relatively short time frame and that aim to make better use of existing facilities, either by 

operational changes or by better traffic management. 

 

There are several TSM projects that have been recommended for implementation in Newport.  

These projects are listed in Table 3 2 below.  Table 3-A 2 identifies the projects location, 

description and priorities priority for TSM projects in the adopted north side local street plan 

amendment roadway system.  As indicated by headings in Table 2, the projects listed are 

identified by the 1997 TSP, as well as updates to this plan in 2008, 2010 and 2012.  All project 

cost estimates are shown in 2012 dollars; cost estimates for projects from the 1997 TSP (and 2008 

update) have been adjusted to account for inflation. 

 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 8 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152h 

 Table 2:  Transportation Management System (TSM) Improvement Projects (replaces 

Tables 3 and 3A) 

Location/ 

Limits 

Project Description Priority Estimated Cost 

($ 2012) 

Source 

TSM Improvement Projects – City-wide 

US 101 Revisions 

(between OR 20 

and Yaquina Bay 

Bridge)   

Removal of on-street parking, no 

bike lanes, left turns only at Bayley, 

Abbey, Hurbert, Angle, and Olive 

High $31,000 1997 TSP 

US 101/NE Avery 

Street 

Access management modification 

(right-in, right-out only) 

High $18,000 1997 TSP 

John Moore Rd at 

SE Bay Blvd   

Provide realignment and 

channelization 

High $51,000 1997 TSP 

US 101 to Cape Provide island and channelization High $7,500 1997 TSP 

Naterlin at US 101 

(Yaquina Bay 

Bridge) 

Provide realignment and 

channelization 

High $45,000 1997 TSP 

NE 52
nd

 St Area 

Improvements  

Improve NE Lucky Gap between NE 

52
nd

 St and NE 54
th

 St; provide 

access from Longview Hills to NE 

52
nd

 St 

Medium $1,000,000 

 

 

 

 

1997 TSP 

NW 56
th

 St 

Improvement Area   

Eliminate Old Hwy Loop between 

NW 55
th

 St and NW 58
th
 St; extend 

NW 56
th

 St to US 101; improve NW 

Gladys St between NW 56
th

 St and 

NW 60
th

 St as a frontage road 

High $545,000 1997 TSP 

US 101  

 

Surface Parking Lots for 101 

Business:  Construct surface parking 

lots to supplement parking removed 

from 101 restriping 

Medium $270,000 1997 TSP 

Abbey St  Construct a new parking structure on 

Abbey St parking lot (4 levels with 

top level open); include bike racks; 

restripe Bay Blvd to accommodate 

parallel parking south of Fall St to 

Naterlin Dr 

Low $3,975,000 1997 TSP 

NE 57
th

 St  Eliminate US 101 access; cul-de-sac 

NE 57
th

 St on its western terminus; 

connect NE Hazel Ct to NE 60
th

 St 

Medium $270,000 1997 TSP 

SW 2
nd

 St between 

US 101 and SW 

Angle St 

 

Close SW 2
nd

 St between US 101 and 

SW Angle St (to be completed as 

part of signalization project at US 

101 and Angle St) 

Low $45,000 1997 TSP 

US 101 and 

Hurbert St 

Signal improvements to provide for 

left turns 

High $270,000 1997 TSP 

US 101/OR 20   Signal revisions/improvements; 

realign E Olive St 

High $1,120,000 1997 TSP 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 9 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152i 

Location/ 

Limits 

Project Description Priority Estimated Cost 

($ 2012) 

Source 

US 101 at NW 

11th Street 

Realign intersection to eliminate 

slight off-set.  Consider need for 

additional east/west turning lanes 

and/or signalization improvements. 

High $570,000 

ROW needed 

2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

US 101 at NW 6th 

Street 

Realign intersection to eliminate off-

set.  Consider need for added 

east/west turning lanes and/or 

improved signal to address 

congestion problem. 

High $730,000 

ROW needed 

2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

North Side Local Street Plan TSM Improvement Projects 

US 101, US 20 

north to NW 12th 

Street 

Evaluate opportunities for driveway 

and/or minor street closures or 

consolidation. 

High As redevelopment 

occurs. 

2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

US 101 at US 20 Add 2nd southbound left turn lane. 

Widen eastbound US 20 to receive 2 

lanes of traffic, transition to one lane 

east of US 101. 

High $885,000 

ROW needed 

2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

US 20 at NE Coos 

Street 

Add signal and improve intersection 

to encourage north/ south local street 

alternative to US 101. Signal could 

help relieve congestion at NE Eads. 

High $605,000 2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

US 20 at SE John 

Moore Drive 
Add north/south left turn lanes and 

adapt signal phase.  Combine 

northbound right/through lanes. 

Medium $220,000 2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

SW Hatfield Drive 

at SW Bay 

Boulevard 

Stripe separate right and left turn 

lanes, add crosswalk and no parking 

designation on Hatfield Dr.  Add 

curb extensions on Bay Blvd. to 

facilitate pedestrian crossing. 

High $52,000 2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

SW 2nd Street, 

SW Coast Street to 

SW Lee Street 

Realign intersections of SW Lee 

Street, SW Hurbert Street, SW High 

Street and SW Coast Street to 

eliminate off-sets. 

Medium $805,000 

ROW needed 

2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

US 101 at Angle 

Street 
Modify 1997 TSP to install traffic 

signal and left turn lanes on US 101.  

Remove on-street parking in vicinity 

of intersection to accommodate 

added lanes.  Consider alternative to 

retain on-street parking by 

eliminating lefts on US 101 at Angle 

and evaluating local connectivity thru 

refinement plan after installation of 

signal at US 101/Abbey. 

Medium $600,000 2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

US 101 at Hurbert 

Street 
Modify 1997 TSP to install left turn 

lanes on US 101.  Remove on-street 

parking in area of intersection for 

High $100,000 2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 10 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152j 

Location/ 

Limits 

Project Description Priority Estimated Cost 

($ 2012) 

Source 

added lanes.  Consider alternative to 

retain on-street parking by 

eliminating lefts on US 101 at 

Hurbert and evaluating local 

connectivity thru refinement plan 

after installation of signal at US 

101/Angle. 

John Moore Drive 

at Bay Blvd. 
Stripe John Moore for separate left 

and right turns.  Modify curb radii to 

enhance right turns from John Moore 

onto Bay. Add eastbound left turn 

lane and pedestrian crossing. 

High $400,000 2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

Various Locations Signage Improvements: 

 Directional signs from US 20 to 

both John Moore and 9
th

 for Bay 

Front visitors 

 Directional signs from Bay Front 

parking lots and along Bay Blvd 

to Naterlin for Ocean access 

 Improve signage to parking on 

Bay 

High $21,000 2008 North 

Side TSP 

update 

South Beach TSM Improvement Projects  

US 101 at 32
nd

 

Street 

Remove traffic signal from 

intersection of US 101 and SE 32
nd

 

Street. Convert intersection of US 

101 and 32
nd

 Street right in and right 

out. Add one travel lane in each 

direction, construct multi-use path on 

west side with buffer and shoulder. 

Add shoulder/bike lane and sidewalk 

on east side of the highway. Acquire 

right-of-way as needed and institute 

access management. 

High $787,000 

($190,000 for interim 

improvements per 

2012 Coho/Brant 

Refinement Plan) 

2012 South 

Beach TSP 

update 

US 101 at 35
th

 

Street 

Widen intersection to add 

channelization and install traffic 

signal. Add one travel lane in each 

direction and construct multi-use 

path on west side with buffer and 

shoulder. Add shoulder/bike lane and 

sidewalk on east side of US 101. 

Construct 35
th

 Street to connect with 

US 101 (approx. 600-700 ft.) with 

multi-use path on north side and 

sidewalk on south side. Acquire 

right-of-way as needed and institute 

access management. 

High $1,935,000 

($1,119,000 for 

interim improvements 

per 2012 Coho/Brant 

Refinement Plan)  

2012 South 

Beach TSP 

update 

US 101 at SW 40
th

 

Street 

Widen intersection to add 

channelization and install traffic 

signal. Add one travel lane in each 

Medium $2,624,000 2012 South 

Beach TSP 

update 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 11 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152k 

Location/ 

Limits 

Project Description Priority Estimated Cost 

($ 2012) 

Source 

direction and construct multi-use 

path on west side with buffer and 

shoulder. Add shoulder/bike lane and 

sidewalk on the east side of US 101 

north of 40
th

 Street and shoulder to 

the south. Add sidewalks on north 

side of 40
th

 [cost does not include 2
nd

 

EB through lane to receive dual SB 

lefts from US 101 (see Project #12)]. 

Acquire right-of-way as needed and 

institute access management.   

US 101 at South 

Beach State 

Park/New SW 50
th

 

Street  

Construct traffic signal and 

intersection improvements to add 

new east leg.  Multi-use path with 

buffer on west side of US 101 and 

shoulder/bike lanes on both sides. 

Multi-use path on north side of 50
th

 

and sidewalk on south side. 

Low $1,970,000 2012 South 

Beach TSP 

update 

US 101 at SW 62
nd

 

Street   

Widen intersection to add 

channelization. Shoulder/bike lanes 

on both sides of US 101. Multi-use 

path on west side of US 101 with 

buffer and north side of 62
nd

. 

Sidewalk on south side of 62
nd

. 

Low $1,054,000 2012 South 

Beach TSP 

update 

SE Ferry Slip 

Road  

Close intersection of US 101 at SE 

Ferry Slip Road, and overlay and 

widen roadway from SE 32
nd

 Street 

to north end of SE Ash Street 

(~1,100 feet). 

High $144,000 2012 South 

Beach TSP 

update 

SE 40
th

 Steet at US 

101 to approx. 

500-700 feet east 

Add eastbound through lane to 

receive traffic from second south 

bound through lane at intersection of 

40
th

 Street with US 101 

Medium $154,000 2012 South 

Beach TSP 

update 

 
 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 12 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152l 

New Traffic Signals 

 

It has been identified that as traffic volumes increase, several intersections throughout Newport 

will require the installation of traffic signals.  The cost for each traffic signal is estimated at 

$200,000, totaling $1 million for five signals.  This includes the cost for installation and signal 

coordination infrastructure but does not include intersection road work. 

 

Listed below are the locations that will likely require new traffic signals or turn lanes, or both, as  

traffic volumes increase.  The proposed location and spacing of new traffic signals on state 

facilities would comply with existing plans and policies, as indicated in the 1991 Oregon 

Highway Plan and as detailed in the City of Newport Access Management Plan.  These 

intersections should be monitored to determine the point in time at which signalization is 

warranted: 

 

 Highway US 101 at Abbey Street (1-5 years High) 

 Highway US 101 at Angle Street (11-15 years Low) 

 Highway US 101 at NE 36
th
 St. (6-10 years Medium) 

 Highway US 101 at NE 52
nd

 St. (6-10 years) 

 Highway US 101 at NE 73
rd

 St. (16-20 years Low) 

 US 101 at SE 35
th
 Street (High) 

 US 101 at SW 40th Street (High) 

 US 101 at South Beach State Park/New SW 50th Street (Low) 

 

Transportation modeling shows that traffic flow near the bridge would be improved by relocating 

the traffic signal at 32nd Street southward to 35th Street. When the planned 35
th
 Street 

intersection widening is complete and a traffic signal is installed, the traffic signal from the 

intersection of US 101 and SE 32nd Street will be removed and replaced with a stop sign for 

motorists approaching US 101 from the side street. In addition, the 32
nd

 Street intersection with 

US 101 will be limited to right in and right out traffic movements.   

 

Functional Classification System 

 

Streets perform various roles in a community, ranging from carrying large volumes of through 

traffic to providing direct access to abutting property.  These functions are often conflicting, and a 

hierarchical classification system is needed to determine the appropriate function and purpose of 

each roadway. 

 

Figures 1 through 3, and Table 43 presents the recommended functional classification system 

plan for the City of Newport.  This plan recommends four roadway classifications as follows: 

 

 Principal Arterials – These facilities carry the highest volumes of through 

traffic and primarily function to provide mobility and not access.  Principal 

arterials provide continuity for intercity traffic through the urban area and are 

usually multi-lane facilities.  The only facilities identified as principal arterials 

are US Highways 101 and 20. 

 

 Minor Arterials – These facilities interconnect and augment the principal 

arterial system and accommodate trips of somewhat shorter length.  Such 

facilities interconnect residential, shopping, employment, and recreational 

activities within the community. 

 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 13 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152m 

 Collector Streets – These streets provide both land access and movement within 

residential, commercial, and industrial uses.  These streets gather traffic from 

local roadways and serve as connectors to arterials. 

 

 Local Streets – These streets provide land access to residential and other 

properties within neighborhoods and generally do not intersect any arterial 

routes.  All remaining streets not listed in Table 4 are classified as local streets. 

 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 0 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152  

Figure 1: Functional Classification of Roadways – Agate Beach Map 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 0 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152  

Figure 2: Functional Classification of Roadways – Downtown Map 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 1 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152a 

Figure 3: Functional Classification of Roadways – South Beach Map 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 2 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152b 

 

Table 43:  Recommended Functional Classification of Roadways from 1997 TSP 

 

Principal Arterials Limits 

US Hwy 101 

US Hwy 20 

North UGB Limits to South UGB Limits 

Hwy 101 to East UGB Limits 

Minor Arterials Limits 

SW Abalone St 

SE Bay Blvd 

SE Ferry Slip Rd 

Harney Dr 

John Moore Rd 

North-South Arterial 

SE OSU Marine Science Dr 

SW 32
nd

 St  

Hwy 101 to SE Marine Science Dr 

John Moore Rd to East UGB Limits 

SE Marine Science Dr to SE Ash St 

Hwy 101 to North-South Arterial Hwy 20 

SE Bay Blvd to Hwy 20 

Harney Dr to Harney Dr 

SW Abalone St to end of Street 

SE Abalone St to Hwy 101 

Collectors Limits 

SW Abalone St 

SE Abbey St 

SW Alder St 

SW Angle St 

SE Ash St  

SE Avery St 

NE Avery St 

NE Avery St 

SE Bay Blvd 

SW Bayley St 

NE Benton St 

SW Canyon Way 

NW Coast St 

NE Coos St 

NE Eads St 

NW Edenview Way 

SW Elizabeth St 

SW Fall St 

SW Fall St 

SE Ferry Slip Road 

SE Fogarty St 

SW Harbor Way 

SE Harborton St 

SE Harney Dr 

SW Hatfield Dr 

SW Hurbert St 

SW Naterlin Dr 

SW Neff Way 

NW Nye St 

SW Nye St 

NW Ocean View Dr 

W Olive St 

NW Spring St 

NE Yaquina Heights Rd 

NE 1
st
 St 

SE 2
nd

 St 

Stub out at cemetery to SW 35
th
 St 

Hwy 101 to SW Harbor Way 

SW 2
nd

 St to SW Neff Way 

SW 2
nd

 St to SW 9
th
 St 

SE Ferry Slip to southern terminus 

SE 2
nd

 St to East Olive (Hwy 20) 

East Olive (Hwy 20) to NE 12
th
 St 

NE 73
rd

 to North UGB Limits 

SE John Moore Rd to SW Naterlin Dr 

SW 7
th
 St to SW 11

th
 St 

NE 3
rd

 St to NE 12
th
 St 

SW Hurbert St to SW Fall St 

SW 2
nd

 St to NW 8
th
 St 

NE 3
rd

 St to SE 2
nd

 St 

East Olive (Hwy 20) to NE 12
th
 St 

Hwy 101 to NW Ocean View Dr 

SW Bayley St to W Olive St 

SW Canyon Way to SW Bay Blvd 

SW Elizabeth St to Hwy 101 

SE Marine Science Dr to SE Ash St 

SE Bay Blvd to SE 4
th
 St 

SW Abbey St to SW 13
th
 St 

SE 40
th
 St to SE 50

th
 St 

SE 4
th
 St to SE John Moore Rd 

SW 9
th
 St to SW Bay Blvd 

SW 2
nd

 St to SW Canyon Way 

SW Government St to SW Bay Blvd 

SW Alder St to Hwy 101 

West Olive St to NW Ocean View Dr 

SW 2
nd

 St to West Olive St 

NW 12
th
 St to Hwy 101 

SW Elizabeth St to Hwy 101 

NW 8
th
 St to NW 12

th
 St 

NE Harney Dr to Hwy 20 

Hwy 20 to Hwy 101 

SE Benton St to SE Coos St 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 3 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152c 

SW 2
nd

 St 

NW 3
rd

 St 

NE 3
rd

 St 

SE 4
th
 St 

NW 6
th
 St 

NE 6
th
 St 

NE 7
th
 St 

SW 7
th
 St 

NW 8
th
 St 

SW 9
th
 St 

SE 10
th
 St 

NW 11
th
 St 

NE 11
th
 St 

NE 12
th
 St 

SW 13
th
 St 

NW 15
th
 St 

NE 20
th
 St 

SE 32
nd

 St 

SE 35
th
 St 

SE 40
th
 St 

SE 50
th
 St 

SE 62
nd

 St 

NE 73
rd

 St 

SW Elizabeth St to SW Angle St 

NW Coast St to Hwy 101 

NW Harney St to NE Eads St 

SE Fogarty St to SE Harney Dr 

NW Coast St to Hwy 101 

Hwy 101 to NE Eads St 

NE 7
th
 Dr to Yaquina Heights Dr 

SW 2
nd

 St to SW Elizabeth St 

NW Coast St to NW Spring St 

Hwy 101 to SE 2
nd

 10
th
 St 

SE Benton St to SW 9
th
 St 

NW Spring St to Hwy 101 

Hwy 101 to NE Eads St 

Hwy 101 to NE Eads St 

SW Harbor Way to SW Bay St 

NW Ocean View Dr to Hwy 101 

Hwy 101 to NE Crestview Dr 

Hwy 101 to SE Ferry Slip Road 

Hwy 101 to eastern terminus 

Hwy 101 to SE Harborton St 

SE Harborton St to US 101 

SE 50
th
 St to Hwy 101 

Hwy 101 to NE Avery St 

 

 

The hierarchical functional classification system requires different design standards for each 

roadway classification.  For instance, major thoroughfare routes require different access control 

standards, paving requirements, right-of-way widths, and traffic safety devices.  The TSP 

includes graphics showing the typical design standards for each roadway under the functional 

classification system. 

 

The suggested design standards are to be used as a guideline for roadway construction, including 

the development of new roads and the reconstruction of existing roads.  The roadway design 

standards are established to ensure consistency throughout the City, but because the City has 

diverse topographic and natural constraints, they must provide flexibility for unique and special 

situations.  The City also may permit alternate street cross-section design in response to the 

challenges and needs of specific areas, where these standards are supported by the 

recommendations of a refinement planning process.  Recent examples of where a more flexible 

approach to roadway design was adopted include the Coho/Brant and South Beach Peninsula 

Transportation Refinement Plans.    

 

Transportation Planning in South Beach  

 

Overview 

 

Primary access to businesses and residents in South Beach principally relies on US 101.  Recent 

analysis of the transportation system’s capability to support existing and future growth indicates 

that the existing Oregon Highway Plan’s (OHP) mobility standards or “targets” would not be met 

along US 101 for the 2030 planning horizon. This condition results from the combination of 

background traffic growth (e.g., through traffic) and anticipated development within the South 

Beach area. Substantial highway improvements in South Beach would not be sufficient to 

respond to the additional travel demand because the system is limited by the capacity of the 

Yaquina Bay Bridge, given its physical constraints as well as system infrastructure costs.  To 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 4 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152d 

respond to this expected future condition, and to come into compliance with the State’s 

expectations for mobility on US 101, the TSP identifies a variety of improvements to local street, 

bicycle, and pedestrian systems, as well as to US 101 that will improve local circulation and 

facilitate traffic movements on US 101.  The identified improvements on the local roadway 

system, are described in Table 1
1
.  The Oregon Transportation Commission recognizes that the 

mobility targets established in OHP Table 6 may not be feasible or practical in all circumstances.  

OHP Policy 1F states that alternate mobility targets can be developed to reflect the balance 

between relevant objectives related to land use, economic development, social equity, and 

mobility and safety for all modes of transportation.  New mobility standards for US 101 have 

been identified and analyzed in conjunction with planned transportation system improvements in 

the report titled “Newport Transportation System Plan Update - Alternate Mobility Standards 

Final Technical Memorandum #13 Summary of Measures of Effectiveness,” dated April 2012in 

order to confirm that the mobility targets can reasonably be met within the planning horizon. 

 

The Oregon Transportation Commission has sole authority to set standards for state facilities.  

The City supports the application of alternative mobility standards at intersections on US 101 in 

order to facilitate planned growth in South Beach.  This change to mobility standards on US 101 

as a result of planning done in 2011-12 represents a decision to accept a higher level of 

congestion.  In recognition of the constraint that the existing Yaquina Bay Bridge poses to access 

to South Beach, and the lack of funds for large capacity improvements on the highway system in 

the foreseeable future, the City has chosen to help implement the State’s alternate mobility 

standards, given that a higher level of controlled congestion on US 101 is an acceptable trade-off 

for accommodating economic development and reduced costs of total transportation system 

improvements associated with development.   

 

An infrastructure refinement plan was prepared for the Coho/Brant neighborhood concurrent with 

the preparation of the TSP.  That plan identifies needed improvements to local and collector 

streets in the neighborhood considering the transportation network identified in the TSP update 

for the greater South Beach area. 

 

Development of an Alternative Mobility Standard 

 

A substantial seasonal increase in traffic volumes occurs on US 101 during the summer 

months due to tourist traffic.  During the peak traffic months of July and August, 

Newport weekday traffic is 21% higher than the annual average traffic volumes and 40% 

higher than traffic volumes during January.  The Oregon Highway Plan (OHP)’s mobility 

targets apply during this peak summer traffic period.
 2

  Current traffic conditions in South 

Beach; however, are better than the conditions allowed by the OHP mobility targets.
3
   

 

The capacity of the two-lane Yaquina Bay Bridge also affects highway operations in 

South Beach.  The narrow travel lanes, lack of highway shoulders and the significant road 

grade from the middle of the bridge to its south end in South Beach affect the bridge’s 

capacity when compared to a typical highway.  The TSP Update calculated that the two-

                                                 
1
 In 2012, Ordinance XX updated the TSP to include transportation improvements for South Beach.  The 

technical memoranda that constitute the analysis and recommendations for the transportation system in 

South Beach are documented and included in Ordinance XX.    Newport Transportation System Plan 

Update - Alternate Mobility Standards Final Technical Memorandum #13 Summary of Measures of 

Effectiveness informs the development of alternate mobility standards for US 101 in the South Beach study 

area. The development of these standards is based on the findings of technical memoranda #5, #10, #11 and 

#12 prepared for the Newport Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update.    
2
 OHP Policy 1F, Table 6. 

3
 Newport TSP Technical Memorandum #5. 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 5 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152e 

lane bridge’s capacity is about 25% less than a typical highway.  No replacement bridge 

can be expected in the planning horizon to provide additional capacity, so South Beach 

traffic movements will continue to be affected by this condition in 2030.   

 

OHP mobility targets apply at the end of the planning horizon to evaluate the effect of 

future community development on highway operations, and substantial development is 

expected in South Beach during the planning horizon.  Traffic volumes that would result 

from the level of development expected to occur in South Beach by 2030 were combined 

with ODOT’s projections for background traffic growth.  These future traffic volumes 

then were evaluated with the current local road network and current highway 

configuration, and with the existing road network and a five-lane highway alternative.  

The analysis showed that the existing network and the existing highway could not meet 

the OHP mobility targets anywhere in the system.  Congestion would be so severe that 

traffic volumes would exceed the capacity of all highway intersections and the average 

travel speed would be 3.9 miles per hour for northbound traffic, and 2.5 miles per hour 

for southbound traffic on the existing highway.  When the analysis included a five-lane 

highway, conditions north of 50
th

 Street still could not meet the OHP targets and still 

exceeded capacity.  South of 50
th

 Street, most highway movements could meet the OHP 

targets, but none of the intersecting streets could.  The average travel speed for a five-

lane highway would be less than nine miles per hour for northbound traffic and less than 

six miles per hour for southbound traffic.
4
   

 

A local road network is proposed in the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan to provide a 

local transportation system that is better able to support development in South Beach.  

The network would provide a more interconnected local street system that would allow 

local travel to occur on city streets rather than solely on the highway.  This network was 

included in the Preferred System for the TSP Update because it would provide better 

long-term traffic conditions than the existing network and a five-lane highway.    

 

The OHP mobility targets cannot be met on US 101 in South Beach because of high 

seasonal traffic and the reduced highway capacity caused by the Yaquina Bay Bridge.  

The OHP calls for consideration of alternative mobility standards where it is infeasible to 

meet the OHP mobility targets.  Future traffic conditions in South Beach will be affected 

by high seasonal traffic and the reduced capacity of the Yaquina Bay Bridge.  The 

alternative mobility standard incorporates a seasonal adjustment to use the annual 

average traffic volume; assigns new mobility targets; evaluates mobility only at existing 

traffic signals and at the locations where signalized intersections are proposed as part of 

the TSP Update; and accounts for the development of community services in South 

Beach, thereby minimizing future travel on US 101 to reach such services elsewhere in 

Newport.  The results are alternative mobility standards effective at the current signalized 

US-101/SE 32
nd

 Street intersection and at the future signalized highway intersections at 

South 35
th

 Street, SE 40
th

 Street and at SE 50
th

 Street/South Beach State Park.   
  

                                                 
4
 Newport TSP Update, Technical Memorandum #11. 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 6 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152f 

Trip Budget Program 

 

The purpose of the Trip Budget Program is to ensure that the planned transportation system meets 

the needs of existing and future development in South Beach.  The underlying premise of the 

program is that the planned transportation system can accommodate a reasonable level of land 

development and still operate at an acceptable level.  The assumed number of trips that will be 

generated by development in South Beach over a 20-year planning horizon was determined based 

on projected population growth and permitted land uses, but with the assumption that not all areas 

were 100% buildable due to environmental constraints.
5
  The land uses in this scenario, and the 

vehicular trips this future growth will generate, are anticipated to be accommodated on the 

adopted planned transportation system over a similar time horizon.  The Trip Budget Program 

will be used to maintain the balance between the expected land uses and the identified needed 

transportation improvements in South Beach. 

 

The City maintains a zoning overlay for South Beach that sets the parameters for allocating trips 

to new development and provides a framework for how and when the City of Newport and 

ODOT will revisit 20-year growth assumptions.  The overlay, titled the South Beach 

Transportation Overlay Zone (“SBTOZ”), includes developable and redevelopable land in the 

South Beach portion of Newport, from the Yaquina Bay Bridge south to properties accessing SE 

62nd Street (Figure 2: South Beach Overlay Zone).  The SBTOZ helps the City track the 

consumption of trips from future development.  It is a tool to assess new growth and compare it to 

the assumptions upon which the transportation system and improvements are based. 

 

TAZ Trip Budgets 

 

The Trip Budget Program is based on the number of trips projected to be generated from new 

development in South Beach over a 20-year time horizon.  South Beach transportation analysis 

zones (“TAZs”) were created, as shown in Figure 2, to forecast future trips.  Future development 

assumptions were made based on existing land use designations, environmental constraints in the 

area, and information gathered from property owners and businesses regarding assumptions about 

the amount of development that could be expected for each of the TAZs within the planning 

horizon.  Table XX lists the TAZs in the SBTOZ and the PM peak hour trip total for each TAZ, at 

the time of plan adoption.  The total number of trips available in the SBTOZ at the time of plan 

adoption also is shown in Table XX; these totals are the basis for the Trip Budget Program. 

 

                                                 
5
 Land Use Scenario #2 in Newport Transportation System Plan Update - Alternate Mobility Standards 

Technical Memorandum #12 Analysis of South Beach Land Use Scenarios.  Further supported by technical 

reports titled “Review of Newport TSP Update – Technical Memorandum #10: Biological/Wetlands 

Review” and “Newport Transportation System Plan Update – Alternate Mobility Standards Technical 

Memorandum #11 2030 Baseline System.” 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 7 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152g 

Table 4: South Beach Overlay Zone Trip Budget Totals 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City shall develop a process for the allocating trips out of the TAZ Trip Budget.  Such a process 

may provide for vesting trips with a valid land use decision or through the issuance of a vesting 

letter.  As part of the trip allocation process, the City is responsible for determining whether or 

not remaining trips available in the TAZ can accommodate the development proposal.  Proposed 

developments that would generate more PM peak hour trips than what remains in the budget for 

the TAZ can be approved only by submitting a land use application requesting to use trips from 

the Trip Reserve Fund or through mitigation supported with a traffic impact analysis.   

 

Trip Reserve Fund 

 

Trips from the Trip Reserve Fund can be allocated to development projects anywhere within the 

SBTOZ.  The trips in the reserve fund were calculated based on the cumulative total of all the 

TAZs in the SBTOZ and roughly equal 10% of the total PM peak hour trips available in the 

SBTOZ, as shown in Table 4.  Reserve trips may be allocated across TAZ boundaries, to any land 

use type that is permitted by the underlying zoning.
6
  Through the SBTOZ, the City applies the 

following criteria to determine when trips should be allocated out of the Trip Reserve Fund to 

support a proposed development project: 

 There are insufficient unassigned trips remaining in the TAZ to accommodate the 

proposed types of use(s).  

 The proposal to use trips from the Trip Reserve Fund to meet the requirements of the Trip 

Budget is supported by a Transportation Impact Analysis.  

 There are sufficient trips available in the Trip Reserve Fund to meet the expected trip 

generation needs of the proposal. 

 

Approval of the allocation of trips from the Trip Reserve Fund is a discretionary decision, subject 

to attendant with public notice, opportunity to comment, and an appeals process. Allocation of 

reserve trips is approved only where a transportation analysis demonstrates that the impacts from 

                                                 
6
 As opposed to TAZ trips, which must be allocated within the TAZ boundaries where development is 

proposed. 

Area   TAZ Trip Budget
1
 

Area A 1,237 

Area B and C 798 

Area D  606 

Area E  167 

Area F  626 

Area G 257 

Area H 300 

Area I 181 

Area J 200 

Trip Reserve Total
2
 490 

SBTOZ Trip Total 4,862 

1
TAZ Trip Budgets are projected PM Peak Hour Trips forecasted for 

each TAZ during the next 20 years.  TAZ Trip Budgets are based upon 
Scenario #2 in the "Newport Transportation System Plan Update--
Alternate Mobility Standards Final Technical Memorandum #12.”     
2
 The SBTOZ Trip Reserve Total is 10% of the PM Peak Hour Trips from 

each TAZ.  These trips can be allocated anywhere within the SBTOZ 
through Newport Zoning Code provisions.   



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 8 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152h 

the proposed development is consistent with the planned preferred transportation system, or that 

the transportation impacts can be mitigated with improvements proposed as part of the 

development.   

 

Transportation Impact Analysis Requirement 

 

To ensure that the number of trips available in the Trip Budget and Trip Reserve Fund are not 

being exceeded by development, the City will need to know the expected trip generation from 

each development proposal.  In order for this information to be included in a development 

application, the City has traffic-related submittal requirements in the Zoning Ordinance.  For 

development proposals, including changes in uses that will have a limited impact on the 

transportation system, this can be accomplished by determining the number of PM peak hour trips 

expected from the future development and ensuring that the effect to the transportation system is 

consistent with the transportation improvements planned for South Beach.  Additional traffic 

analysis is required for higher traffic generating uses, such as  development proposals that include 

a requested change in the underlying land use designation or zone, or, proposals that request trips 

from the Trip Reserve Fund to support a development proposal.  The “two tiered” nature of such 

submittals in the City Zoning Ordinance requires a Trip Assessment Letter of all applicants, and 

requires a Transportation Impact Analysis (“TIA”) when certain prescribed threshold conditions 

are met.  The TIA section in the Zoning Code also includes thresholds that, if met or exceeded by 

a development proposal, would require that a TIA be submitted to the City for review and 

approval through a Type III review process. 

 

The Zoning Code shall describe the thresholds for requiring a TIA that are applicable to 

development anywhere in Newport.  The required elements of a TIA also are described.  

However, City staff has some discretion to determine the level of analysis necessary, based in 

part on the size and expected impact of the proposed project.  Initial information on a proposed 

project and expected transportation impacts is gained through a pre-application conference 

between City staff and the applicant.  The zoning code should allow the City to require needed 

transportation improvements as a condition of approval when the TIA shows that there is a need 

for the improvements. A fee-in-lieu option may also be included in the zoning code to provide for 

some flexibility as to when those improvements are made. 

 

Trip Generation Calculation 

 

The number of PM peak hour trips a proposed development is expected to put on the 

transportation system is based on trip generation by use in the latest edition of the Institute of 

Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual.  One identified way to reduce the 

number of trips across the Yaquina Bay Bridge to reach essential goods and services is to 

promote a mix of uses in South Beach and to encourage service-related uses not currently found 

south of the bridge.  Consistent with this approach, certain land use types must only consider the 

“primary trips” for the use rather than the trips that also would accrue from “passby” or “diverted-

link” trips.  Passby and diverted link trips involve intermediate stops on the way from a trip origin 

to a primary destination.  “Passby" or "diverted linked" trips are identified by the type of use in 

the latest edition of the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual. The 

following uses will be required to calculate only “primary trips”: 

 Personal service oriented uses, such as professional offices and branch banks. 

 Sales or general retail uses, total retail sales area under 15,000 square feet, such as a 

grocery store.  This does not include restaurants.  

 Repair oriented uses.     

 

 

 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 9 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152i 

Monitoring the Trip Budget Program 

 

The trip generation information obtained from the Trip Assessment Letter required of each 

development proposal, as well as alterations or changes in use, in South Beach will be used by 

City staff to keep the Trip Budget updated.  Upon approval of the trip allocation, City staff will 

update the available PM peak hour trip total for the subject TAZ by deducting the trips allocated 

to the permitted development.  In the case of a change in use, where the new use generates less 

trips than the previous use, or through mitigation capacity is added to the system then trips may 

be added to the Trip Budget.  The Trip Reserve Fund will be similarly updated when 

development is allocated trips from the Fund.  

 

The Planning Commission and City Council should receive periodic updates on the status of the 

Trip Budget.  The frequency of these updates may depend upon the respective body’s work 

program but occur at least once a year.   

 

Amending the Trip Budget Program 

 

It is unlikely that development will match up precisely to the assumptions in the future 

transportation analysis and, despite the flexibility afforded by the trip reserve, the Trip Budget 

Program may need to be updated to reflect actual development trends or to accommodate 

economic development opportunities that were not foreseen at the time of its adoption. These 

updates will be accomplished by: 

 A comprehensive reassessment of the trip budget program that will begin no more than 

10 years from effective date of Trip Budget Program ordinance.  

 A reevaluation of the Newport Transportation System Plan and the associated trip budget 

will occur when 65% of the total trips in any given TAZ have been committed to 

permitted development.   

o This review will be initiated no later than 6 months from the time the threshold is 

reached.  In anticipation of development reaching the 65% threshold, the City could 

also choose to commence the review any time development pressure in a certain TAZ 

warrants such an action.   

o The development proposal that triggers the 65% Review will not be denied based on 

this required review.  Subsequent development proposals within the subject TAZ 

may also be reviewed and approved by the City during the review process.  If the 

review necessitates updates to the Trip Budget Program, proposed changes will be 

adopted through a TSP and associated Zoning Code amendments.   

o To ensure that the 65% Review provides timely information, it will be completed 

within 12 months from initiation, or pursuant to a schedule that is part of a work 

program previously agreed upon by both the City and ODOT.    

Major updates or adjustments of the land use scenarios and the trip budget for South Beach will 

require a legislative amendment to the TSP. Transportation Planning Rule findings of compliance 

with the adopted transportation system plan must support the modification.    

 

 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 10 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152j 

Figure 4: South Beach Overlay Zone
7
 

 

                                                 
7
 Corresponds with Figure 2-2 from Newport Transportation System Plan Update - Alternate Mobility 

Standards Technical Memorandum #12 Analysis of South Beach Land Use Scenarios. 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 11 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152k 

Pedestrian Facility Improvements 

 

Specific to the City’s pedestrian plan are recommendations for a continuous sidewalk system in 

good repair that will connect existing and future pedestrian and transit traffic generators.  

Emphasis is given to the pedestrian/transit interface. Also critical to the plan is the support it 

provides for tourist foot traffic, from the main traffic area and to specific tourist attractions.  To 

this end, Ssidewalk improvements were identified to link existing sidewalks and to provide a 

system of sidewalks to ensure a balanced transportation system that offers realistic non-motorized 

alternatives.  Particular Early City efforts focus was focused on providing safe and convenient 

travel for children who walk to school.  Figure 5 through Figure 8 of the 1997 Transportation 

System Plan presented the recommended pedestrian plan element of the transportation network 

for Newport that was adopted in 1999.  Existing sidewalks are also shown on the 1997 TSP 

recommended plan.  The pedestrian and bicycle plan was greatly expanded in 2008 as part of the 

Transportation System Plan Update project and resulted in a new pedestrian and bicycle plan 

being adopted by the City of Newport in when the City adopted a new Pedestrian and Bicycle 

Plan2008.  The City’s existing pedestrian facilities and proposed pedestrian system in the 

pedestrian and bicycle plan adopted in 2008 are illustrated in Maps 2-1, 3-1, 3-2, and 3-3 of that 

plan the 2008 Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan.
8
  The update to the transportation system serving 

South Beach resulted in recommended projects that will enhance the pedestrian experience south 

of the bridge, including sidewalks along the west side of US 101, south to 35th Street, which will 

be part of future roadway improvements, and a multi-use path and sidewalks east of the highway, 

along 40th Street, Harborton Road, and 50th Street.  South Beach improvements are illustrated 

Figure 3, Recommended South Beach Pedestrian and Bicycle Projects.   

  

In 2011 the City conducted a series of charrettes with the public to improve recreational access to 

Agate Beach. The Agate Beach Wayside Project resulted in a conceptual design and list of 

associated improvements after extensive outreach by the City of Newport and Lincoln County 

with neighboring property owners, business owners, Oregon Department of Transportation, the 

Oregon Parks and Recreation Department, Surfrider Foundation, and other stakeholders.  

Major elements of the project include: improved parking lot circulation and safety; pedestrian 

improvements for Lucky Gap Trail; pedestrian improvements to North Agate Beach (i.e. “surfer 

access”), and; improvements to NW Agate Way and sidewalks on NW Gilbert Way. 

 

Specific to the plan are recommendations for a continuous sidewalk system in good repair that 

will connect existing and future pedestrian and transit traffic generators.  Emphasis is given to the 

pedestrian/transit interface. Also critical to the plan is the support it provides for tourist foot 

traffic, from the main traffic area and to specific tourist attractions.  Table 5 displays includes the 

recommended pedestrian facility improvements from the 1997 TSP along existing streets needed 

over the next 20 years.  Table 6A identifies the pedestrian and bicycle facility improvements from 

the Newport Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan adopted in 2008. As indicated in the source column in 

Table 5, the projects listed are identified in the 1997 TSP, as well as updates to this plan in 2008 

and 2012.  All project cost estimates are shown in 2011 dollars; cost estimates for projects from 

the 1997 TSP (and 2008 update) have been adjusted to account for inflation.   

 

Planning level cost estimates have been prepared for projects needed to provide continuous 

sidewalks within the school bus perimeter and in the core area, and to provide sidewalks where 

they do not currently exist on streets that will be part of the future arterial or collector network. 

 

                                                 
8
 See maps 2-1, 3-1, 3-2, and 3-3 in the 2008 Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan.  Note that the location of the 

shared use path and the proposed sidewalk along Highway 101 depicted on Map 3-3, Proposed Pedestrian 

System in South Newport, has been updated; see Figure 3, Recommended South Beach Pedestrian and 

Bicycle Projects. 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 12 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152l 

Adding sidewalks along a roadway are only part of the pedestrian solution; many busy streets and 

intersections are difficult to cross and can be barriers to walking.  Allowing people to cross streets 

as freely as possible is important in maintaining a pedestrian-friendly environment.  Often the 

width of the street, the geometry of the intersection, and the signal timing are designed only for 

the needs of the vehicle; not the pedestrian. 

 

To increase pedestrian crossing opportunities and safety, two approaches can be considered:  (1) 

designing roads that allow crossings to occur safely by incorporating design features such as 

raised medians or signal timing that creates gaps in traffic; or (2) constructing actual pedestrian 

crossings with pedestrian-activated signals, mid-block curb extensions, marked crosswalks, etc. 

 

There are a variety of locations in Newport where crosswalk improvements are necessary to 

maintain pedestrian safety.  The 1995 Oregon Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 2008 Pedestrian and 

Bicycle Plan identify several techniques that can be implemented at busy intersections. 

 

Bicycle Facility Improvements 

 

Figure 9 of the 1997 TSP illustrated the recommended bicycle plan for the City of Newport.  The 

figure includes city- and state-designated facilities throughout the City, including bike lanes and 

designated bike routes.  Highway US 101 currently is the a state-designated bike route that is 

known nationally as the Oregon Coast Bike Route.  In Newport, the Oregon Coast Bike Route 

diverges from the highway between Ocean View Drive and the Yaquina Bay Bridge onto city 

streets located west of the highway that have lower traffic volumes and are closer to the Pacific 

Ocean.  Other City-designated routes are along Ocean View Drive, Coast Street, and Elizabeth 

Street.  These routes are currently signed, but lack separated bike lanes.  The City’s goal was is to 

provide bicycle routes that enable safe and efficient travel for through bike traffic traveling along 

the Oregon Coast, as well as to provide a system for traveling within the city.  The system of 

bicycle facilities has been designed to connect both north-south and east-west bicycle traffic.  It 

has also been designed to connect all major generators of bicycle traffic with residential 

neighborhoods and tourist facilities.  The pedestrian and bicycle plan was greatly expanded as 

part of the Transportation System Plan Update project and resulted in a new pedestrian and 

bicycle plan being and adopted by the City of Newport in 2008.  The existing bicycle facilities 

and proposed bicycle facilities are illustrated in the 2008 pPedestrian and bBicycle pPlan adopted 

in 2008 are illustrated in Maps 2-2, 3-4, 3-5, and 3-6 of that plan.
9
  The update to the 

transportation system serving South Beach resulted in recommended projects to enhance the 

pedestrian experience south of the bridge.  Sidewalks will be extended on both sides of the 

highway south to 35th Street.  South of 35th Street, a multi-use path will be constructed on the 

west side of the highway; a sidewalk will be constructed on the east side.  Multi-use paths and 

sidewalks will be constructed along SE 40th Street, Harborton Road and the new alignment for 

SE 50th Street. 

 

Table 6 5 presents the recommended bicycle route improvements identified in the 1997 TSP.  The 

cost estimate for upgrading existing roads to include bicycle lanes has been prepared for each 

route or series of routes.  The cost estimates for bicycle facilities on new roadways have been 

included in the roadway construction cost estimates.  All project cost estimates are shown in 2012 

dollars; cost estimates for projects from the 1997 TSP (and 2008 update) have been adjusted to 

account for inflation.  Table 6A identifies the pedestrian and bicycle facility improvements from 

the Newport Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan adopted in 2008. 

 

                                                 
9
 See Maps 2-2, 3-4, 3-5, and 3-6 in the 2008 Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan.  The location of the proposed 

shared use path in South Beach was updated by the 2012 South Beach amendments (see Figure 3 

Recommended South Beach Pedestrian and Bicycle Projects). 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 13 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152m 

Table 5:  Recommended Pedestrian and Bicycle Improvements
10

 (Replaces Tables 5, 

6, and 6A) 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

US 101 Crossings    

NW 68th 

Undercrossing 

n/a An undercrossing 

of US 101 at NW 

68th  

ODOT / 

Newport 

Low $2,340,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Mid-block 

between 16th 

Street & 17th 

Street 

n/a Add median, raised 

stop bars, 

appropriate 

signage, and 

striped continental 

crosswalk 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Low $265,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 15
th

 Street n/a Add crosswalk  ODOT / 

Newport 

Low $11,500 2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

13th Street n/a Add median, raised 

stop bars, 

appropriate 

signage, and 

striped continental 

crosswalk 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Low $265,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

10th Street n/a Add median, raised 

stop bars, 

appropriate 

signage, and 

striped continental 

crosswalk 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Medium $265,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

8th Street n/a Add median, raised 

stop bars, 

appropriate 

signage, and 

striped continental 

crosswalk 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Medium $265,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

3rd Street / 4th 

Street 

n/a Add median, raised 

stop bars, 

appropriate 

signage, and 

striped continental 

crosswalk 

ODOT / 

Newport 

High $265,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

2nd Street 

(outside City 

Hall) 

n/a Add median, raised 

stop bars, 

appropriate 

signage, and 

striped continental 

ODOT / 

Newport 

High $265,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

                                                 
10

 All project estimates, unless otherwise noted, are shown in 2012 dollars.  Costs are escalated at a 4% per year from 

the previous project estimate (1997, 2008 or 2011). 
 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 14 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152n 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

crosswalk 

SW Angle 

Street 

n/a Add curb 

extensions 

ODOT / 

Newport 

High $78,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Lee Street n/a Add curb 

extensions 

ODOT / 

Newport 

High $53,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Hurbert 

Street 

n/a Add curb 

extensions 

ODOT / 

Newport 

High $38,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Alder 

Street 

n/a Add curb 

extensions 

ODOT / 

Newport 

High $53,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Neff Way n/a Add median, raised 

stop bars, 

appropriate 

signage 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Medium $265,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Abbey 

Street 

n/a Tighten the turning 

radius for vehicles, 

add marked 

crosswalks 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Low $205,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Bay Street n/a Tighten the turning 

radius for vehicles, 

add marked 

crosswalks 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Low $205,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Mid-block 

between SW 

Bayley Street 

& SW Minnie 

Street 

n/a Add median, raised 

stop bars, 

appropriate 

signage, and 

striped continental 

crosswalk, and 

curb extensions 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Medium $265,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Sidewalks    

US 101
11

  Yaquina Bay 

Bridge to 

Abalone 

Street  

Construct sidewalk 

on west side of 

highway 

  $186,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

US 101
12

 Abalone 

Street to 

Anchor 

Way/35
th

 

Street 

Construct sidewalk 

on west side of 

highway 

  $332,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

                                                 
11

 Funding currently proposed from FEMA as part of tsunami evacuation route.  The Ash Street Extension roadway 
improvement project (south of SE 40

th
 Street) shows a multi-use path at this location. This estimate is for an 

independent sidewalk improvement. 
12

 Project included as part of the Ash Street Extension roadway improvement project (south of SE 40
th
 Street) as a multi-

use path. 

 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 15 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152o 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

NE Avery 

Street 

US 101 to 

end of street 

Construct sidewalk 

on west side of 

street 

Newport Medium $219,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 71st Street NE Avery 

Street to NE 

Echo Ct  

Construct sidewalk 

on south side of 

street 

Newport Low $115,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 70th Street NE Avery St 

to fire access 

easement 

road 

Construct sidewalk 

on north side of 

street 

Newport Low $79,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Fire Access 

Easement 

NE 70th St to 

NE 71st St 

Construct 

pedestrian 

accessway 

Newport Low $18,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

US 101 NE Avery St 

to Agate 

Beach Access 

Rd 

Construct sidewalk 

on west side of 

street 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Low $700,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 57th Street US 101 to NE 

Evergreen Ln 

Construct sidewalk 

on south side of 

street 

Newport Medium $130,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Evergreen 

Lane 

End of street 

to NE 54th St 

Construct sidewalk 

on west side of 

street 

Newport Low $245,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 54th Street NE Evergreen 

Ln to NE 

56th St 

Construct sidewalk 

on north side of 

street 

Newport Low $60,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 56th Street NE 54th St to 

NE Lucky 

Gap St 

Construct sidewalk 

on east/south  of 

street 

Newport Low $85,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Lucky Gap 

Street 

NE 56th St to 

NE 57th St 

Construct sidewalk 

on east side of 

street 

Newport Low $55,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 60th 

Street 

US 101 to 

end of street 

Construct sidewalk 

on both sides of 

street 

Newport Medium $155,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 58th 

Street 

US 101 to 

end of street 

Construct sidewalk 

on both sides of 

street 

Newport Medium $225,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 57th 

Street 

NW Gladys 

St to end of 

street / NW 

Biggs St to 

end of street 

Construct sidewalk 

on south side of 

street 

Newport Low $115,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 56th 

Street 

US 101 

Access Rd to 

Construct sidewalk 

on south side of 

Newport Medium $145,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 16 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152p 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

end of street street 

NW 55th 

Street 

US 101 to 

end of street 

Construct sidewalk 

on north side of 

street 

Newport Medium $160,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 
Rhododendron 

Street 

NW 55th St 

to NW 60th 

St 

Construct sidewalk 

on east side of 

street 

Newport Medium $105,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW Biggs 

Street 

NW 56th St 

to NW 60th 

St 

Construct 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street 

Newport Medium $155,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW Gladys 

Street 

NW 56th St 

to NW 60th 

St 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport Low $90,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 

Lighthouse 

Drive 

US 101 to 

end of street 

Construct 

sidewalks on north 

side of street 

Newport Low $335,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Harney 

Street 

US 101 to NE 

Big Creek Rd 

Construct 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport Medium $210,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Lakewood 

Drive 

NE Harney to 

end of street 

Construct sidewalk 

on one side of 

street 

Newport Medium $190,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Crestview 

Drive 

NE 20th St to 

end of street 

Complete sidewalk 

gaps on west side 

of street 

Newport Low $34,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Crestview 

Place 

NE 20th St to 

end of street 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport Low $63,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 20th Place NE 20th St to 

end of street 

Construct 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport Low $61,000  

 

 

2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Douglas 

Street 

NE 20th Pl to 

end of street 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport Low $59,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 

Oceanview 

Drive 

US 101 to 

NW Spring St 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport Low $495,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW Spring 

Street 

NW 

Oceanview 

Dr to NW 8th 

St 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport Medium $105,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 8th Street NW Spring St 

to NW Coast 

St 

Construct 

sidewalks on north 

side of street 

Newport Medium $32,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 17 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152q 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

NW 15th 

Street 

NW 

Oceanview 

Dr to NW 

Grove St 

Construct 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport Low $68,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 12th 

Street 

NW Spring St 

to just east of 

NW Nye St 

Construct 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport Medium $87,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 11th 

Street 

NW Spring St 

to US 101 

Complete sidewalk 

gaps on both sides 

of street 

Newport High $130,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 10th 

Street 

NW Spring St 

to NW Nye St 

Construct sidewalk 

on south side of 

street 

Newport Medium $79,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 6th Street NW Coast St 

to NW Nye St 

Construct 

sidewalks on north 

side of street 

Newport High $183,000
13

 2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 12th 

Street 

US 101 to NE 

Benton St 

Complete sidewalk 

gaps on south side 

of street 

Newport High $60,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 8th Street US 101 to NE 

Eads St 

Construct 

sidewalks on one 

side of the street 

Newport Medium $130,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 7th Street US 101 to NE 

Eads St 

Construct 

sidewalks on one 

side of the street 

Newport High $130,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Jeffries 

Place 

NE 7th St to 

end of street 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport Low $39,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 7th Drive NE 7th St to 

end of street 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport Low $94,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 6th Street NE 7th Drive 

to end of 

street 

Construct 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport Low $100,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 4th Street US 101 to NE 

Douglas St 

Construct 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street 

Newport High $170,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 3rd Street NE Eads St to 

NE Harney St 

Complete sidewalk 

gaps on both sides 

of street 

Newport High $140,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 2nd Street US 101 to NE 

Eads St 

Complete sidewalk 

gaps on both sides 

of street 

Newport Medium $125,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

                                                 
13

 Project cost estimate developed in 2012.   



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 18 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152r 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

SE 1st Street US 101 to SE 

Douglas St 

Construct 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport High $105,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE 2nd Street SE Benton St 

to SE 

Douglas St 

Construct 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport High $46,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE Benton 

Street 

SE 1st St to 

US 20 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport High $18,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE Coos 

Street 

SE 2nd St to 

US 20 

Construct sidewalk 

on west side of 

street 

Newport Medium $39,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE Douglas 

Street 

SE 2
nd

 St to 

US 20 

Construct sidewalk 

on west side of 

street 

Newport Medium $39,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE 2
nd

 Street SE Fogarty St 

to SE Harney 

St 

Construct 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport High $45,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE 4
th

 Street SE Fogarty St 

to SE Harney 

St 

Construct 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport High $45,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE Harney 

Street 

SE 4
th

 Street 

to SE 2
nd

 St 

Construct 

sidewalks on east 

side of street 

Newport High $39,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Bay Blvd Length of 

street 

Complete sidewalk 

gaps on both sides 

of street 

Newport Medium $185,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Hatfield 

Drive 

SW Bay Blvd 

to SW 10
th

 St 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport Low $67,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Harbor 

Drive 

SW Bay St to 

SW 11
th

 St 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport High $51,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Neff Way 

/ SW Alder St 

US 101 to 

SW 2
nd

 St 

Construct 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street 

Newport High $170,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW 7
th

 Street SW Alder St 

to SW 

Elizabeth St 

Construct  

sidewalks on north 

side of street 

Newport Medium $180,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Elizabeth 

Street 

SW 

Government 

St to SW 

Abbey St 

Construct sidewalk 

on west side of 

street 

Newport High $145,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Yaquina State Construct sidewalk State Parks / Low $140,000  2008 Ped. 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 19 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152s 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

Government 

Street / 

Yaquina State 

Park 

Park adjacent to road 

through park 

Newport Bike Plan 

SE Marine 

Science Dr  

SW Abalone 

to end of 

street 

Construct 

sidewalks on south 

and east side of 

street 

Newport Medium $250,000  2010 

South 

Beach 

Peninsula 

Plan 

SE Ferry Slip 

Road 

SE 29
th

 St to 

SE Marine 

Science Dr  

Construct 

sidewalks on east 

side of street 

Newport Medium $27,000  2010 

South 

Beach 

Peninsula 

Plan 

SW Brant 

Street 

SW Abalone 

St to end of 

street 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport High $433,000
12

 2012 

Coho/Bra

nt Infra. 

Plan 

SE 35
th

 Street SE Ferry Slip 

Rd to end of 

street 

Construct sidewalk 

on one side of 

street 

Newport High $400,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE Fogarty 

Street 

US 20 to SE 

Bay Blvd 

Construct sidewalk 

on east side of 

street 

Newport Medium $110,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 36
th

 Street US 101 to NE 

Harney St 

Construct sidewalk 

on one side of 

street 

Newport Medium $135,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 10
th

 Court NE Eads to 

NE Benton St 

Construct 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street 

Newport Medium $120,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 10
th

 Street NE Benton St 

to US 101 

Construct 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street 

Newport Medium $125,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 5
th

 Street NE Benton St 

to NE Eads St 

Construct 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street 

Newport Medium $125,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Fogarty 

Street 

US 20 to NE 

3
rd

 Street 

Construct 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street 

Newport Medium $115,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE Moore 

Drive 

Bay Blvd to 

SE 2
nd

 Street 

Construct sidewalk 

on west side of 

road 

Newport Medium $125,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE 2
nd

 Street SE Moore 

Drive west 

Construct 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street 

Newport Medium $23,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 20 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152t 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

SE 5
th

 Street SE Moore 

Drive west 

Construct 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street 

Newport Medium $180,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

San-Bay-O 

Circle 

Proposed 

connection to 

Crestview to 

proposed 

connection to 

Chambers Ct 

Construct sidewalk 

along one side of 

street from 

proposed 

connections to 

Crestview and to 

Chambers Court 

Newport Medium $48,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Sidewalks and Bike Lanes  

40
th

 Street  East of US 

101 to South 

Beach Village  

Construct bicycle 

lane and sidewalk 

along north side of 

street 

  $89,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

NW Nye 

Street 

NW 15
th

 St to 

SW 2
nd

 St 

Construct bicycle 

lanes on both sides 

of street and 

complete sidewalk 

gaps on east side of 

street 

Newport High $195,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Benton 

Street / NE 

Coos Street 

NE 12
th

 Street 

to US 20 

Construct bicycle 

lanes and 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street 

Newport Medium $525,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 7
th

 Street NE Eads St to 

NE 6
th

 St 

Construct bicycle 

lanes on both sides 

of street and 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport High $215,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Harney 

Street 

US 20 to NE 

3
rd

 Street 

Construct bicycle 

lanes and 

sidewalks on both 

sides of street and 

sidewalks on south 

side of street 

Newport Medium $91,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

US 20 NE Harney St 

/  SE Moore 

Dr to US 101 

intersection 

Construct bicycle 

lanes and fill in 

sidewalk gaps on 

both sides of street 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Medium $55,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW 10
th

 Street SW Hatfield 

Dr to SE 2
nd

 

St 

Stripe bicycle lanes 

on south side of 

street and fill in 

sidewalk gaps on 

both sides of street 

Newport Medium $45,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 21 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152u 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

SW 2
nd

 Street SW Nye St to 

SW Coast St 

Strip bicycle lanes 

on both sides of the 

street and complete 

sidewalk gaps on 

north side of the 

street 

Newport Low $72,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW 26
th

 Street SW Brant St 

to SW 

Abalone St 

Construct sidewalk 

on north side and 

striped bike lane 

on south side of the 

street 

Newport Medium $52,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Recommended Bicycle System Improvements    

Bicycle 

Parking  

 Parking at major 

bus stops and bus 

stations (for 

tourists) 

  

High 

 

$28,000 

2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Bicycle Racks   Racks for all Dial-

a-Ride vehicles (10 

racks) 

  

High 

 

$14,000 

2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

West Olive St  

 

Elizabeth St 

to Nye St 

Striping for bicycle 

lanes along 

identified 

roadways to 

complete the East-

West Bike Route.   

 High 

 

 

$3,000 

 

 

2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW 2
nd

 St  Nye St to 

Angle St 

Angle St  SW 2
nd

 St to 

SW 9
th

 St 

SW 9
th

 

St/Avery St  

Angle St to 

SE 1
st
 St 

SE 1
st
 St  Avery St to 

Fogarty St 

Fogarty St  SE 1
st
 St to 

SE 2
nd

 St 

SE 2
nd

 St  

 

Fogarty St to 

Harney Dr 

John Moore 

Rd  

Harney Dr to 

US 20 

Eads St NE 12
th

 St to 

NE 3
rd

 St 

Provide a bike 

route 

 Low $145,000 2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE 3
rd

 St  Eads St to 

Harney Rd 

Big Creek Rd  Harney Dr to 

NE 12
th

 St   

Provide bikeway; 

also includes 

sidewalk 

improvements.  

  

Medium 

 

$205,000 

2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 22 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152v 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

Road will be 

closed to traffic 

after completion of 

the North-South 

Arterial. 

Ocean View 

Dr  

US 101 to the 

new Nye St 

extension 

Add bicycle route 

signs along 

identified 

roadways to 

provide a north-

south alternate 

bicycle route to US 

101 (signed route 

only).   

 High $1,000 2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Nye St  

 

Ocean View 

Dr to Olive St 

Olive St  

 

Nye St to the 

Beach at 

Elizabeth St 

Elizabeth St  Olive St to 

SW 2
nd

 St 

(connects to 

existing 

bicycle path 

along 

Elizabeth St) 

Bicycle Lanes    

SW Canyon 

Way 

SW Fall St to 

SW 9
th

 St 

Construct bicycle 

lane on east side of 

street 

Newport Low $11,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

US 101 Yaquina Bay 

Bridge to 

South Beach 

State Park 

Access 

Stripe bicycle lanes 

on both sides of 

street 

ODOT Low $64,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

West Olive US 101 to 

SW Elizabeth 

St 

Stripe bicycle lanes 

on both sides of 

street 

Newport Medium $24,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

New Boat 

Launch 

Pathway 

Marine 

Science Dr to 

New Boat 

Launch 

Designate bike and 

pedestrian lane on 

access road on 

Northern edge of 

parking lot 

Port Low $11,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Shared Roadways / Bicycle Boulevards    

Oregon Coast 

Bicycle Route 

US 101 to 

Yaquina Bay 

Bridge 

Implement Level 1 

and 2 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Newport Medium $9,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Harney US 101 to NE Implement Level 1 Newport Low $2,000  2008 Ped. 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 23 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152w 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

Street Big Creek Rd and 2 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Bike Plan 

11th Street NW Spring St 

to NE Eads St 

Implement Level 1 

and 2 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Newport High $2,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

6th Street NW Coast St 

to NE Eads St 

Implement Levels 

1, 2 and 3 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings, 

intersection 

treatments) 

Newport High $2,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW 3rd Street 

/ NW 4th 

Street 

NW Coast St 

to NE Eads St 

Implement Levels 

1, 2 and 3 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings, 

intersection 

treatments) 

Newport Medium $3,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW 7th Street SW 2nd St to 

SW Elizabeth 

St 

Implement Level 1 

and 2 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Newport Medium $2,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW 10th / 9th 

Street 

SE 2nd St to 

SW Bay St 

Implement Levels 

1, 2 and 3 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings, 

intersection 

treatments) 

Newport High $3,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Canyon 

Way / SW 

Hurbert Street 

SW Bay Blvd 

to NW 6th St 

Implement Levels 

1, 2 and 3 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings, 

intersection 

treatments) 

Newport High $3,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 24 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152x 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

SW Bay Street SW 9th St to 

SW 12th St 

Implement Level 1 

and 2 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Newport High $1,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW 10th 

Street / SW 

12th Street 

SW Bay St to 

US 101 

Implement Level 1 

and 2 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Newport High $1,000 2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Bay Blvd SW Naterlin 

Dr to SE 

Moore Dr 

Implement Level 1 

and 2 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Newport Medium $3,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

South Beach 

State Park 

US 101 Implement Level 1 

and 2 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Newport Low $3,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NE Eads 

Street 

US 20 to NE 

12th Street 

Implement Levels 

1, 2 and 3 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings, 

intersection 

treatments) 

Newport High $18,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE Moore 

Drive 

Bay Blvd to 

US 20 

Implement Level 1 

and 2 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Newport High $2,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW 26
th

 Street US 101 to 

west of town 

Implement Level 1 

and 2 bicycle 

boulevard 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Newport Medium $1,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Old Boat 

Launch access 

US 101 to old 

boat launch 

Implement Level 1 

and 2 bicycle blvd 

applications 

(signage, pavement 

markings) 

Newport Low $17,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 25 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152y 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

Shared-use Paths    

Ferry Slip 

Road  

Marine 

Science Drive 

to SE 29
th

 

Street 

Shared use path Newport High $77,000 2010 

South 

Beach 

Peninsula 

Plan  

Bay Road  Shared use path Newport Medium $432,000 2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Harborton 

Road 

40
th

 Street to 

50
th

 Street  

Multi-use path  

along south side 

with bicycle lanes 

and sidewalk along 

north side 

Newport Medium $1,344,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

Realigned 50
th

 

Street 

East of US 

101 to 

existing 50
th

 

Street
14

 

Multi-use path 

along north side 

with bicycle lanes 

and sidewalk along 

south side 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Low $435,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

US 101 SE Ash St to 

South Beach 

State Park 

Construct shared-

use path on west 

side of road 

ODOT / 

Newport 

Low $349,000 2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update 

NE Big Creek 

Road 

NE Harney St 

to NE 12
th

 St 

Construct a shared-

use path along the 

NE Big Creek 

right-of-way 

Newport Medium $520,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SE 2
nd

 Street 

Bridge 

SE Douglas 

St to SE 

Fogarty St 

Construct a non-

motorized shared-

use bridge over the 

existing ravine to 

provide a more 

direct connection 

to Yaquina View 

Elementary School 

from the nearby 

residential areas 

Newport Low $1,750,000 to 

$3,500,000 

2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Yaquina Bay 

Bridge 

Bridge Shared use path 

along west side of 

bridge; Provide a 

dedicated travel 

space for bicyclists 

and pedestrians  

 

Newport Low $16,000,000 

to 

$21,000,000 

2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan; 

2012 

South 

Beach 

TSP 

update  

                                                 
14

  Project included as part of the Ash Street Extension roadway improvement project north of SE 40
th
 Street as a multi-

use path. 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 26 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152z 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

North Jetty 

Trail 

SW Naterlin 

Dr to north 

jetty 

Construct a shared-

use path out the 

north jetty 

Newport High $920,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

San-Bay-O 

Connection 

San-Bay-O 

Circle to NE 

Crestview 

Construct a shared-

use path 

connection; 

requires an 

easement over 

private property.  

Exact location 

uncertain. 

Newport Medium $41,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Route to Main 

Shopping Area 

NE Chambers 

Ct to Frank 

Wade Park 

and Park to 

San-Bay-O 

Circle 

Construct a shared-

use path 

connecting to main 

shopping area 

Newport High $96,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Path across old 

RV Park 

SE Pacific 

Way to 

Marine 

Science Dr  

Improve pathway 

through RV park, 

route pedestrians 

off blind corner at 

SE Pacific Drive 

and Marine 

Science Dr  

Newport High $1,000 2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Estuary Trail 

Access 

SE 35
th

 St to 

Chestnut St 

Provide a 

dedicated travel 

space for bicyclists 

and pedestrians as 

an alternative to 

Idaho Point Road 

Newport Medium $205,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Connector to 

OCCC 

SE 35
th

 St to 

OCCC 

Provide a 

dedicated travel 

space for bicyclists 

and pedestrians 

Newport Medium $530,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Ash Extension Ash Street 

end to SE 35
th

 

St 

Provide a 

dedicated travel 

space for bicyclists 

and pedestrians 

along railway 

right-of-way 

 Newport Medium $225,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Connector to 

US 101 

Stairways 

US 101 to 

SW 26
th

 and 

SW 27
th

 

Avenues 

Provide access to 

US 101 stairways 

Newport High $93,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Develop of 

SW Coho St 

S Jetty Rd to 

SW 29
th

 St 

Construct shared 

use path 

Newport Medium $84,000
15

 2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

                                                 
15

 Project cost developed in 2012 as part of the Newport Coho/Brant Infrastructure Refinement Plan. 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 27 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152aa 

Project From - to Description  Project 

Lead 

Priority Estimated 

Cost           

($ 2012) 

Source 

Connector – 

SW 29
th

 Street 

or SW 30
th

 

Street 

State Park 

and South 

Beach 

neighborhood 

Links into State 

Park trail system 

Newport High $129,000
16

 2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Connector State Park to 

South Shore 

Links into State 

Park trail system 

Newport Medium $185,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Connector South Shore 

to Airport 

Links State Park 

trail system to 

airport 

Newport Low $1,050,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

Yaquina Bay 

Estuary Trail 

Extension 

Yaquina Bay 

Trail to SE 

35th Street 

Extends existing 

trail 

Newport High $380,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW Coast 

Street 

NW 8th St to 

NW 11th St 

Provide bicycle 

and pedestrian 

improvements over 

existing gravel 

road 

Newport Medium $135,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

NW Nye 

Street 

NW 15th St 

to Oceanview 

Construct shared-

use path 

connecting Nye to 

Oceanview 

Newport Medium $130,000  2008 Ped. 

Bike Plan 

SW Coho St  Jetty Way to 

SW 29
th

 St 

Construct shared-

use path 

Newport Medium $82,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

Jetty Way SW 26
th

 St to 

South Beach 

State Park 

parking areas 

Construct shared-

use path 

OPRD / 

Newport 

Low $486,000 2012 

Coho / 

Brant 

Plan 

SW Abalone 

Street 

SE Marine 

Science Dr to 

US 101 

Construct 

sidewalks on west 

side of street 

Newport High $490,000 2012 

Coho/Bra

nt Infra. 

Plan 

Wayside Improvements    

Agate Beach SW Corner of 

US 101 and 

NW Agate 

Way to north 

end of Agate 

Beach 

Realign parking, 

improve streets, 

sidewalks, trails, 

and construct 

restroom/showers 

Newport High $697,120
17

 2011 

Agate 

Beach 

Design 

Charrette 

 
 
atrix 

                                                 
16

 Project cost developed in 2012 as part of the Newport Coho/Brant Infrastructure Refinement Plan. 
17

 Project cost developed in 2011. Project funded in 2012 with FHWA Scenic Byways Grant. 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 28 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152bb 

Transit Plan 

 

It is difficult for cities the size of Newport to support fixed-route transit.  The City had attempted 

to provide such transit service through the Newport Area Transit System, but low ridership and 

funding constraints lead to discontinuation of the service in July 1991.  In November 1992, 

Lincoln County, with some funding from the City of Newport, began operation of a county-wide 

public transit system, the Central Coast Connection.  The name was later changed to Lincoln 

County Transit (LCT).  Lincoln County Transit currently provides the combined services of a 

scheduled stop system and a dial-a-ride service.  County employees coordinate athe daily fixed-

route system consisting of an intercity shuttle system with and east and south county vans buses 

operating as feeder lines to the intercity shuttle.  The CCC  LCT shuttle makes intercity runs from 

Newport to Lincoln City daily.  Newport is the hub for all intercity routes.  The CCC LCT shuttle 

and the intercity feeder lines between Siletz, Toledo, Waldport, Yachats, and Newport are open to 

the general public.  LCT has added a coast to valley service that operates five days from Newport 

to Corvallis and Albany Amtrak.  Dial-a-ride service operates on a demand/response basis for 

Newport residents. 

 

Lincoln County Transit provides bus service to the South Beach community through the 

“Newport City Loop,” between 7:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m., seven days a week.  Stops are provided 

north and south of the Yaquina Bay Bridge.  Improvements to the transit system could make bus 

ridership more viable for South Beach employees and residents, with the dual benefit of reducing 

single-occupancy trips on US 101 and supporting economic development in the area.  Anecdotal 

evidence supports the assertion that the infrequency of bus service and the daytime-only service 

hours hinder employees working in South Beach from commuting by bus.  In addition to the 

recommended transit improvements included in the TSP, the City is committed to working with 

Lincoln County Transit to improve the bus system and, in particular, increasing ridership in South 

Beach and decreasing local single-occupancy vehicle trips on US 101 and the Yaquina Bay 

Bridge .   

 

Table 7 6 displays all the recommended transit improvements included in the Plan with their 

associated annual or capital costs.  Funding is from state and federal sources. 

 

Table 6:  Recommended Transit Improvements 

 
Transit Improvements Priority Estimated 

Annual 

Operating 

Costs 

Estimated 

Capital Cost 

Support expanded daily Lincoln County Transit 

Service to enhance commute options for Newport 

employers and access to retail districts 

High $434,200 ------- 

Provide covered bus shelters at major bus stops High  $40,000 

Enhance dial-a-ride service through the use of 

private taxis as a backup service 

Medium 8,000 ------- 

Construct a centrally located transit facility Low  $500,000 

    

Total Cost (Transit Improvements)   $540,000 

 

 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 29 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152cc 

Airport Transportation Plan 

 

The Newport Municipal Airport is owned by the City of Newport.  It is classified as a General 

Aviation General Utility category airport and is a public airport capable of handling corporate-

type aircraft.  The Newport Municipal Airport Master Plan outlines a staged development 

program for the airport (see Table 87, below). 

 

 

Table 87:  Staged Development Program – Projected Development 

 
 

Stage II (1995-1999) 

 

Local 

 

FAA 

 

Other 

 

Total 

 

Road Relocation 

Land Acquisition 

Hangar Taxiways 

Auto Parking 

Aircraft Apron 

Clear Zone Earthwork 

Runway Marking 

Single-Unit Hangars (5) 

FBO Hangar 

Corporate Hangar 

Airport Maintenance Shop 

ARFF Station/City Fire Station 

 

$18,000 

$1,000 

$4,000 

$40,000 

$11,000 

$10,000 

$200 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$200,000 

$9,000 

 

$162,000 

$9,000 

$32,000 

$0 

$94,000 

$90,000 

$1,800 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$81,000 

 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$125,000 

$300,000 

$200,000 

$0 

$0 

 

$180,000 

$10,000 

$36,000 

$40,000 

$105,000 

$100,000 

$2,000 

$125,000 

$300,000 

$200,000 

$200,000 

$90,000 

 

Total Stage II 

 

$293,200 

 

$469,800 

 

$625,000 

 

$1,388,000 

 

Stage III (2000-2009) 

    

 

Terminal 

Auto Parking 

Terminal Roadway 

Apron Expansion 

Relocate VOR 

Parallel Taxiway Extension 

Overall Runway 16-34 & Taxiway 

Runway 2-20 Taxiway 

Corporate Hangars (2) 

Single-Unit Hangars (5) 

 

$300,000 

$225,000 

$22,000 

$10,000 

$50,000 

$39,000 

$88,000 

$23,000 

$0 

$0 

 

$280,000 

$0 

$198,000 

$90,000 

$0 

$351,000 

$787,000 

$207,000 

$0 

$0 

 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$400,000 

$375,000 

 

$580,000 

$225,000 

$220,000 

$100,000 

$50,000 

$390,000 

$875,000 

$230,000 

$400,000 

$375,000 

 

Total Stage III 

 

$757,000 

 

$1,913,000 

 

$775,000 

 

$3,445,000 

 

Total Stages II and III 

 

$1,050,200 

 

$2,382,800 

 

$1,400,000 

 

$4,833,000 
Source:  Newport Municipal Airport Master Plan, 1991 

 

 

Water Transportation 

 

The upland areas adjacent to, and development within, Yaquina Bay are controlled by the City of 

Newport, Lincoln County, the Port of Newport, and the State of Oregon.  The tourism, 

commercial fishing, and commercial shipping industries that use the bay provide a significant part 

of the local economy.  The Recommended Water Transportation Plan considers a wide variety of 

needs and acknowledges the competition between marine-related industries for certain tracts of 

waterfront property. 

 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 30 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152dd 

Recommended improvement projects for the port have been prioritized into three categories 

based on the time frame for implementation (see Table 98, below).  Funding has not been 

determined for all of the projects. 

 

 

Table 98:  Recommended Port Improvement Projects 

 
Priority 1 – Develop in the Next 5 Years 

    Project 

Cost  

($ X 1,000) 

Funding 

Source 

 

Rehabilitation of Port Dock 5 Pier 

 

75 

 

Port 

 

Multi-Level Parking Structure 

 

2,000 

 

Urban Renewal 

 

Revitalization of Newport International Terminal 

 

Unknown 

 

Port 

 

Rehabilitation of Existing Corps of Engineers Breakwater and d175 

Feet of New West Extension 

 

1,200 

 

Corps/State/Port 

 

Marine Commercial Lease Facility 

 

Undetermined 

 

Undetermined 

 
Priority 2 – Develop in the Next 5 to 10 Years 

   Project 

  

 

Widening of Bay Blvd 

 

Undetermined 

 

Undetermined 

 

Public Viewing Dock 

 

Undetermined 

 

Undetermined 

 
Priority 3 – Develop in Next 10 to 15 Years 

    Project 

  

 

Second Ship Berth 

 

32,000 

 

Port 

 

Second Barge Berth 

 

5,800 

 

Port 
Source:  Public Facilities Plan, 1990 and Port of Newport Staff Review, 1996 

 

 

Rail Transportation 

 

Willamette and Pacific Railroad provides freight service from the western Willamette Valley to 

the terminus of the rail line at Toledo, six miles east of Newport.  There is no direct service into 

Newport. 

 

 

Pipeline Transportation 

 

Current pipeline service includes transmission lines for electricity, cable television, and telephone 

service, and pipeline transport of water, sewage, and natural gas.  The Newport TSP encourages 

the continued use of these services for the movement of these commodities through the City. 

 

The Plan also recognizes the increasing likelihood that telecommuting and other “super-highway” 

technologies will become viable alternatives to physical commuting, thus reducing and possibly 

even eliminating some auto trips during the peak hours.  The use of telecommuting and other 

similar technologies should be encouraged through land use policy and plans. 

 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 31 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152ee 

 

Other Elements of TSP 

 

Funding 

 

The City of Newport Transportation System Plan also contains a section on the funding of the 

various projects and an analysis of transportation funding alternatives.  For a complete discussion 

on the available options, please refer to the TSP and the adopted TSP updates. 

 

There are a variety of funding options available to the City of Newport.  To fund all of the 

recommended capital improvement projects in the TSP and the TSP updates would most likely 

require a number of new revenue sources.  For purposes of illustration, the following provides an 

example of what it would take to fund the entire TSP (see Table 9).  The funding options include: 

 

 Obtain $16 million in additional revenue from State grants and programs 

 Use revenue bonds to pay for recommended parking structure 

 Create local improvement districts to pay for neighborhood street improvement 

projects 

 Increase SDC charges from $300/dwelling unit to $837 (from 20% to 50% of 

needed capital expenditure) 

 Implement a city-wide street utility fee (e.g. $2/month for all residences) 

 

Table 109 shows that the new funding sources would generate a surplus of revenue of about $1 

million in Years 1-5.  If this surplus were carried forward into Year 6-10, there would be enough 

revenue for all of the recommended capital improvement projects. 

 

Table 109 shows that the new funding sources would generate a surplus of revenue of about $1 

million in Years 1-5.  If this surplus were carried forward into Years 6-10, there would be enough 

revenue for all of the recommended capital improvement projects. 

 

Table 109 displays a potential scenario that would fund the entire recommended 1997 TSP over 

the 20 year period.  It does show that the recommended 1997 TSP can realistically be 

implemented over the next 20 years.  Regardless, the following funding strategy should include 

the following: 

 

 Aggressively pursue federal and state funding options for capital improvement 

projects, especially for HighwaysUS 20 and US 101. 

 

 Increase System Development Charges (SDCs) to a more comparable rate with 

surrounding communities (i.e. 50 to 60% of the needed revenue, $875 to $1,000 

per dwelling unit). 

 

 Seek one or more of the local funding options previously discussed. 

 

 Carefully prioritize capital improvement projects. 

 

 

Table 109:  Total Funding From Various Sources to Fund the Recommended 1997 TSP 

(1996 Dollars) 

 
 Years 1-5 Years 6-10 Years 11-20 Total 

Existing Highway Fund Revenue 

City’s Existing SDC Revenue 

$349,800 

$763,000 

$384,000 

$500,000 

$742,500 

$1,000,000 

$1,476,300 

$2,263,000 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 32 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152ff 

Additional State Contributions 

 

Total Available Funds 

$535,100 

 

$1,647,900 

$1,024,300 

 

$1,908,300 

$14,496,500 

 

$16,239,000 

$16,055,900 

 

$19,795,200 

Revenue Bonds for Parking Structure 

 

Local Improvement Districts for 

Neighborhood Street Improvements 

 

Increase SDC Charge (50% of needed 

TSP) 

 

Street Utility Fee ($2/month 

residential) 

 

Total Revenue from New Sources 

$0 

 

$268,000 

 

 

$895,000 

 

 

$1,000,000 

 

 

$2,163.000 

$0 

 

$0 

 

 

$89,500 

 

 

$10,000,000 

 

 

$1,895,000 

$3,207,000 

 

$268,000 

 

 

$1,790,000 

 

 

$2,000,000 

 

 

$7,265,000 

$32,070,000 

 

$5,360,000 

 

 

$3,580,000 

 

 

$4,000,000 

 

 

$11,323,000 

 

TOTAL REVENUE 

 

$3,810,900 

 

$3,803,300 

 

$23,504,300 

 

$11,323,000 

 

Total Project Costs 

 

Unfunded Project Costs 

 

$2,807,300 

 

($1,003,600) 

 

$5,060,700 

 

$1,257,400 

 

$23,079,400 

 

($424,600) 

 

$30,947,400 

 

($170,800) 

 

 

Access Management 

 

The purpose of the Access Management Plan is to define an effective access management 

program that will enhance mobility and improve the safety of roadways in the City of Newport.  

Access management strategies that limit the number of conflict points, separate conflicts as much 

as possible, reduce deceleration requirements, and separate turning traffic from traffic will all 

contribute to better mobility and safety on the City of Newport’s roadways.  

 

The primary focus of the access management plan is on the major arterials in the City of 

Newport; HighwayUS 101 and HighwayUS 20.  The plan seeks to maintain the function of these 

roadways as the primary through routes in the City of Newport.  The Access Management Plan as 

detailed in the TSP establishes policies and criteria that support this function.   

 

The Access Management Plan must address the growth in traffic in Newport through planning for 

the future transportation system.  The Oregon Transportation Planning Rule requires in Section 

660-12-045 Subsection (2): 

 

Local governments shall adopt land use or subdivision ordinance regulations, consistent 

with applicable federal and state requirements, to protect transportation facilities, 

corridors, and sites for their identified functions.  Such regulations shall include:  (a) 

aAccess control measures;, for example, driveways and public road spacing, median 

control and signal spacing standards, which are consistent with the functional 

classification of roads and consistent with limiting development on rural lands to rural 

uses and densities.; […]  

 

Access management can be most effectively implemented when it is integrated into the land use 

permitting process.  Or developing areas, this allows jurisdictions an immediate tool to implement 

their access management goals as these areas apply for permits and submit plans for agency 

review.  Applying access management to a developed arterial – representative of the conditions of 

many sections of HighwayUS 101 and HighwayUS 20 in the City of Newport – is a much more 

difficult task due to right-of-way limitations and the economic concerns of adjacent property 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 33 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152gg 

owners.  In such areas, access management can best be implemented as adjacent properties 

redevelop or as part of roadway improvement or retrofit plans. 

 

Access management is a set of measures to regulate access to streets, roads, and highways from 

public roads and private driveways.  The purpose of access management is to maximize the 

efficiency and safety of the existing roadway while preserving the flow of traffic and limiting the 

number of traffic conflicts.  A traffic conflict occurs where the paths of two traffic movements 

intersect.  Crossing conflicts are the most serious because of the potential for collisions.  The area 

and complexity of the crossing conflicts are also affected by the roadway cross-section.  For 

example, with a four-lane cross-section, each conflict involves two lanes, whereas with a two-

lane section, each of the conflict points involves only one lane. 

 

There are many different strategies for accomplishing access management, but the common 

theme of all strategies is to reduce traffic conflicts.  Strategies to reduce conflicts are listed below 

followed by select examples for tools that can be used to implement the strategy: 

 

 Limit the number of conflict points 

 ⁄    Installation of median barriers or closure to eliminate left turns at ingress and    

      egress points   

 ⁄    Installation of traffic signals at high volume intersections or driveways  

 ⁄    Optimization of traffic signal spacing and coordination 

 ⁄    Installation of physical barriers along frontage properties, e.g. curbs, fences, 

      Landscaping 

 ⁄    Regulate maximum width of driveways 

 

 Separate conflicts as much as possible when they cannot be eliminated 

 ⁄     Regulate minimum spacing of driveways 

 ⁄    Consolidate access for adjacent properties 

 ⁄    Regulate maximum number of driveways per frontage property 

 ⁄    Consolidate existing access as parcels redevelop 

 ⁄    Require access on adjacent cross-section (when available) in lieu of driveways 

      on major highways    

 

 Reduce deceleration requirements 

 ⁄    Improve driveway sight distance 

 ⁄    Increase effective approach width of driveway 

 ⁄    Restrict parking on roadway adjacent to driveway to increase driveway    

      turning speeds 

 ⁄    Install right-turn acceleration lane 

 

 Separate turning traffic from through traffic 

 ⁄    Install continuous two-way left turn lane 

 ⁄    Require adequate internal design and circulation plan 

 ⁄    Provide local service roads 

 ⁄    Encourage connections between adjacent properties 

 

Many of these tools can be used within the City of Newport.  Specific recommendations for 

application of these access management strategies will be provided in the Goals ad Policies 

section. 

 

During the development of the Newport TSP, specific access management goals were established 

for the City of Newport’s primary arterials, HighwayUS 101, and HighwayUS 20.  These access 

management goals address these facilities in both the established and the developing areas of the 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 34 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152hh 

City as defined in the maps contained in the Access Management Plan contained in the TSP.  The 

goals reflect the input of the Technical Advisory Committee, the Citizens Sounding Board, and 

public input from the Open Houses as well as correspondence from members of the public. 

 

Supporting access management goals were developed for the two types of areas in the City:  

established areas and developing areas.  The goals for these areas are defined below as well as the 

range of strategies that were explored by the study team. 

 

 

Established Areas 

 

Many properties now having direct access to the highway within these established areas will 

eventually redevelop.  At such time, alternate access may be provided and existing private 

accesses can be closed.  The reduction in traffic conflicts, due to preventing future private 

accesses and closing old private accesses, will allow the highway to operate safely at higher 

volumes of traffic. 

 

 

The types of access management tools most appropriate for these established areas include: 

 

 Optimize traffic signal spacing and coordination 

 Install physical barriers along frontage properties, e.g. curbs, fences, landscaping 

 Regulate maximum width of driveways 

 Regulate minimum spacing of driveways 

 Consolidate access for adjacent properties 

 Regulate maximum number of driveways per frontage property 

 Require access on adjacent cross-street (when available) in lieu of driveways on 

HighwayUS 101 and HighwayUS 20 

 Require adequate internal design and circulation plan 

 Encourage connections between adjacent properties 

 Install traffic signals at high volume intersections or driveways 

 

Spacing goals for the established areas are 500 feet for driveways, ¼ mile for public roads, and ½ 

mile for signals.  As redevelopment occurs, these spacing standards and access management tools 

should be evaluated and applied as appropriate to the specific needs of the project. 

 

 

Developing Areas 

 

The types of access management tools most appropriate for these areas are: 

 

 Install median barriers or closure to eliminate left turns at ingress and egress 

points 

 Install traffic signals at high volume intersections or driveways 

 Optimize traffic signal spacing and coordination 

 Install physical barriers along frontage properties, e.g. curbs, fences, landscaping 

 Regulate maximum width of driveways 

 Regulate minimum spacing of driveways 

 Consolidate access for adjacent properties 

 Regulate maximum number of driveways per frontage of property 

 Require access on adjacent cross-street (when available) in lieu of driveways on 

major highways 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 35 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152ii 

 Improve driveway sight distance 

 Increase effective approach width of driveway 

 Install right-turn acceleration lane 

 Install continuous two-way left turn lane 

 Require adequate internal design and circulation plan 

 Provide local service roads 

 Encourage connections between adjacent properties 

 

Spacing standards for primary arterials in developing areas are 800 feet for driveways, ½ to one 

mile for public roads, and ½ to one mile for signals.  As development and redevelopment occurs, 

these spacing standards and access management tools should be evaluated and applied as 

appropriate to the specific needs of the project. 

 

 

GOALS AND POLICIES 
 

The following goals and policies are intended to guide the decision makers and the development 

community in the administration of the Transportation System Plan (TSP) and the development 

of applicable implementing ordinances consistent with the TSP.  This section is not intended to 

provide review criteria for specific projects or to function as a capital improvement plan. 

 

Goal 1:  To provide a safe and efficient multi-modal transportation system consistent with 

the Transportation System Plan. 

 

Policy 1:  To improve and maintain a transportation system that is consistent with the The middle 

alternative shall be the preferred alternative of the adopted 1997 TSP, as amended by the project 

lists contained within the following updates: 

 

A.   Transportation system Plan Update Technical Memo # 2 (Northside Local Street 

Plan) dated July 2008. 

B. Transportation System Plan Update Technical Memo # 4 (Pedestrian and Bicycle 

Plan) dated July 2008. 

C. Newport Transportation System Plan Update - Alternate Mobility Standards Final 

Technical Memorandum #13 Summary of Measures of Effectiveness dated April 

2012. [Note: Final Draft TSP will include a Final Report in place of TM #13.] 

D. South Beach Peninsula Transportation Refinement Plan, dated February 9, 2010. 

E. Agate Beach Wayside Improvements Design Charrette Concept Plan dated, March 

2, 2011. 

F. Coho/Brant Infrastructure Refinement Plan, dated July 2012. 

 

Policy 2:  To develop implementing ordinances and funding options consistent with the 

following: 

 

A.  Street System Plan 

 

1.  New roadway projects, transportation management system improvements and 

improvements to existing roadways shall be consistent with the TSP subject to 

available funding. 

 

2.  The City does hereby adopt the classification system contained in the TSP as 

guidelines and shall develop implementing ordinances consistent with the 

classifications.  However, the topography of the City of Newport limits the 

ability to develop streets that are totally consistent with the classification system 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 36 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152jj 

at all times.  It is therefore imperative that the classification system be flexible in 

its application to account for specific circumstances. Streets created as part of a 

subdivision shall be designed in accordance with the adopted street design 

classification system in the TSP and the development standards in the 

subdivision ordinance unless a modification through the subdivision approval 

process is granted.  The City shall require all new development to make street 

frontage improvements consistent with adopted engineering standards 

proportional to the impact of the development on public facilities.  

 

3. The City will implement street cross-section designs that deviate from adopted 

street classification system standards where such designs apply to a defined area, 

respond to area-specific challenges and needs, and are supported by the findings 

and recommendations of an adopted Refinement Plan.  

 

3. 4. The City shall require that any change to the acknowledged Comprehensive 

Plan land use designations must make a finding that the change will not reduce 

the function of streets, especially Highway 101 and Highway 20, as identified in 

the TSP.  

 

4. 5. Because the cost of a new bridge is beyond the capability of the City of 

Newport, the City shall, within two years, prepare a refinement plan to develop a 

strategy for dealing with increased traffic across the Yaquina Bay Bridge. The 

City supports optimizing the existing transportation system through 

modifications to US 101 and local transportation system improvements in South 

Beach, as identified in the TSP.  The capacity of the Yaquina Bay Bridge is 

expected to continue to be the major constraint in the operation of the 

transportation system south of the bridge, and funding for a new or expanded 

facility is not likely in the foreseeable future.  

 

6.  To ensure that capacity on US 101 is sufficient to accommodate planned local 

growth south of the Yaquina Bay Bridge, the City supports adoption of alternate 

mobility standards by the Oregon Transportation Commission for the section of 

highway between the bridge and South 62
nd

 Street.  These standards will allow a 

higher level of congestion than would be acceptable without the alternate 

standards.  The alternate standards will support economic development and 

reduce the costs of total transportation system improvements associated with 

development.   

 

7. Comprehensive plan land use changes and development proposals that meet 

established thresholds for traffic generation or heavy vehicles, or that propose to 

take access directly from US 101, shall submit a transportation impact analysis as 

part of the application.  The analysis shall evaluate the impacts of the 

development and propose mitigation that would allow transportation facilities to 

operate under conditions consistent with the planned transportation system.  

These analyses are a necessary tool to aid City decision-making related to the 

transportation system and its adequacy to accommodate both existing and future 

users.  Whenever a direct property connection to US 101 is proposed, the City 

will coordinate with ODOT to ensure that the analysis addresses both state and 

local requirements. 

 

8. Many of the commercial activities needed by residents are missing from the 

South Beach community.  South Beach residents currently must travel across the 

Yaquina Bay Bridge to obtain these goods and services. Development of 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 37 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152kk 

commercial uses that provide for the goods and services needed in the South 

Beach community warrants special consideration by the City of Newport.  The 

Newport Development Code shall include special traffic analysis provisions for 

certain uses in order to encourage such development. 
 

9. The City shall monitor the transportation impacts of development in South 

Beach through a South Beach Transportation Overlay Zone (SBTOZ) and an 

associated Trip Budget Program to ensure that vehicle trips that result from new 

development do not exceed the number of trips that can be accommodated by the 

planned transportation system.  When development in the SBTOZ occurs inside 

the urban growth boundary but outside City limits, the City shall coordinate with 

Lincoln County through the development approval process to ensure that County-

approved trips are recorded.    

 

10. The Trip Budget Program envisions circumstances where an applicant may, 

identify measures as part of a traffic impact analysis that mitigate the impacts the 

development will have on the transportation system allowing trips to be 

authorized in excess of what would otherwise be permitted in the TAZ. An 

amendment to the TSP is not required in such cases; however, the City should 

update the Trip Budget to reflect the additional trips. 

 

11. The City shall continue to engage ODOT in conversations regarding future 

project planning and funding that would lead to improvements to, and possibly 

replacement of, the Yaquina Bay Bridge.  The City is intent on finding long-term 

solutions sufficient to address existing capacity and structural limitations that 

affect the bridge’s ability to carry vehicles and pedestrians  

 

B.  Pedestrian System Plan 

 

1.  The City shall provide a continuous pedestrian network consistent with the 

TSP, to the greatest extent possible considering funding limitations, topographic 

constraints, and existing development patterns. 

 

2.  The City shall provide a safe walking environment. 

 

3.  The City shall provide a pedestrian-oriented urban design especially on the 

Bay Front, in the City Center, and in Nye Beach. 

 

4.  The Ccity shall work to implement the Goal, Policies and Implementation 

Strategies related to pedestrian facilities identified on pages 1-3 and 1-4 of the 

Newport Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan adopted in 2008.  The City also shall work 

to implement identified pedestrian system improvements in South Beach, 

consistent with the adopted TSP.   

 

 

C.  Bicycle System Plan 

 

1.  The City shall provide a safe and efficient bicycle network consistent with the 

TSP, considering funding limitations, topographic constraints, and existing 

development patterns. 

 

2.  The City shall work to implement the Goal, Policies and Implementation 

Strategies related to bicycle facilities identified on pages 1-3 and 1-4 of the 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 38 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152ll 

Newport Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan adopted in 2008.  The City shall also work 

to implement identified bicycle system improvements in South Beach, consistent 

with the adopted TSP.   

 

D.  Transit System Plan 
 

1.  The City shall support the Lincoln County Transit Service consistent with the 

TSP considering funding limitations, topographic constraints, and existing 

development patterns. 

 

2. The City shall work with Lincoln County Transit to identify and address the 

following:  

a. Barriers to transit ridership, such as frequency of buses, convenience and 

proximity of the transit stops to employment areas, etc.  

b. Enhancements to service, including but not limited to modifying existing 

transit loops, adding stops to the loops, or adding additional routes. 

c. Impediments to providing service (funding, ridership numbers, etc.)  

d. Physical amenities to promote transit use, such as shelters, signage, 

benches, posted schedules, signal timing/preferential treatment at 

intersections, etc. 

 

3. The City shall continue to work with Lincoln County Transit, ODOT, and 

Lincoln County to identify opportunities for transit improvements in the planned 

roadway system, such as “queue-jump” opportunities for buses through 

intersection configurations and preferential signal timing along US 101. 

 

4. The City shall encourage new retail, office, industrial, and institutional 

developments to provide transit facilities on site if identified in an adopted transit 

plan and shall work to ensure that there are safe pedestrian and bicycle 

connections through and from the site to existing and planned transit routes.   

 

2.5.  The City shall explore with Lincoln County Transit opportunities to provide 

the possibility of providing a shuttle service across the bay during the busy 

tourist season to help reduce traffic congestion, i.e. on the Yaquina Bay Bridge, 

subject to the availability of funding. 

 

E.  Access Management Plan 

 

1.  The City shall implement an access management strategy for the established 

and developing areas of the City of Newport along Highway 101, Highway 20, 

and other arterials that supports the City’s Transportation Goal and ensures that 

those streets can accommodate traffic in a safe and efficient manner as traffic 

increases. 

 

2.  In established areas of the City of Newport as identified in the TSP, the City 

shall encourage consolidation or reduction of accesses as possible during 

property redevelopment and/or frontage improvements.  Spacing goals for the 

established areas are 500 feet for driveways, ¼ mile for public roads, and ½ mile 

for signals.  As redevelopment occurs, these spacing standards and access 

management tools should be evaluated and applied as appropriate to the specific 

needs of the project. 

 



City Council October 15, 2012 Hearing Draft 

TSP Page - 39 - 
 
     CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  Newport Transportation System Plan. 

  

Page 152mm 

3.  In developing areas of the City of Newport as identified in the TSP, as sites 

develop or redevelop, accesses shall be planned, consolidated, and/or reduced to 

meet the spacing standard to the greatest extent possible.  Spacing standards for 

primary arterials in developing areas are 800 feet for driveways, ½ mile to one 

mile for public roads, and ½ mile to one mile for signals. 

 

4.  The City shall develop specific ordinance provisions to further this access 

management plan. 

 

F.  Funding Plan 

 

1.  The City shall continue to employ a variety seek one or more of the local 

funding options discussed in the TSP (i.e., such as the local gas tax, street utility 

fee, general obligation bonds, local improvement districts, developer exactions, 

system development charges), to fund the planned transportation system. 

 

2.  The City shall carefully prioritize capital improvement projects through the 

development, maintenance, and implementation of the TSP and Capital 

Improvement Program. 

 

3.  The City shall aggressively pursue federal and state funding options for 

capital improvement projects, especially for Highways 101 and 20. 

 

4. The City shall continue to plan for and finance needed infrastructure 

improvements necessary to support economic development consistent with 

adopted urban renewal plans. 

 

5. The City shall pursue extending the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan to 

provide funding for projects beyond the year 2020 if needed to better coordinate 

City plans with the timeline for future state funding.   

 

 



South Beach Overlay Zone  
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

Page 1 of 7 

The following is a new chapter in the Newport Zoning Ordinance, to be codified at Chapter 14.43 of the 

Newport Municipal Code. 

CHAPTER 14.43 SOUTH BEACH TRANSPORTATION OVERLAY ZONE (SBTOZ). 

14.43.010.  Purpose.  The purpose of the SBTOZ is to promote development in the South 

Beach area of Newport in a way that maintains an efficient, safe, and functional 

transportation system.  This Section implements the Trip Budget Program for South 

Beach established in the Newport Transportation System Plan to ensure that the planned 

transportation system will be adequate to serve future land use needs.   

14.43.020.  Boundary.  The boundary of the SBTOZ is shown on City of Newport Zoning 

Map. 

14.43.030.  Applicability.  The provisions of this Section shall apply to development that 

has the effect of increasing or decreasing vehicle trips to a property that is within the city 

limits. Any conflict between the standards of the SBTOZ and those contained within 

other chapters of the Newport Zoning Ordinance shall be resolved in favor of the 

SBTOZ. 

14.43.040.  Permitted Land Uses.  Any permitted use or conditional use authorized in the 

underlying zone may be permitted, subject to the applicable provisions of this Ordinance 

and the additional provisions of this overlay zone. 

14.43.050.  Definitions 

A.  Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ).  A geographical area used in transportation 

planning modeling to forecast travel demands.   

B. Trip.  A single or one-direction vehicle movement with either the origin or 

destination inside the area being studied as specified in the latest edition of the 

Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual.   

C. Primary Trip.  A trip made for the specific purpose of visiting the generator.  The 

stop at the generator is the primary reason for the trip.  The trip typically goes 

from origin to generator and then returns to the origin.  Primary trips do not 

include "passby" or "diverted linked" trips as those terms are defined in the latest 

edition of the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation 

Manual. 

C.D. Trip Budget Program.  The program for tracking the number of vehicle 

trips attributed to new development as described in Chapter 14.43 of the Newport 

Zoning Ordinance and Transportation System Plan element of the Newport 

Comprehensive Plan. 



South Beach Overlay Zone  
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

Page 2 of 7 

14.43.060. Trip Generation.  Proposed development on parcels within the SBTOZ may 

not generate more PM peak hour trips than are budgeted for the TAZ in which the parcel 

is located, except as provided in Section 14.43.100.   

A. Documentation that this requirement is met can be provided through the submittal of 

a Trip Assessment Letter, pursuant to 14.43.080.A, or a Traffic Impact Analysis, if 

required by 14.45.010. 

B. The PM peak hour trip generation is determined through the latest edition of the ITE 

Trip Generation Manual.  The following uses are required to calculate primary trips 

only, as defined in 14.43.050.C: 

(1) Personal service oriented uses. 

(2) Sales or general retail uses, total retail sales area under 15,000 

square feet. 

(3) Repair oriented uses.   

14.43.070. Trip Budget Ledger.  The Community Development Director shall maintain a 

ledger which contains the following: 

A. For each TAZ, the total number of vehicular PM peak-hour trips permitted to be 

generated by future development projects. 

B. The balance of unused PM peak-hour trips within each TAZ. 

C. The balance of unused PM peak-hour trips in the Trip Reserve Fund. 

D. For each TAZ, where applicable, the number of trips allocated from the Trip 

Reserve Fund. 

E. For each TAZ, where applicable, the number of additional trips authorized as a 

result of mitigation performed in accordance with recommendations contained in 

a Traffic Impact Analysis approved by the City of Newport, pursuant to Chapter 

14.45.  

F. The percentage of the total trips that have been allocated within each TAZ. 

14.43.080.  Trip Assessment Letter.   

A. Proposed development that would increase or decrease the number of vehicle trips 

being generated to or from a property must submit a Trip Assessment Letter that 

demonstrates that the proposed development or use will not generate more PM 

peak-hour trips than what is available in the trip budget for the TAZ in which it is 

located.  A Trip Assessment Letter shall be prepared and submitted: 

 

(1) Concurrent with a land use that is subject to a land use action; or 



South Beach Overlay Zone  
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

Page 3 of 7 

(2) If no land use action is required, than prior to issuance of a 

building permit. 

B. Upon request by the applicant, the City shall develop and provide applicant with a 

Trip Assessment Letter.   

C. The latest edition of the Trip Generation Manual published by the Institute of 

Transportation Engineers (ITE) shall be used as the standard by which to 

determine expected PM peak hour vehicle trips, unless a specific trip generation 

study that is approved by the City Engineer indicates an alternative trip generation 

rate is appropriate. 

D. A copy of the Trip Assessment Letter will be provided to ODOT prior to City 

action on the proposal.  

E. A Trip Assessment Letter shall rely upon information contained in a Traffic 

Impact Analysis, where such analysis has been prepared pursuant to Chapter 

14.45 of this Ordinance. 

14.43.090.  Allocation of Trips.  Trips are allocated by TAZ in the SBTOZ.  The trip 

totals for each TAZ, available for future allocation within the SBTOZ, can be obtained 

from the Community Development Department. 

A. Trips may not be transferred from one TAZ to another. 

B. Total number of trips allocated to any TAZ may be exceeded only through: 

(1)  The allocation of trips from the Trip Reserve Fund, pursuant to 

14.43.100, or 

(2)  Mitigation of the expected impacts of the proposed development, 

supported by a Traffic Impact Analysis (Chapter 14.45). 

C.   City shall allocate trips to proposed development by deducting them from the 

Trip Budget Ledger if trips available in the Trip Budget Ledger meet or exceed the 

number of trips identified in the Trip Assessment Letter.   

D. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, City shall deduct trips from the 

Trip Budget Ledger at such time as a land use decision is approved and is to treat 

those trips as vested so long as that land use decision is valid. In the event a land use 

decision expires, the City shall add the trips back to the Trip Budget Ledger.  

(1) For a tentative (preliminary) plat that does not include phases, trips 

shall be vested so long as the application for final plat is submitted 

within the time established by the Subdivision Ordinance;  



South Beach Overlay Zone  
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

Page 4 of 7 

(2) For a tentative (preliminary) plat that includes phases the total vesting 

period for all phases shall not be greater than ten (10) years;  

(3) For a final plat, trips shall vest for a period of ten (10) years from the 

date the plat is recorded; 

(4) City shall not deduct trips from the Trip Budget Ledger at such time as 

a land use decision is issued for a property line adjustment, partition 

plat, or minor replat; and 

(5) An applicant seeking approval of a tentative or final plat may elect to 

have the City not deduct trips from the Trip Budget Ledger at such 

time as a land use decision is approved.  In such cases the land use 

decision shall note that use of the resulting lots may be limited to 

available trips within the TAZ as documented in the Trip Budget 

Ledger. 

E. For development that is not subject to a land use decision, the City shall 

deduct trips from the Trip Budget Ledger at such time as a Trip Assessment 

Letter is submitted or requested by the applicant.  The number of trips 

deducted is to be documented in writing as vested with the development for a 

period of six months or until such time as a building permit is issued, 

whichever is shorter.  If a building permit is not obtained within this 

timeframe than the City shall add the trips back to the Trip Budget Ledger.  

City implementation of this subsection shall be a ministerial action. 

14.43.100.  Trip Reserve Fund.  The Trip Reserve Fund total is maintained by the 

Community Development Department.    

A. Development proposals that require trips from the Trip Reserve Fund to satisfy 

the requirements of this Section are subject to a Type III review process. 

B. Trips from the Trip Reserve Fund may be used to satisfy the requirements of this 

Section for any permitted land use type, provided all of the following criteria is 

met: 

(1) There are insufficient unassigned trips remaining in the TAZ to 

accommodate the proposed types of use(s);  

(2) The proposal to use trips from the Trip Reserve Fund to meet this 

Section is supported by a Transportation Impact Analysis, pursuant to 

Chapter 14.45; and  



South Beach Overlay Zone  
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

Page 5 of 7 

(3) There are sufficient trips available in the Trip Reserve Fund to meet 

the expected trip generation needs of the proposal. 

14.43.110. Notice of Allocation of Trips.  Notice of a proposal to allocate trips from the 

Trip Budget and notice of the subsequent decision is not required.  The City will provide 

notice of an application for approval of trips from the Trip Reserve Fund in a manner 

consistent with that of a Type III notice procedure. 

14.43.120. Amending the Trip Budget Program.   

A. A comprehensive reassessment of the Trip Budget Program will occur no later 

than 10 years from the effective date of this ordinance.   

B. The Trip Budget Program shall be evaluated for compliance with the provisions 

of OAR 660-012 prior to, or concurrent with, changes in the comprehensive plan 

land use designations within the SBTOZ. 

C. A reevaluation of the Trip Budget Program is required when 65% of the total trips 

in any given TAZ have been committed to permitted development.   

(1) A 65% Review will be initiated by the City and coordinated with 

ODOT. A 65% Review must be initiated no later than 6 months from 

the time the threshold is reached.     

(2) The 65% Review will be completed within 12 months from initiation, 

or pursuant to a schedule that is part of a work program previously 

agreed upon by both the City and ODOT.  Prior to completion, 

applicants can propose mitigation and potentially obtain approval of 

proposed development, pursuant to OAR 660-012-0060. 

 



South Beach Overlay Zone  
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

Page 6 of 7 

The following revisions and cross references are proposed for the City Subdivision Ordinance 

(shown in double underline). 

 

13.05.040 Public Improvement Requirements  

 

A. The following public improvements are required for all land divisions, except 

where a subdivision plat is reconfiguring or establishing rights-of-way for future public 

streets: 

 

[…] 

 

5. Sidewalks.  Required sidewalks shall be constructed in conjunction with the street 

improvements except as specified below: 

  

 a. Delayed Sidewalk Construction.  If sidewalks are designed contiguous 

with the curb, the subdivider may delay the placement of concrete for the sidewalks by 

depositing with the city a cash bond equal to 115 percent of the estimated cost of the 

sidewalk. In such areas, sections of sidewalk shall be constructed by the owner of each 

lot as building permits are issued.  Upon installation and acceptance by the city engineer, 

the land owner shall be reimbursed for the construction of the sidewalk from the bond.  

The amount of the reimbursement shall be in proportion to the footage of sidewalk 

installed compared with the cash bond deposited and any interested earned on the deposit. 

 b. Commencing three (3) years after filing of the final plat, or a date 

otherwise specified by the city, the city engineer shall cause all remaining sections of 

sidewalk to be constructed, using the remaining funds from the aforementioned cash 

bond. Any surplus funds shall be deposited in the city's general fund to cover 

administrative costs. Any shortfall will be paid from the general fund.  

 

 c. Notwithstanding the above, a developer may guarantee installation of 

required sidewalks in an Improvement Agreement as provided in Section 13.05.090(C).  

 

13.05.070 Land Division Application 

 

A. A person seeking approval of a land division shall submit the following to the 

Community Development Department: 

[…] 

 



South Beach Overlay Zone  
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

Page 7 of 7 

13. A Trip Assessment Letter, if required by Chapter 14.43. 

14. A Traffic Impact Analysis, if required by Chapter 14.45. 

13.15. Other materials that the applicant believes relevant or that may be required by the 

city. 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 

Transportation Standards 
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

 

The following is a new chapter in the Newport Zoning Ordinance, to be codified as Chapter 14.44 of the Newport 

Municipal Code  

 

CHAPTER 14.44 TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS 

 

14.44.010  Purpose.  The purpose of this Chapter is to provide planning and design standards for 

the implementation of public and private transportation facilities and city utilities and to 

indicate when and where they are required.  Streets are the most common public spaces, 

touching virtually every parcel of land.  Therefore, one of the primary purposes of this 

Chapter is to provide standards for attractive and safe streets that can accommodate vehicle 

traffic from planned growth and provide a range of transportation options, including options 

for driving, walking, bus, and bicycling. This Chapter implements the City’s Transportation 

System Plan. 

 

14.44.020 When Standards Apply.  The standards of this section apply to new development or 

redevelopment for which a building permit is required that places demands on public or 

private transportation facilities or city utilities.  Unless otherwise provided, all construction, 

reconstruction, or repair of transportation facilities, utilities, and other public improvements 

within the City shall comply with the standards of this Chapter. 

 

14.44.030 Engineering Design Criteria, Standard Specifications and Details.  The design 

criteria, standard construction specifications and details maintained by the City Engineer, or 

any other road authority within Newport, shall supplement the general design standards of 

this Chapter.  The City’s specifications, standards, and details are hereby incorporated into 

this code by reference. 

 

14.44.040 Conditions of Development Approval.  No development may occur unless required 

public facilities are in place or guaranteed, in conformance with the provisions of this Code.  

Improvements required as a condition of development approval, when not voluntarily 

accepted by the applicant, shall be roughly proportional to the impact of the development on 

public facilities.  Findings in the development approval shall indicate how the required 

improvements are directly related and roughly proportional to the impact.  

 

14.44.050 Transportation Standards. 

 

A. Development Standards.  The following standards shall be met for all new uses and 

developments: 
 

1. All new lots created, consolidated, or modified through a land division, partition, lot line 

adjustment, lot consolidation, or street vacation must have frontage or approved access to 

a public street. 
 

2. Streets within or adjacent to a development subject to Chapter 13.05, Subdivision and 

Partition, shall be improved in accordance with the Transportation System Plan, the 

provisions of this Chapter, and the street standards in Section 13.05.015. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

3. Development of new streets, and additional street width or improvements planned as a 

portion of an existing street, shall be improved in accordance Chapter 13.05, and public 

streets shall be dedicated to the applicable road authority; 

 

4. Substandard streets adjacent to existing lots and parcels shall be brought into 

conformance with the standards of Chapter 13.05. 

 

B. Guarantee. The City may accept a future improvement guarantee in the form of a surety 

bond, letter of credit or non-remonstrance agreement, in lieu of street improvements, if it 

determines that one or more of the following conditions exist: 

 

1. A partial improvement may create a potential safety hazard to motorists or pedestrians; 

 

2. Due to the developed condition of adjacent properties it is unlikely that street 

improvements would be extended in the foreseeable future and the improvement 

associated with the project under review does not, by itself, provide increased street 

safety or capacity, or improved pedestrian circulation; 

 

3. The improvement would be in conflict with an adopted capital improvement plan; or 

 

4. The improvement is associated with an approved land partition or minor replat and the 

proposed land partition does not create any new streets. 

 

C. Creation of Rights-of-Way for Streets and Related Purposes.  Streets may be created through 

the approval and recording of a final subdivision or partition plat pursuant to Chapter 13.05; 

by acceptance of a deed, provided that the street is deemed in the public interest by the City 

Council for the purpose of implementing the Transportation System Plan and the deeded 

right-of-way conforms to the standards of this Code; or other means as provided by state law. 

 

D. Creation of Access Easements.  The City may approve an access easement when the 

easement is necessary to provide viable access to a developable lot or parcel and there is not 

sufficient room for public right-of-way due to topography, lot configuration, or placement of 

existing buildings.  Access easements shall be created and maintained in accordance with the 

Uniform Fire Code. 

 

E. Street Location, Width, and Grade.  The location, width and grade of all streets shall conform 

to the Transportation System Plan, subdivision plat, or street plan, as applicable and are to be 

constructed in a manner consistent with adopted City of Newport Engineering Design 

Criteria, Standard Specifications and Details.  Street location, width, and grade shall be 

determined in relation to existing and planned streets, topographic conditions, public 

convenience and safety, and in appropriate relation to the proposed use of the land to be 

served by such streets, pursuant to the requirements in Chapter 13.05.  

 



Traffic Impact Analysis Requirement 
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

The following is a new chapter in the Newport Zoning Ordinance, to be codified at Chapter 14.45 of the 

Newport Municipal Code  

CHAPTER 14.45 TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

14.45.010.  Applicability.  A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) shall be submitted to the city 

with a land use application under any one or more of the following circumstances: 

A. To determine whether a significant affect on the transportation system would 

result from a proposed amendment to the Newport Comprehensive Plan or to a 

land use regulation, as specified in OAR 660-012-0060. 

B. ODOT requires a TIA in conjunction with a requested approach road permit, as 

specified in OAR 734-051-3030(4). 

C. The proposal may generate 100 PM peak-hour trips or more onto city streets or 

county roads. 

D. The proposal may increase use of any adjacent street by 10 vehicles or more per 

day that exceeds 26,000 pound gross vehicle weight. 

E. The proposal includes a request to use Trip Reserve Fund trips to meet the 

requirements of Chapter 14.43, South Beach Transportation Overlay Zone. 

14.45.020.  Traffic Impact Analysis Requirements.  

A. Pre-application Conference. The applicant shall meet with the City Engineer prior 

to submitting an application that requires a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA).  This 

meeting will be coordinated with ODOT when an approach road to US-101 or 

US-20 serves the property so that the completed TIA meets both City and ODOT 

requirements.   

B. Preparation.  The submitted TIA shall be prepared by an Oregon Registered 

Professional Engineer that is qualified to perform traffic engineering analysis and 

will be paid for by the applicant. 

C. Typical Average Daily Trips and Peak Hour Trips. The latest edition of the Trip 

Generation Manual, published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) 

shall be used to gauge PM peak hour vehicle trips, unless a specific trip 

generation study that is approved by the City Engineer indicates an alternative trip 

generation rate is appropriate. An applicant may choose, but is not required, to use 

a trip generation study as a reference to determine trip generation for a specific 

land use which is not well represented in the ITE Trip Generation Manual and for 

which similar facilities are available to count.  



Traffic Impact Analysis Requirement 
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

D. Intersection-level Analysis.  Intersection-level analysis shall occur at every 

intersection where 50 or more peak hour vehicle trips can be expected as a result 

of the proposal. 

E. Transportation Planning Rule Compliance.  The TIA shall comply with the 

requirements of OAR 660-012-0060.  

F. Structural conditions.  The TIA shall address the condition of the impacted 

roadways and identify structural deficiencies or reduction in the useful life of 

existing facilities related to the proposed development. 

G. Heavy vehicle routes.  If the proposal includes an increase in 10 or more of the 

vehicles described in Section 14.45.010.D, the TIA shall address the provisions of 

Section 14.45.020.F for the routes used to reach US-101 or US-20. 

14.45.030.  Study Area. The following facilities shall be included in the study area for all 

TIAs: 

A. All site-access points and intersections (signalized and unsignalized) adjacent to 

the proposed site. If the proposed site fronts an arterial or collector street, the 

analysis shall address all intersections and driveways along the site frontage and 

within the access spacing distances extending out from the boundary of the site 

frontage. 

B. Roads through and adjacent to the site. 

C. All intersections needed for signal progression analysis. 

D. In addition to these requirements, the City Engineer may require analysis of any 

additional intersections or roadway links that may be adversely affected as a result 

of the proposed development. 

14.45.040.  Approval Process. When a TIA is required, the applicable review process will 

be the same as that accorded to the underlying land use proposal.  If a land use action is 

not otherwise required, then approval of the proposed development shall follow a Type II 

decision making process.  

14.45.050.  Approval Criteria. When a TIA is required, a development proposal is subject 

to the following criteria, in addition to all criteria otherwise applicable to the underlying 

proposal:  

A. The analysis complies with the requirements of 14.45.020;  

B. The TIA demonstrates that adequate transportation facilities exist to serve the 

proposed development or identifies mitigation measures that resolve the traffic 



Traffic Impact Analysis Requirement 
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

safety problems in a manner that is satisfactory to the City Engineer and, when 

state highway facilities are affected, to ODOT; and  

C. Where a proposed amendment to the Newport Comprehensive Plan or land use 

regulation would significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility, 

the TIA must demonstrate that solutions have been developed that are consistent 

with the provisions of OAR 660-012-0060; and 

D. For affected non-highway facilities, the TIA establishes that any Level of Service 

standards adopted by the City have been met, and development will not cause 

excessive queuing or delays at affected intersections, as determined in the City 

Engineer’s sole discretion; and 

E. Proposed public improvements are designed and will be constructed to the 

standards specified in Chapter 14.44 Transportation Standards or Chapter 13.05, 

Subdivision and Partition, as applicable. 

14.45.060.  Conditions of Approval. The City may deny, approve, or approve a 

development proposal with conditions needed to meet operations, structural, and safety 

standards and provide the necessary right-of-way and improvements to ensure 

consistency with the City’s Transportation System Plan  

14.45.070.   Fee in lieu Option.  The City may require the applicant to pay a fee in lieu of 

constructing required frontage improvements.    

A. A fee in lieu may be required by the City under the following circumstances:  

(1) There is no existing road network in the area.  

(2) There is a planned roadway in the vicinity of the site, or an existing 

roadway stubbing into the site, that would provide better access and local 

street connectivity.  

(3) When required improvements are inconsistent with the phasing of 

transportation improvements in the vicinity and would be more efficiently 

or effectively built subsequent to or in conjunction with other needed 

improvements in area.   

(4) For any other reason which would result in rendering construction of 

otherwise required improvements impractical at the time of development.   

B. The fee shall be calculated as a fixed amount per linear foot of needed 

transportation facility improvements. The rate shall be set at the current rate of 

construction per square foot or square yard of roadway built to adopted City or 



Traffic Impact Analysis Requirement 
DRAFT for 10/15/12 City Council Hearing 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

ODOT standards at the time of application.  Such rate shall be determined by the 

City, based upon available and appropriate bid price information, including but 

not limited to surveys of local construction bid prices, and ODOT bid prices.  This 

amount shall be established by resolution of the City Council upon the 

recommendation of the City Engineer and reviewed periodically.  The fee shall be 

paid prior to final plat recording for land division applications or issuance of a 

building permit for land development applications.  

C.  All fees collected under the provisions of Section 14.45.070 shall be used for 

construction of like type roadway improvements within City of Newport’s Urban 

Growth Boundary, consistent with the Transportation System Plan.  Fees assessed 

to the proposed development shall be roughly proportional to the benefits the 

proposed development will obtain from improvements constructed with the paid 

fee. 

 

The following cross reference to the “payment in lieu” option is proposed for the City 

Subdivision Ordinance (shown in double underline). 

 

13.05.090 Final Plat Requirements for Land Divisions Other than Minor Replats or 

Partitions  

 

[…] 

 

B. Provision of Improvements. It shall be the responsibility of the developer to install all required 

improvements and to repair any existing improvements damaged in the development of the 

property. The installation of improvements and repair of damage shall be completed prior to final 

plat approval. Except as provided in Subsection C., or where payment in lieu of constructing a 

required improvement is allowed by City and has been paid by developer per Chapter 14.45, the 

final plat will not be approved until improvements are installed to the specifications of the city 

and "as constructed" drawings are given to the city and approved by the city engineer. The 

developer shall warrant the materials and workmanship of all required public improvements for a 

period of one year from the date the city accepts the public improvements. 































































92.040 Application for approval of subdivision or partition; tentative plan; applicability of local 
government laws. (1) Before a plat of any subdivision or partition subject to review under ORS 92.044 
may be made and recorded, the person proposing the subdivision or partition or authorized agent or 
representative of the person shall make an application in writing to the county or city having jurisdiction 
under ORS 92.042 for approval of the proposed subdivision or partition in accordance with procedures 
established by the applicable ordinance or regulation adopted under ORS 92.044. Each such application 
shall be accompanied by a tentative plan showing the general design of the proposed subdivision or 
partition. No plat for any proposed subdivision or partition may be considered for approval by a city or 
county until the tentative plan for the proposed subdivision or partition has been approved by the city or 
county. Approval of the tentative plan shall not constitute final acceptance of the plat of the proposed 
subdivision or partition for recording. However, approval by a city or county of such tentative plan shall 
be binding upon the city or county for the purposes of the preparation of the subdivision or partition plat, 
and the city or county may require only such changes in the subdivision or partition plat as are necessary 
for compliance with the terms of its approval of the tentative plan for the proposed subdivision or 
partition.

(2) After September 9, 1995, when a local government makes a decision on a land use application 
for a subdivision inside an urban growth boundary, only those local government laws implemented 
under an acknowledged comprehensive plan that are in effect at the time of application shall govern 
subsequent construction on the property unless the applicant elects otherwise.

(3) A local government may establish a time period during which decisions on land use applications 
under subsection (2) of this section apply. However, in no event shall the time period exceed 10 years, 
whether or not a time period is established by the local government. [Amended by 1955 c.756 §7; 1973 
c.696 §7; 1983 c.826 §8; 1989 c.772 §5; 1995 c.812 §9; 2005 c.22 §71]

Page 1 of 1

10/11/2012http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/092.html























n.morris
Typewritten Text
IX-B
























































	AGENDA 10-15-12
	WS October 1, 2012
	October 1, 2012
	Claims- Sept.
	Committee Apps
	OLCC- Bridges Restaurant
	Managers Report
	Department Head Reports
	Project Status Memo - ATJ  10-15-12
	Newport Gas Tax Useage and Revenues Memo TEG 10-11-12
	LINT-LetterToNewportCityCouncil
	Transportation System Plan
	Resolution 3615
	Tourism Facilities Grant
	Plastic Bag



